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FOREWORD

In the compilation of history there should be available
either written records which were accurately kept through the
years, or first hand information gained from personsl interviews
with responsible persons who actually knew the course of events.
Alack and alas, no such bountiful source of supply is available
in the case of Dover Baptist Church.

True, there are some records, even though meagre, and
they will be referred to in their proper places.

And there are minutes of meetings of Dover Church. The
first minutes of record, however, bezin with the year 184Y, long
after the Church was constituted. These minutes were recorded by
many different Church Clerks, Some were written with infinite
care, producinz legible and orderly records. It would seem the
writers somel.ow xnew that more than a hundred years later eazer
eyes would search those same time-worn pages for a link to con-
nect some important event. Yet, close upon the heels of such
painstaking efforts follow the recordations of others who scrawled
boldly and carelessly, brinzing into existence a mass of jumbled,
illegible scribblings that hold little, if any, meaning. Here it
seems the scribes were almost defying anyone to read their re-
cordations either then or later, Pages have been torn from the
minute books, and many of the remaining pages are so badly muti-

lated that it is impossible to read what was written upon them.



The eye roams hopefully over the pages of clearly written

facts and fizures, then suddenly the chain is broken ana the miss-
ing links are much too important to ignore. Were only a few pazes
lacking, one wight reasonably improvise to fill in the gaps, but
many long spaces of time elapse between the various writings and
any semblauce of continuity is forever lost. So much for the
minutes!

ks to personel interviews with those who might have kad
first hand information, this, too, is wishful thinking, for such
persons have long ago gone to their reward.

In the writing of fiction, tre eyes may be closed and the
imagination encouraged to run rampant. Forms and faces may be con-
Jured up at will to fit the need; words and actions, circumstances
and events supplied for color, intrigue and interest. Such pro-
cedure is forbidden in the case of history and unvarnished truth
becomes a paramount factor,

In the efforts here presented accuracy will oe strictiy
adhered to, although it is entirely possible that as these words
are written the imagination may be, to a small dezree, indulged
with respect to wondering somewhat about the many people whose
names are recorded on the yellowed pages of the Minutes of Dover
Baptist Church; names inscribed with obvious care, names scrawled
with the utter abandon of a devastating whirlwind.

To those who may find objectionable the touch of “color"
herein incorporated, assurance is given that such hues are firmly

and clearly etched upon the pages of the Minute Books. No attempt



will be made to dream up images of the lonz dead people involved in

thie work of the Church, nor to embellish the rainbow tints that have

not faded with the passing yeers. Such an attempt would result on-

1y in the fabrication of a grotesque burlesque and defeat entirely

tre purpose of this endeavor. however, to leave out the smallest

ribbon of color would detract from the interest of tris history =

poor as it may be!
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"In the beginning was the Word, and the
Word was with God, and the Word was God.

"The same was in the beginning with God.

"All things were made by him; and without
him was not any thing made that was made.

"In him was life; and the life was the
light of men.

"And the light shineth in darkness; and
the darkness comprehended it not.

"There was a man sent from God, whose
name was John,

"The same came for a witness, to bear
witness Sf the Light, that all men througlh
him might believe.

"hLe was not that Light, but was sent to

bear witness of that Light,"

John 1:1-8.




In the beginning, as concerning Dover Baptist Church, William
Webber was the man sent from God to bear witness of the Light. So
faithfully did he bear such witness that today this church stands a
living memorial to his untiring efforts, his love and reverence for
the God he served. In early manhood William Webber chose the direc-
tion fe would take and he allowed notling to alter his original de-
cision,

Dover Baptist Churck is located seven-tenths of a mile from
ianakin on the east side of Route #621, This beautiful church of
Colonial architecture is a far cry from its beginning whrich was a
one-robm log structure on the opposite, or west, side of Route #621
(then knovn as .anakin Ferry Road) and slightly to the south of the
spot on which the present church stands. By the szme token, many moons
have waxed and waned since the first service was held in the original
"weeting House."

At the time it was decided to make an attempt to compile a
history of Dover Church there remained only two people who could tell
us anything at all of those earlier days, i.e. Mrs. Annie Forloine
Clarke (widow of Luther Calvin Clarke), and lr. Jenkin Jones. Born
in the year 1877, wrs. Clarke has been a life-time resicdent of Manakin.

Mr, Jones, born in Cardiff, Wales, in the year 1872, came to the Mana-
kin area in 1888 and has lived there ever since. While neither krs.
Clarke nor wr. Jones ever attended services in the originallMeeting

House, they do remeuber the frame-work of the building which was still

standing when kr. Jones came to luanakin and wien lirs. Clerke was a young
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€lril. Their recollections were crystal clear concerning the matters

discussed with them and their contributions to this work invaluable,
for their ability to reach deep down into the bin of memory and €X=
tract important events has been of inestimable aid to-this writer.

from the information they have given, it is not difficult for
one familiar with this area of the county to visualize that simple
little building facing the rising sun with its door swung open to wel-
core one and all who sought to worship God. when forming that mental
Picture one would, of course, instinctively think of the horse and
bugzy and the surrey with the fringe on top, even a cart drawn by one
or a pair of oxen, for that was a time of slow, measured tread, when
motor vehicles of violent colors and equally violent speeds had not yet
been dreamed of,

At this point it seems expedient to interrupt the history of
Dover Baptist Church long enough to interpose a few remarks concerning
the County in which it is located.

Goochland became a county in its own right in the year 1727,

It was rormed from Henrico and was the first division of that original
shire, Goochland was named for 3ir William Gooch, the Colony's chief
executive from 1727 to 17LY.

»t the time of its formation, Goochland's boundaries extended
from Tuckahoe Creek, on both sides of James River, indefinitely westward.
This entire territory was once the land of the powerful honacan Indians.
The Indian population gradually declined and by the yezr 1700 the greater
portion of the ronacan tribe had been driven away. Some few who escaped
continued to camp in the region until after 1702, The name lionacan is

perpetuated by the region known as llanakin on the north side of James

River in the present Goochland County, near the location of Dover Bartist




Church. However, it should be borne in mind that tre rermanent Indian
Villages in this area were located on the south side of James River. The
village of wowhemencho, later called i.onacan Tovm, on the south bank of
the river between 3ernards Creek on tlie east and Jones' Creex on the west,
is the village to be here considered, for this was the locztion of the
Fuguenot settlers in the ye:r 1700. Although the Huguenot settlement was
established on the south side of the river, many of these new arrivals
later made their homes on the north side of the river and in the ;resent
wanaidn vicinity,

having been discovered many years earlier, coal was actively mined
in the area near .anakin between the years 1740 and 1750. Tre Dover Coal
vines Company carried on mining operations for a number of years thereafter
furnishing employment for many peorple, with the result that i.anakin soon
became a thriving and well populated village,

Dover Episcopal Churci: was built on Lover Jreek ocetieen 1720 and
1724. Goochland Baptist Church was organized in 1771, bByrd Presbyterian
Churcn was founaed in 1745, wany wealthy and influential families lived in
Goochland and even then the county .as well spotted with paletial Coleonial
mansiorns.

The purpose of the above digression is merely to point out the fact
that at the time this history begins (1773) Goochland County ana the .anakin
terrain were by no means trects or rezions uncultivated and uninhabited by

human beings.
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The tiny seed trat finally grew into being and became DOVer
Saptist Church, was unquestionaoly planted in the year 1766 when Colonel
Samuel Harris of Pittsylvania County came to Goochland and held one of
his many camp meetings. After that initial visit he returned each year
until churches were established throughout the Goochland region.

It was in 1767 that William Webber, then twenty years of age,
hieard Colonel Harris preach at one of his annual camp meetings in
Goochiland. Le became converted and was baptized by Rev. John Waller.
Stortly thereafter he was ordained to preach,

There is available far too little information concerning the
early life of /illiam webber; however, one fact stands out as a brizht
and shining star - he was fearless in his proclamation of the Gospel.
No Dbars were strong enough to hold him, no adversity too great for him
to overcome in his burning zeal to hold high the lamp that QOUld light-
en the footsteps of those who walked in darkness.

kr. Semple speaks of xr, Webber as "a man of sound and correct
Judgment, well acquainted with mankind, well versed in the scriptures,
sound in the principles of the gospel and ingenious in defending them."

William Wiebber was one of eight children. It is said that his
father was financizlly able to give his children excellent educational
training. The reason for not having done so probably was better known
to William Yebber, Senior, than to anyone else. however, the lack of
"book learning" proved no deterrent to youag William's ambition and
determination to bear witness of the Light,

At the time William Webber was ordained to preach, not one church
now in the Dover Association had been organized so he united with the

Lower Spotsylvania Church since that church was near his home., He be-

came one of the first six "exhorters" in Goochland County and in 1770
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Lower Spotsylvania sent him, along with John Anthony, across the James
River into Chesterfield County to preach., kLere they were seized and
imprisoned on the charge of "preaching the Gospel with no authority
but from above," They remained in prison from December to karch of
1771. There they preached through the prison grates with such effec-
tiveness that the jailer left the cell unlocked, trusting they would
escape. Later when urged to escape they replied: "They have taken us
openly, uncondemned, and have cast us into prison; and now do they cast
us out privily? Nay, verily, but let them come themselves and fetch us
out," Upon finally being released they moved on to Cumberland and es-
tablished Powhatan Church in 1771.

By the year 1771 converts in the Goochland area were gathering
in two meeting houses, one near lianakin, the other in the vicinity of
the present Goochland Baptist Church., Both groups were led by lay ex-
horters who were members ;f Lower Spotsylvania, Definite information
cannot be obtained as to exactly where the Dover group met. Since the
original "Dover keeting liouse® was not constituted until 1773, it can
only be assumed that another point of meeting was utilized during that
period of time,

After the formation of Powhatan Church, William ‘Webber went on
to Middlesex County where he joined John Waller and his associates. On
August 10, 1771, wiile Wiebber was preaching to the congregation from
James 2:18, the lMagistrate came running toward him in a furious rage
and dragzed him from the stage. Webber was imprisoned along with others,
the charge being the same as that made in Chesterfield County. Despite
their imprisonment, Webbef gave notice that they would preach every
Wednesday and Sunday from the windows of the jail and many came to hear

them, although the beating of drums and other means were employed by the
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modb to silence them. On August 26, 1771, they were brouglt into the

County Court of kiddlesex and each was required to give bond that he
“ould not preach in the County for twelve months. Upon their refusal,
tiey were remanded to prison and orders ziven that they be fed on

bread and water, For four days they had nothing else and not enouzh
bread. Turing this imprisonment Webber became critically ill causing
John waller to write to the Urbanna officials on September 20, 1771,

to the effect that “ebver was "in a very low state of health and with-
cut divine interposition, must I think, in a few days, launch off the
Shores of mortality" and urging that this young man be permitted to re-
turn to his mother in Goochland County. liebber's grave illness also ex=-
cited the sympathies of the friends of the entire group who were im-
prisoned. So sympathetic were these friends that they drew up a peti-
tlon asking the county court to release the prisoners and permit them

Lo return home to their distressed families, This petition was present-
ed at the next session of court on September 26, 1771, and the prisoners
were liberated.

Following his release from prison, William Webber returned to
his home community in Goochland County not to die, but to carry on his
work.,

In 1773, when autumn turned the woodlands to red and zold and
brown, when the pines and cedars were at their greenest and the holly
trees were crimson with berries, Dover lMeeting house was constituted
at Manazxin with a membership of forty-five. It was fitting and proper
that William viebber became the first pastor of the Dover keeting House

because it was due almost entirely to his dynamic efforts that it Lad
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become a reality instead of a wispy dream., It was thLen that the labors
of this strong, purposeful man began to pay rewarding dividends for while
the Church thrived under his leadership, the entire commonwealth seemed
to be his parish.

According to available information the original reeting house
was a one-room, log structure. It was built on the west side of what
is presently known as Route #621, which road was then known as hanakin
Ferry Road, and on land slightly to the south of the spot on which the
present Dover Church stands. There is no one left to tell us much about
tris leeting house. Some few recall it in its last stages of decay, when
the framework was used for the storage of hay and later abandoned com-
pletely. hLowever, no one can tell us what occurred in connection with
the heeting house after the new Church was constructed in 1855.

Adjacent to the spot on whicl. the heeting House stood is a
burying ground, said to have been used for the burial of Negroes only,
which would mean slaves or such Negroes as had been set free. A care-
ful investigation of this burying ground revealed little of value as
to actual fact. The burial area was readily located and while there
are no stones or markers to indicate either names or dates, there were
unquestionably a large nuuber of people buried there. Except for the
dense mat of honey=-suckle covering on the sunken graves, the ground
is heavily carpeted with countless layers of pine needles and there is
deep and profound silence broken only by the soft whispering of the
majestic pines that reach upward and outward and constantly guard this
solemn spot. It seemed somewhat odd that no tree has taken root and
grown atop one or more of the graves. It is almost as if even time and

nature have respected these last resting places - that the pines have
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refused to drop seeds upon the rectangular spots and, if perchance the
seeds did drop they have refrained from taking root lest they disturb
the slumbers of those who sleep the long sleep.

¥ingled emotions coursed through my being as I stood there in
the hush of a late autumn afternoon. There was so much I wanted to
know about William Webber's Meeting house and the people who heard him
bpreach,  And what of those people who had been buried there? ihat did
they do, suy and think? Even more important, how had they lived?
When the great silence claimed them were they waiting serenely in the
shadows of old age, or were they just beginning to live this earthly
life? Were they christians or hardened sinners - had their souls
found refuge with our Lternal God or been condemned to eternal dark-
ness? A hundred years and more have passed and graves are forever
silent, yet there was a gentle sigh, picked up by the tall pines and
tossed back and forth in the lengthening shadows of eventide, until
it became an impassioned murmuring., Some would say it was the whisper-
ing of the pines, but to each of us sound is different and to me the
message was clear and distinct - "We, too, have lived! we, too, have
livedi"

Although the heeting House was constituted in tre Yyear 1773,
there is no record of land being given or sold to accomodate the
building until the year 1846, On the 16th day of february, 1846, the

following deed was presented in Goochland Court and was ordered to

be certified:
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"This indenture made this 13th day of January in the year of
our Lord 1846, between Philip Woodson, Senr, of the County of Hanover
of the first part and Tarlton Woodson, Robert Farrar, John E. Ellis,
Josgph Nuckols and Benjamin Nuckols, trustees for the benefit of the
regular Baptist denomination who compose the general association of
Baptists in Virginia of the second part Witnessetl, that whereas
Matthew Woodson (now dec'd) did in his life time cause a meeting house
call'c Dover to ve built upon his own land in the County of Goochland
for the use of the Baptist denomination and the land upon which the
s2id meeting louse stands contzining one acre, be the same more or less,
is a part of the land inherited by his son, Philip Woodson, and the said
Philip Woodson in order to carry out the design of his fatler, the said
xatthew Woodson, dec'd, as also his own more effectfully doth hereby
for and in consideration of the premises as well as for the further
consideration of the sum of five dollars, to him in hand paid by the
sald trustees, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged give, grant,
bargain, sell and convey, and cy these presents hath given, zranted,
bargained, sold and conveyed to the said Tarlton Woodson, Robert Far-
rar, John E. Ellis, Joseph Nuckols and Benjamin Nuckols, trustees as
aforesaid, their heirs, ex'rs, admr's, survivors and successors for
the use of the Baptist desomination aforesaid for a place of divine
worship forever, the piece or parcel of land upon which the said meet-
ing lLouse stands containing one acre, be the same more or less, with
all and every thing thet is upon or pertains to the said land, and the

r

said Philip Woodson, the aforesaid piece or parcel of land, against the
claim and demand of all and every person to them, the trustees aforesaid,

their heirs, etc., as aforesaid for the uses and purposes aforesaid, shall
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and will by these presents warrznt and forever defend. In witness
whereof the said Philip Woodson has hereunto set his hand and causes
iis seal to be affixed the day and year above written.

His

Philip X TWoodson (SEAL)"
hark

Sealed and delivered in presence of: Joseph Rock, Thos. Tauman, John

G. Tauman.

"At a Court held for Goochland County 16th February 18L6 this
indenture was presented in Court and proved by the oaths of Joseph Rock
and Thomas Tauman, witnesses thereto, to be the act and deed of PLilip
iloodson, Senr., which wes ordered to oe certified.

And in the Clerk's O:fice of Goochland County Court lst August
1846,

This Indenture was fully proved by the oaths of John G. Tauman,
another witness thereto, to ve the act and deed of rhilip Wocdson, Senr.,
and admitted to record."

"Teste:r Nar: ¥. Killer; C.G.C.%
Recorded in D.B. No. 3L, Page 389, Goochland County Clerk's Office.

A casual reading of this deed would indicate that from the time
of its constitution in 1773 until January of 18L6, a period of some seventy-
three years, the leeting house stood on land belonging to hatthew Woodson
wiich land later passed on in ownerskLip to his son, Philip Woodson; that
in January, 1lbL6, Philip Woodson, carrying out his father's wisres, as
well as his own, did then convey the said land to Trustees for the bene-

fit of the Regular Baptist Denomination. It is interesting to mote that
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the piece or parcel of land with "all and everything that is upon it

Or pertains to the said land" was deeded for "a place of divine worship

—

——

forever" with no stipulation as to what should occur if and when the

weeting house might be abandoned.

Matthew Woodson and his wife, Elizabeth, had eleven children.

Philip was their eighth child. tatthew Woodson was undoubtedly a man

of considerable holdings. His will, dated February, 179L, and probated

at Goochland Courthouse on November 11, 174k, was indeed a lengthy one.

In it he clearly states what each person should inherit. ke even remembered
the Rev. Tilliam “ebber in his will. however, the stipulation we are con-

cerned with reads as follows:

"To my son, Philip, one tract of land lyinz below the mouth
of Lewis'Gutt and the south side of the River Road, in-
cluding the kanakin Ferry, being the remainder of the tract
whereon I now live. Also the remainder of my lands the
east side the ikeeting Fouse Road and north side the River
Road likewise." (Xecorded in 'Vill Book 16, Page 330,
Goochland County Clerk's Office).

The above does not give any definite boundaries, neither does
it in any manner sugzest that the property on which the ieeting Fouse
stood became the property of Philip Woodson after his father's death.

Actually it leans very much the other way for the will of Latthew iioodson

distinctly stipulates "lands east side the ieeting Eouse Road." 4 care-

ful study of this phraseology would stronzly suzgest that katthew Voodson

considered the lieeting house property already disposed of.

As stated, PiLilip was one of eleven children and he was married

at the time the deed referred to was drawn. A careful search has pro-

duced no evidence that either the Regular Baptist Denomination or the
Dover Baptist Church has made a claim of any sort to this property since

its abandonment in the year 1855. Considering all of the factors invol-

ved here one naturally wonders if the deed bearing only Philip Woodson's
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mark as a signature has any legal value at all. This would be 2 mtter
for the courts to deterwine and suck litigation has no place here. e
do know that irrespective of what matthew Woodson's wishes might have
been during his lifetime, nothinz was done to insure the carrying out
of the same other than to permit the heeting hHouse to be erected on his
land - and he may honestly have considered this to be a surficient deed.
Using the date of the above deed as a milepost, it is certzin
that the lLieeting House was being used as a place of divine worship as
late as January of 1lslé. Also, it is reasonable to assume that no plans

34400 build-
were then in the waxing for procurement of additional land or the

ing of another Church.

T R
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e return now to some of the events that took place in connection
With Dover Baptist Church through the years.

In May of 1775, one of the nost notewarthy meetings in thke history
of Virgnia 3aptists was held at the Lover weeting house. Delegates I[rom
Sixty churches from all over Virginia gatlered for the gre:t debate over
Arminianism vs. Calvanism. As a result of the debate the Arminizns separ-
ated and formed a convention out under the trees. After several hours of
weering and praying and exchanging of messages, the two groups united
when they discovered their differences were in the context of their unity.

Following the Revolutionary War in 1782 the General Association
of Virginia Baptists met again and at the Lover ieeting Kouse. At thLis
time the Association was divided into four districts - two to the north
and two to the south of the James River with the fall line as the east
and west boundary. The lower quarter north of the James become "Lower
Cistrict."

In 1783 the Lower District made up of twenty-twe churches amd
Six hundrecd members, organized and elected William '.ebber as ..oaerator
and John waller as Clerk. At the first meeting the Association memorial-
ized the Virginia Assembly to amend the law "so that the full ard impartial
liberty of all denominations may be indubitably served." It was through
the efforts of William Webber as lobbyist that the Assembly was memorizl-
ized to enact this amendment.

In October 178L Delegates from the four associations, including

delegates from the churches of the old Ketocton Association, met at the

Dover lieeting Louse to form the General Committee of Virginia Bartists as
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4 guardian of religious liberty, William ebber was elected Loderato

Fe served as .oderator the entire life of this Committee from 178L to
175%.

In 1788 The Lower District took the name of "Lover" honoring
the Church William Vebber, the Loderator served.

Following the dissolution of the General Committee of Virginia,
the General .eeting of Correspondence was organized in 1600 to preserve
union and harmony among the Zaptist Churcles of Virginia, William -ebber
was elected Loderator and served as suchk until his death in 180s.

.1799-1800 mark the years of the Breat Revivel at Dover keeting
couse., The London Baptist Annual Register reported that i/illiam -ebber
baptized one hundred and seventy converts and "their Lappy season 1s
Still going on." ZFrom this it is very apparent that the Light so faith-
fully and diligently borne by William Vebber was casting its radiance
upon mény who sought a closer fellowship with God.

Following is a copy of the letter reporting activities of Dover

ueeting Louse during this period:

"London, Zngland (1801) Baptist Annusl Register. Editor: Rev.
John Rippon, D.D. (pp 785-788) From Lover issociation Letter
(meeting Oct., 11-13,1800).

"Dover is a church, lying in the county of Goochlznd of as
old a date &s any in our Association, and is under the
pastoral care of Elder Vm. Viebber. It has for many years
past been a church of considerable respectability, con-
teining many useful and pious members, and from time to
time has enjoyed several revivals of religion; but for the
last eight or ten years past they have complained of cold
times. Sowe of thelr nost useful members being removed
to the Church Triumphant, and others much afflicted; they
had many [ears that the walls of their once happy Zion
would be beaten down, and the city given up to ravages of
the enemy.
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"In the summer of 1799, scme favorable symptoms began to
make their appearance in this church. The meetings be-
came more crowded, and the hearers more attentive and
solemn; many began to be seriously affected, and to en-
quire for the way of holiness. Belivers seemed to re-
ceive an increase of strength, and to travail with ear-
nest and heartfelt desires for the salvation of the
ungodly neighbors and friends. In the course of the fall
many obtained a hope of eternal life, and were baptized;
and many appeared to be not far from the Kingdom of Heaven.
Trhe return of winter did not chill the ardent zeal of the
people. The fire within enabled them to bear patiently
the cold without, Ii.eetings were very frequent both by
day and by night. The coldest and darkest night did not

deter the peorle from assembling. Under such divine
exercises,

"They did not fell Cecember cold,
Nor think the darkness long.

"Wiithout any material variation their happy seasons continued
through the spring and summer; and vie are intormed it is still
going on; the following clause is extracted from their letter:
"we have had ror little better than twelve months a glorious
revival of religion; such as we never before saw. Ve have
added by baptism, since the stir, about 170 members, and we
hope the work is still going on amongst us'. Oh, that men

would przise the Lord for his goodness, and for his wonder-
ful works to the children of men.,"

The phrase "since the stir" evidently has reference to the Revo-
lutionary War. If one should ponder from whence the 170 additional mem-
bers came, trhey need only to bear in mind that Manakin at this time was
a thriving village. Coal was being extensively mined in this immedizte
area and many families lived in and around Manakin. While it is true
trat many of the Huguenots had departed from Manakin, it is zlso true
that many remained in the vicinity. This village was to continue in its

growth as the years passed and more and more people settled there.

Until the year 1809 Willian ¥ebber faithfully bore witness of
the Light, but on February 29th of that year the hester of A11 Good

Things called him to his eternal rest. He died at the age of sixty-two
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and was buried at his old home, two and three-quarter miles north of

the present Dover Church on Route #621. There is no stone to mark his

last resting place. Set apart in a large cultivated field is a circle

of land upon which trees, of not too great statue, are growing. Peri-
winkle crawls lazily and indifferently around about the interior of
this circle. The untrained eye cannot discern where within that circle
the body of William ‘ebber must long ago have mingled with the dust to
which it was entrusted.

It may be seid that Willian Webber was almost solely responsidle
for the constitution of Dover Churct., Certainly, he was the pastor of
this church from its beginning until Lis death and was never, €even nomi-
nelly, pastor of any other church.

A monument was erected in 1923 in memory of Reverend William

weober. This monument stands in front of Dover Church at Lanakin,

Following is a copy of the inscription thereon:

" ILuThe WEBBER

1707 1609
"First Pastor of Dover Church, 1773-1809.
Imprisoned in the jails of Chesterfield
and kiddlesex Counties for preaching the
Gospel with "no authority but from above."
lioderator of the General Assoc:ation, of the
General Committee and of the keeting of Cor-
respondence.
Irected by the Churches of the Dover Association
in memory of its First koderator 1783-1806.
His remains rest at his old home 2-3/L miles north.

523",
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katthew Woodson ‘Webber followed his father as Pastor of
Dover Church, but he gradually yielded to the influence of Alexander
Campbell, In 1832 the Association dismissed him along with five
other "reformer" ministers, and in 1u3lL Dover Baptist Church was ex-
cluded from the Association, Later, Latthew Woodson iiebber moved to
Tennessee and in the year luli2 Dover Church was returned to the hAsso-
ciation, this tiwe under the leadership of Robert Farrar. At that
time the church reported thirty members. It is.no small tragedy that
the large wembership, built up and shiepherded through the years by
«illiam Webber, should have been so disasterously reduced thLroucgh the
misguided influence and leadership of Lis very own son, ikatthew Yood-
son webber!

Robert rarrar continued as pastor atlDover Church until 1847
when Joseph Rock took over the pastoral duties. However, Lxr. Roch's
sojourn was a short one for in 184S the very able and greatly loved
Rev. Archar B. Smith became the Pastor of Dover Churct.

It was witl the arrival of the Rev. Smith that the first
minutes of Dover Church were recorded. If there are prior minutes
they are not available to this writer nor are they known to be in ex-
istence. Lxtracts of such minutes as may prove of interest will be
laeter referred to.

from childhood Lover Baptist Church has endured many hard-
ships and overcome many obstacles. Perhaps its infancy, spent in the
one-room, log structure across the road and under the guidance of the

Rev. William ‘Webber, was the happiest period it has ever experienced.

There are no records to support this conjecture other than the letter



18,

of the Baptist Annual Register, quoted on Pages 14 and 15 of this
history. Certainly, after the death of Rev. lWiebber the Church, under
the pastoral care of Latthew Tiebber, lost considerable statue in the
eyes of the Dover Association and was, for ten years, excluded from
the Association, following the departure of katthew Webber from Dover,
tLe hard climb upward began. From available minutes of Church weetlngs
one must readily agree that this Church has known "lean years". ihether
this was brought about because of the small membership, made up of mem-
bers in the average income braciet; internal strife, faulty judgment
on the part of those in charge, the many changes in pastoral care or
a lack of interest is not evidenced by any record. however, it is
entirely possible that all of these factors have entered into the pic-
turs during the life of this Church. |

In an effort to set the mood for the year 18L%, as well as
the yesrs that follow, it is deewmed advisable to give here such ex-
cerpts frow the iinute Books as relate directly to the personzl growta
of Dover 3artist Church. This is believed to be the only sincere man-
ner in which it is possible to make a reasonably clear presentation of
the true facts,

Following is a copy of the Constitution appearing in the first

winute Book. This writing bears no date.

CONSTITULTION

".hereas we believe it to be necessary far every christian
Church to be governed by rules and regulations, based upon the prin-
ciples and faith of the Gospel, therefore we the mewbers of Dover
Baptist Church, in regular Church meeting assembled, do establish
and ordain the following articles of faith and practice, in the
constitution of the Lover Baptist Church.
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"lst: e believe a Gospel Church congregational and there-
fore to consist of men and women professing christianity, mutually
agreeing in faith and practice and binding themselves tozether Ior
the purpose of promoting religious worship: namely, preaching, prayer,
Baptism, the Lord's Supper, etc,

"2nd: We believe that every such Church should be independent
of any human head, civil or ecclesiastic, acknowledging Jesus Christ
as their only head and lawgiver, to whom alone they are accountable
bothk as to faith and practice, having the sole right to choose their
own oflicers and to dismiss them at will.

"3rd: Candidates for membership in such Church shall prior
to their admission give a satisfactory evidence of their faith in
Christ their Godly Savior for past sins, their willingness to live

in obedience to the truth, as it is in Jesus and shall be baptized
by immersion.

"hth: As we believe it to be the province of the Church to
admit members into her society and fellowship; we likewise believe
it to be equally in her province to exclude them when unfit for the
same, either on account of false doctrine or immoral practice.

"Sth: Ve believe it to be not only privilege, but the im-
perative duty of the Church to meet from time to time and to adjourn
from time to time for public worship, discipline amd good government,
that they may ever keep in remembrance the solemn responsibility in-
cumbent upon them as christians.

"6thL: We believe the male members only are to exercise the
discipline and government of the Church and that a majority of the
members present at any Church meeting may decide upon any and all
questions, which arise in the Church, and their decision shall be
final, unless a reconsideration of the subject matter in controversy
be moved by a memver, who voted in the majority on the original ques-
tion.

"7th: Tie believe it to be in accordance with the teachings
of Scripture, that the discipline of the Church be performed before
the Church only.

"8th: In our Church meetings the Pastor or kinister is to
preside as Chairman or woderator. It shall be his duty while sitting
to preserve good order and to see that only one member speak at a
time and in the absence of the Pastor or hinister, the Church may
appoint a lioderator Protem.

"9th: Any member about to speak shall stand up and address
the Lioderator, who shall see that he is not interrupted whkile speak-
ing; unless upon misapprehension or personal explanation.
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"l0th: A member may not speak more than twice to thet
Same proposition without the consent of the soderator, and no

ggre than thirty minutes at any time without the consent of the
urch,

: =
: - "llth: No member shall absent himself during Church mee
ings without leave from the ioderator.

"12th: As the discipline and government of the Church l?;ss
mediately concerns every member thereof, we believe it to be acgurch
neglect of Christian duty to be generally absent from regular i
meetings, and a sin against the Great head of the Church, wholly

nezlect this important part of Church Government and Divine Yiorshlpe

"13th: All Church meetings to be opened and closed Dy Pray=
er, either by the .oderator or some person appointed by him.

“lith: Activated by motives of a high and holy nature W€
delieve in our Church meetings a spirit of forbearance and brotherts
love should prevail, that harmony and Christian sympathy shogla per-=
vade every breast, that we may toil together in this labor of love
not only for each others good, but for the building up of the waste
places of Zion and for the Glory of God."

o % ¥ O

The {irst minutes of record read:

"At a Church meeting held at Dover the Third Saturday in
October, after divine worship proceeded to business. kembers pre-
sent: A. B. Smith, John Lewis, Thomas Jones, Alfred Cosby, John
Jsohnson, Thomas worgan, ------liarris, Jacob r.owlder, Robert rarrear.
John Johnson and Rooert Farrar was to visit Brother Charles Johnson,
Thomas Jones was to see Robert Goode, a land man, it oeing a day
set apart ror collectioas of offers, the church thought best re-
port till the next meeting. Tl.e meeting then adjourned.™

No year is indicated as to the time of writiag of the avove
and no signature affixed to the recordation. It is interesting to
note that Robert Farrar, the forizer pastor as preceding Joseph Rock,

was a member of tle congregation.
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"At a regular meeting of the Dover Baptist Church held at
the Leeting House on the 15 of Dec. 1B84Y the following Brethren
Were present: R, Farrar, J. Johnson, korgan Howlder, James Lawton
and Elder A. B. Smith.

“l; The meeting was opened with prayer by A. B. Smith

"2, The minutes of the last meeting were read.

"3. The election of Deacons came up, when upon ballot,

Brother Rovert farrar and Thomas E. vones were elec-
ted to fill this office.

"4. Bro. John Johnson was elected as Clerk of the Church.

"S. A letter of dismission was granted to Richard Terril,

the servant of Royal Crouch,"

It would seem that these minutes were never completed as a
comma follows the name of Royal Crouch and no signature appears indi-
cating who wrote the minutes. The year 1850 starts out in a business-
like fashion stating:

"A Record of the Proceedings of Dover Church, Goochland, for
the year 1350,"

With Bro. J. Johnson in the Clerk's chair the minutes were
recorded with greater precision.

At a meeting in January, 1850, with five members presen:,
the Constitution was read and the 8th Article thereof amended. lo
record of what the change was,

Thos. howel and iiatilda, two free colored members were ex-—
cluded for violation of the 7th Commandment.

The case of Robt. Good (colored member) was called and con-
tinued until Sunday. Apparently these minutes were not closed for

the following appears:

"Sunday after service the Church convened to attend to the
case of Robt, Good and after examination he was restored to fellow-
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ship.

_ "Srethren .organ, holder and Johnson, were appointed &
comzittee to wait upon Bro. John Crostic. Bro. Thos. w.organ ap-
polnted Treasurer of the Church."

: n
3/16/1650 At a regular meeting with four present, Brethiﬁ
worgan and Johnson were appointed to cite Brother Crostic to appe
before the Church at its next meeting.

5/16/1850 At a regular meeting the committee in e c?:f
of Bro. Crostic was continued. Brother A.B. Smith appointed De
sate to the General Association.

6/15/1850 At a regular meeting with three present the Caii_
of 3rother Crostic was the only item of business. Eis case Wwas ca
ed znd continued,
The

7/20/1850 Four members were present at this meeting.
-ase of 3rother Crostic was again called and continued. On motion,
the Sons of Temperance were granted the privilege of holding thelr
meetings in the ieeting house until further action of the Church upon
the subjiect.

0/17/1850 here it seewms that Srother Crostic would at long
last be disposed of., The committee in the case of this lost soul
reported and on motion Brother John Crostic was excluded from the
fellowship of this Church. There is no record to show what orfgnse
Bro. Crostic committed. Surely it must have been a grave one since
it required at least six months to mz<e a decision in his case.

v/10/1350 This meeting seemed to be ror the purpose of
electing officers. 3Bro. J. Johnson resigned as Clerx and J. E.
Lauzl.ton was appointed in his place. Bro. J. dohnson was appointed
Treasurer. Bro. im., Howell was appointed Deacon of the colared
meubers of the Church. OBSrethren Smith and rarrar were appointed
Delegates to the Dover Association and one dollar was sent as a
coatribution.

10/19/1850 Bro. J. Johnson was appointed & committee to
wait on Bro. Crarles Johnson and cite him to appear at the next
regular meeting of the Church to answer the charge of neglect of
christian duty.

11/16/1850 The committee in the case of Bro. Chas. Johnson
reported and was continued and requested to see Bro. Johnson again,

12/1),/1850 The minutes read as follows: "After preaching the
Church adjourned for business. Present Brethren Smith, Farrar, Johnson
and Laughton and eight sisters i % % % ", This is the first time the
word "business" has entered into the picture and the first record of
any sisters attending a Churck meeting. It is interesting to note
trat their attendance was two to one.
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At this meeting the committee on Ero. Chas. Johnson's case
wes continued. Brethren Smith and Farrar were appointed a committee

to see Brotler .orgen charged with being intoxicated and using pro-
fane language, etc.

1/1¢/1851 Thirteen sisters present. The case of Ero. Chas.
Johnson was called and upon the report of the committee Le was ex-

.cluded from the fellowship of the Church.

The case of Thos. iorgan came up {or decision., The comwittee
reported tle charges true, and saw no hope of reclaiming him and, on
iwotion he was excluded.

3/16/16¢51 The minutes report present five male members by
neie and "severel" sisters. Sister Elvira Leughton wes granted per-
mission to teach school in the keeting Louse upon condition "she
Keep the house in orcer ana secure, which would supersede the necessity
of a sexton." Bro. Laughton was required to procure a lock and ras-
tenings Zor the windows. Bro. Laughton wis also appointed to confer
with the Trustees of Lover iweeting house upon having the ground sur-
veyed belonging to the Church and report at the next Church meeting.

L/19/1851 Present three male members «nd six sisters, indi-
cating that the sisters were intent upon getting things done. &Ero.
Jvohinson acted as loderator at the meeting. Comrittee to procure
a lock for the door of tlie ieeting house was continued. The committee
to confer with the Trustees in regard to having the acre of ground bte-
longing to the keeting house surveyed, reported that they had the lot
surveyed and the cornerstones put down.

Note: Attention is called to the phrase "a lock for the door
of the lieeting house." This would suggest that there was cnly one
door to the building. Also, the committee reported that the "corner-
stones" were put dovmn. This might imply that as many as four stones,
(one to mark each corner of the lot) were put down., This writer made
an extensive but fruitless search for trese stones in the fall of
1959. It is entirely possible that they have sunk deep into the
ground or that they mey at some time kave been removed.

5/17/1851 Bro. Laughton was appointed to write the letter
to the General Association. Bro. J. Johnson was appointed a Lele-
gate. There vere "several" sisters in attendance.

6/11,/1851 A "number" of sisters attended this meeting.

9/21/1851 The "sisters"™ are no longer being counted. Nor
have they been mentioned by name; however, the record states that
Umany" sisters attended this meeting.

Bro. John E. Laughton, Church Clerk, was requested to write
the letter to the Dover Association. Brethren Joinson and Bowles
were appointed Delegates and one dollar sent to the funds of the
Lssociation.
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10/30/1851 "After service the Church convened for the gﬁg
pose of receiving members when Frances Willis, kary R. L?ughtOZEter
@ coloured man, Jerry, were rec'd as candidates for baptism. mmand
which the Church proceeded to the water, in obedience to the co

of its ascended head, to bury the willing converts in the liquid
grave,n

Note: There is no record as to where the baptizing toog
place. There were ponds in the vicinity, owned by various peop e;e
and there was the James River. Whether these willing converts ;etre
"buried" in a liquid grave supplied by the James River or one o} a;&
ponds is not known. Kowever, it is thought that October 30th =
year is a trifle chilly for such outdoor activities.

1/18/1852 Twenty sisters present. Bro. Jessee Bowles Was
elected a Ceacon.

"Brethren Laughton, Bowles, Johnson and Farrar were apPO;nted
a committee to bring in a preamble and resclution in regard to the
future disposition of the Leeting house."

"bro. 4., Cosby was appointed to act with Bro. Johnson to
ccllect funds to pay the salary of the Pastor."

"Sisters Duval, Laughton and -owles were appointed a committee

to procure funds to purchase lamps for the Leeting house. Twenty
sisters present,"

2/11/1852 The committee appointed at the last meeting to re-
port upon the future disposition of the lkeeting rouse at Dover made
the following report:

"Trereas the Keeting house at Dover was originally built
and dedicated to the Worship of Almiglty God by the Baptist, and
used by them exclusively for a long time; And Whereas the Church
Some years ago was distracted by schisms and reduced to z small
number, all through the introduction of false doctrines; And
Yhereas God, who is ever faithful to his promise, has watched
over and protected this small number, as he ever has his people in
all ages of trial and persecution, and within the last twelve mont:.s
has visited them with an outpouring of his spirit and added to their
number such as we trust will be saved; Therefore we deem it the duty
of the Church to endeavor to preserve it from similar disaster by
prohibiting the exhibition of any doctrine not clearly deduced from
the Word of God as revealed to us through Jesus Christ and his
Apostles and as Infant Baptism, Salvation without faith, in Christ,
Communion without Scriptural Baptisms or Evangelical Powers exer-—
cised Dy one men over others, are no where revealed in the Sacred
Scriptures, either expressly or inferentially; We most solemnly
protest against any and all such Doctrines being taught in this
Sacred place of VWorship, And Whereas; it is made the duty of the
Presiding or Ruling Elder of the Methodist Church, or one of its
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Ministers to promulge the Doctrines of the Methodist Churci at its
regular Quarterly hieetings, and as some of the above, with other
unscriptural doctrines are held and taught by them; Therefore we
cannot consent for them to hold their Quarterly lieetings any more
in this house, or that any liinister of any other denomination than

the Regular Baptist shall preach in this house except by permission
of the Church,"

The preceding report was received and adopted with one dis-
senting vote,

At this same meeting, on motion Bro. John Johnson was authori-
zed on oehalf of the Church to grant permission to Pseudo-Baptist
kinisters to preach in this house when application was made if he
should deem it expedient. A committee was raised to ascertzin the
cost of underrinning the iieeting House and providing better benches.
The committee on lamps reported thzt they had collected nearly money

enough and would have the balance in time, whereupon Bro. Cosby was
appointed to purchase the lamps.

3/21/1852 "Lord's Day Afternoon. The Pastor with a partion
of the Church repaired to the water, where the ordinance of baptism
was administered to Frances and nartha, colored women belonging to
Bro. J. Johnson, and Lary Jane Freeman, Free colored woman,"

Officially the first day of spring! Yet one shivers at the
thought of river or pond baptism in karck, This is the second bap-

tism referred to so far, the first having taken place in late
October of 1851,

L/17/1852 The committee on lamps reported they had raised
the necessary money and it was ready. Brother Cosby was requested to

procure the lamps at the earliest opportunity, and the committee was
discharged.

The committee to ascertain the cost of repairing the lieeting
House and providing better benches reported that this work would cost
®L41, Tie report was read and the committee discharged. The Church
resolved to have the work done. A committee was appointed to raise
the necessary funds for this purpose.

5/16/1852 Bro. B, F. Bowles was appointed a Delegate to
th.e General Association and ten dollars sent. It was agreed that
the Church pay the expenses of its Delegate. Bro. Laughton was ap-
pointed to write the letter to the General hAssociation.

9/19/1852 dro. Cosby reported the committee on repairs and
oenches had in part discharged the duties assigned it, that the

benches were made and in their place. Report approved and committee
continued.

Brethren Cosby and Johnson were chosen as Delegates to the
Lover Association, and the Clerk of the Church was appointed to write
the letter to the Association. Following is a copy of his letter:
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"Dover, Goock.land Sept. 18, lo52.

"The Dover Church, at Dover Goochland Co., to the Dover Lssociation,
send greeting:

"Dear Brethren:

"Our little Church is still united in love, each striving
to keep tl:e unity of the spirit in the bonds of peace.

eased the Lord to

"Since we last addressed you, it has pl hall be

visit us in mercy, and add to our number, such we trust as s
saved.

"We have rec'd during the Associationsl year twenty-eig?ﬁ
by baptism. and five by lett.r, 2% white, and L colored, whxcﬁ mexe
our whole number 87. Sixty-two whites and twenty-iive colored.

Dismissed one by
with one
d have

"ie have lost none by Death, Lxcluded none,
letter. e have a Sabbath School connected with our Church,
officer, L regular Teachers and an average of 30 scholars, coul
a much larger school if we had the teachers.

"Ye have appointed Brethren A. B. Smith, John Johnson &
hlfred Cosby our Delegates to your Body and herewith send Two Dollars
to the funds of the Association.

"Hoping the Lord may meet with you, and bless you, we remain
yours in christian bonds.

"By order of the Church

"(Signed) John E. Laughton, C. Clk."

10/15/1652 ALt a regular meeting with many sisters present,
tre Committee on benches and repairs was continued. Brother Farrar
was appointed to see Brother Earris in regard to disorderly conduct.
It was resolved that the Church take up "publick" collection monthly
for the purpose of furnishing the Church with light and fuel.

12/18/1352 The committee on the case of Bro. ‘m, harris was
continued with instructions to cite Bro. Harris to appear at the next
Church meeting. The coumitee on benches and repairs never having
made a final report, was continued.

1/15/1853 The committee on Bro. harris' case reported that
he had discharged the duty assigned him. Report received and coumittee
discharged. Bro. Harris' case was continued.

John E, Laughton was elected Deacon in place of bro. Jessee
Sowles, removed from the county.

The committee on benches and repairs made a partial regort
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and was continued.

Bro. A, Cosby asked for a letter of dismission, but his ap-
Plication was "laid upon the table."

3/19/1853 Bro. Harris was apparently reluctant to appear
at the Church keeting for although the committee appointed in his
case was instructed in December, 1852, to cite Bro. Harris to appear
at the next church meeting, he had not to thLe date of warch 19, 1853,
put in an appearance. His case was called at this neeting and Bro.
;aughnon was appointed to cite him to appear at the next church Meet-
ing.

The committee on benches and repairs was continued and the
balance reported in tlie Church Treasury was 3L..43.

L/15/1353 The coumittee on Bro. Harris' case reported that
Bro. Harris desired no longer to be in the Church. On wotion Ym. J.
Harris was excluded from fellowship of the Church ror immoral and
unchristianlixke conduct.

The coumittee on repairs reported. Ahmong others, Brother A.
Cosby was granted a letter of dismission.

5/14/1553 Brethren Smith, Farrar & Lauzhton were appointed
Delegates to the Genzral hssoclation, and Bro. Laughton appointed to
vrite the Church letter. Bro. Smith was appointed to represent the
Church in the Lissionary Society.

6/18/1853 Brother Carpenter was allowed the privilege of
teaching singing school in the kieeting Louse.

8/20/1353 It was agreed that the Church hold a protracted
meeting, to commence on the third Saturday in September, A committee
Wwas appointed to collect funds to enlarge and repair the ieeting Eouse.

It is noted that at the April meeting (L/15/1853) Bro. A.
Cosby was gzranted a letter of dismission from the Church; however,
Bro. Cosby is named as one of the above committee which was appointed

8/20/1553.

Y/28/1853 Brethren A. B, Smith and R. Farrar appointed
Delegates to the Dover Association, and the Clerk appointed to write
the letter.

10/15/1853 Bro. Cosby evidently did not take his letter of
dismission very seriously. He was present at this meeting and was
appointed vo "procure glass for windows and put them in and fastenings
for the doors and put them on."

Note: At a meeting in April, 14851, reference was made to the
"door" of the hieeting Louse. At the above meeting "doors" are refer-
red to. There is no way to determine the actual size of the lheeting
House, nor do we know how many doors and windows there were.
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Fonde: 1/1/155, Bro. Samuel 5. Luval appointed collector of

wist tor ?nlarging the .eeting touse in place of Bro. Cosby who
'€d 1o De excused from servine,

R ) }5/25(135h Bro. J. E. Laughton appointed Delegate to the
veneral =Ssoclation, and also to write the annual letter.

. 6/17/165L Brethren Farrar, Johnson and S. S. Duval appointed
@ committee to receive proposals for enlarging the heeting house.

7/17/1654 The committee on proposals reported partially and
Was continued. On motion the Church resolved to make an effort po
ouild a new hLouse of worship and instructed the committee to recelve
Droposals for same.

Sabbath Morning 7/18/1854: "It being thought expedient and
lawful that the coloured population should be instructed out of the
word of God every Sabbath evening, On motion it was resolved by the
Church that Brethren Laughton and Cosby be licensed to read the word
of God and exercise their gifts in expounding the same to the people
wherever God in his providence may call thewm."

Brother Cosby continues in the limelight although as yet
there is no record of his having been reinstated in the Church.

8/20/185) After Divine Worship a meeting was held. Bro.
Cosby was appointed iioderator., Soue conversation was had in reference
to the New Jhurch and the committee on proposals was instructed to ad-
vertise the letting of the building of the church with the specifica-
tions of the kouse which the Church wished to have built. The Trea-
surer reported a balance of 84.06 on hand at this meeting.

Note: In October, 1852, it had become necessary to taxe up
"Publick Collection™ monthly for the purpose of furnishing the Church
with light and fuel. Now, less than two years later and with only
$4.06 in the Treasury, this dedicated and courageous group of chris=-
tians were planninz to build a new House of VWorship. Tl.ese were in-
deed lean years, For many the load must have been heavy, yet they
did not falter in their determination to build a Church that would
endure.

9/16/1554 The committee on proposals made a partial report
and was continued., oSrethren A. B. Smith and Robt. rarrar were ap-
pointed Delegates to the Dover Associztion and the Clerk, John L.
Laughton, appointed to write the annuel letter. The sum of {2. was
sent to the Association.

L/1,/1855 The Treasurer reported a balance of $2.61,

6/16/1855 The Treasurer reported a balance of $.29., It
does not seem within the realm of possibility that on June 16, 1855,
there remained only twenty-nine cents in the Church Treasury and
that on October 18, 1855 (that s.me year) the new Dover Baptist
Church would be dedicated. This is precisely what happened as
future records will disclose.
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At the meeting on June 16, 1855, it was reported that
Brethren A. Cosby and Wm. Ferguson were "walking disorderly in
Neglecting publick worship, the interest of the church and in
unchristian conduct by which the cause of Christ is reproached:
On motion Brother Farrar was appointed to see Bro. Cosby and Bro.

J. F. Bowles to see Bro. Ferguson and cite them to appear at our
next church meeting,"

7/1L/1355 "The committee in the case of Bro. Cosby report-
ed that he had seen Bro. Cosby and that he was present to angswer for
himself. Bro. Cosby justified himself in what he had said and done
and criminated the church of remission in duty to delinquent members,
and of acting dishonourably toward him; said he was not sorry for any-
thing ‘e had said or done except one expression which he had used. The

meeting continued for some time longer than usual without coming to
any decision and adjourned."

Tollowing is a verbatim copy of minutes under date of
10/17/1855;

"Saturday, Oct. 17th, 1855, 4 regular church meeting held
in the Wew Lieeting liouse which is to be dedicated tomorrovw. Present

A. B. Smith (Pastor) J. Johnson, R. Farrar, Wm, Bowles, m. Johnson
and nine sisters,

"Brethren Cosby & Ferguson were present and manifested a de-
sire to be restored to the fellowship of the church by confessingz
their errors. The Church determined to have a protracted meeting to
commence this day. The sensure of the church was removed from Brethren

Cosby & Ferguson and they were reinstated, 'No other business. &£djourn-
ed by Benediction. John E, Laughton, C. Clk,"

fere we may bless Brother Laughton's faithful fingers for

penning the preceding words. It will be observed that no reference
has been made to the progress of the new house of worship which the
members had on 8/20/185), considered building, True, the minutes state
that on 8/20/185L the committee was instructed to advertise the let-
ting of the building of the church, but it must also be noted that on
that date the Trezsurer reported a balance of 24.06. And in June of
the same year in which the new church was dedicated the treasury boast-
ed the sum of ,29¢. No reference is made to the dediecation services
nor has there been any mention of finances. From here on it can only

be assumed that Divine Worship and all Church lieetings were held in
the new Church.

e do know that the new Church was built on the east side of
Manaldin Ferry Road (now Route 621), slightly to the north of where

the- original Meeting House stood. The building, a simple weather-
boarded structure, faced the south.,

A diligent search of the records at Goochland County Clerk's
Office has failed to produce any record of how, or from whom, the land
was acquired on which to build the Church. Perhaps it was a gift or

perhaps it was purchased; however, there is no available information
to substantiate either theory. .
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But what of the original keeting House that had been con=

Structed on a foundation of faith and love? What of those fouT walls

What of the weaﬂuer—bitten,
ubt

that had known countless Joys and sorrows?
log structure that had struggled through the years of despair and e
and emerged victorious? Vas it completely abandoned - left to fall
apart from neglect and eventually blend with the earth around it?
iere the lam.s that the sisters had collected pennies to by renoved
to the new church? And the benches that had been lovingly repaired -
were they left as a part of the Rev. William Webber's beloved L.eeting
House to rot and decay beneath winter's snow and summer's sun?

How nice it would be if these questions could be answered:
Sadly enough, :o one can tell us what really happened. It is doubted
that the lamps were used in the new church because many years later
two of them were found in a pile of debris near the location of the
weeting house and these are now in the possession of one of th e members
of Dover Church.

There is no entry in the minutes to indicate what disposition
was made of the old kieeting Louse, As a matter of fact, it is nsver
referred to again. After the meeting on October 17, 1855, in which
the minutes record that the new church would be dedicated the follow-
ing day, the meetings continued as before.

The next meeting of note was on sarch 16, 1856, Here it is

stated:

"There being a current report that Bro. A. Cosby has been
engaged in a personal fight to the disgrace of himself and dishonour
of the cause of Christ, Bro. Johnson was appointed to wait on Bro.
Cosby and cite him to appear at the next Church meeting to answer

to the charge of fighting."
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L/19/1856 "Bro. Johnson appointed in the case of Bro.
Cosby reported he had seen Bro. Cosby and had a comversation with
him, and as he had settled the difficulty with the individual with
whom he had the fight, he did not cite him to appear before the
church. VUhereupon the committee was continued with instructions
to act in accordance with the order of the Church."”

5/17/1856 At this meeting "the committee in the case of
Bro. A. Cosby reported that he hLad seen him and discharged the duty
imposed on kim., The report was rec'd and the committee discharged.
Bro, Cosby not being able to attend todey the case was continued
until tomorrow, Brethren Smith and Laughton were appointed Dele-
géles to the General Association, The treasury was reported empty.”

5/20/1t%6 Erethren Smith and Laughton were appointed Dele-
gates to the General Association and the Clerk appointed to write the
annual letter,

On April 19, 1656, the committee had been instructed to "act
in accordance with the order of the Churchk" i: the case of Bro. 4.
Cosby and on Lay 17, 1856, the committee reported trat it had com-
plied with the duties assigned it, and the case of Bro. Cosby was
continued. There was another meeting on June 15, 1856, one on Sep-
tember 20, 1856 and another on November 9, 1856. At none of these
meetings was Bro. Cosby's name mentioned. After the meeting on Lay
17, 1856, there is only silence concerning this brotker and there
are no recorded minutes after Novemwber ¢, 1d56.

The next minutes of record are dated hay 16, 1657. Bro.
Cosby was present at this meeting. The Clerx, John m. Laughton wes
appointed to write the annual letter toc the General Associzticn and
to request the reappointment of Bro. A. B. Smith as Pastor of the
Ceurche Breo. J. E. Laughton resigned as Clerk of the Church and ask-
ed for a letter of dismission for himself. his request was "laid on
the table."

6/227/1857 Bro. Cosby has apparently been fargiven for his
transgressions and taken back into the Iold for on this cdate he was
cppointed Clerk of the Church.

It is noted with interest that all througt tle years the
"sisters" of the Church attenced the meetings regularly, more often
than not far outnumbering the "brethren."

8/23/1857 Bro. A. Cosby, the Clerk, was instructed to write
the annual letter to the Association., Brethren Lzughton and Smith
appointed Delegates to the General Association. (Apparently Bro.
Laughton's request for a letter of dismission was still lying on the
table ) .

12/19/1857 Bro. John F. Bowles was appointed to see Bro.
Jessia Harris and cite him before the next Church meeting to answer
the charge for getting drunk.
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ittee

There was no meeting until April 19, 165b, when thelégmi;me
reported on Bro. harris and stated that Bro. harris desired bl
rewoved Irom the Church roll.

"On motion Bro. Earris was excluded from the Church.

"On motion, the case of Bro. wartin was called and B{g;
Fobert Lartin was excluded from the fellowship of the Church I
getting drunk,

x 1

"On motion, A. Cosby was to see Wm. B. Stanard's man,hBur ’
end cite him to appear before the Church on Sunday to answer the
charge of misbehavior to his overseer."

This must have been a stormy meeting!
L/20/1858 Vim, B. Stanard's man, Burl, was disposed of iR

short order. The minutes read: "After a fair investigzation of the

wetter it was moved and seconded that Burl be excluded from the
Shurct "

7/17/1858 '»':'m. B. Stanard's man, Burl, was reinStated to
the Zellowship of the Church,

8/1L/1E56 K. Ladison, J. Johnson, J. F. Bowles and Wi

Sowles elected Delegates to the General Association amd ?he Clerk,
k. Cosuy, irstructed to vwrite the annual letter. On motion, Bro.

cohn E, Laughton was elected Clerk of the Church. It woulcd seem
thet cro. Laughton's request for a "letter of dismission" was
lost or completely disregarded for his activities in the work of
th.e Church continue as before. '

The minutes would indicatve that during all of tkese years
tr.e Fev. A. B. Smith was serving more than one churck,

At a meeting on December 13, 1858, the subject of retainirg
Bro. Smith st Lover was discussed. Le was then engaged to preach_the
"3rd Lord's Pay in each month at $175.00 per year." On motion of
Bro. Farrar a committee was appointed to see Bro. Exall and inform him
that the Churck wes unable to sustain two pastors and desired to re-
tain Bro. Smith, but an effort would be made to ascertain what amount
could be raised to remunerate Bro, Exall if he accepted, and Ero.
Samuel [uVal was appointed to collect and pay over. It would arpear

that both Bro. Smith and Bro. Exall were part-tiwe pastors at Dover

at this time. There is no previous mention of Bro. Ex211,
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3/1$/1655 Among other writings the following appears:

"On motion of bro. Cosby, wahala, Cornelius, francis, Pone
and Albert, servants of Brother Saml., S. Duval, were excommunicated
from the fellowship of this Church for being engaged in an attempt
to poison their master. After which the meeting adjourned. # * "

Tne circumstances concerning the above "excommunication”
should prove of interest to the readers of this history. wiss Eliza-
veth Tuval has been kind enough to give us the details of tkis ne-
farious plot to poison .r. Samuel Sheppard Duval and his family.
Following is the story in iiss Elizabeth Luval's own words:

"Sefore the liar Between The States, my grandfather (maternal)
was the owner of slaves and, «s I understand it, a large scale faruer,
having kis residence at Powell's Tavern in the ezstern part of Gooch-

land County and the main or most productive part of his farm just east
of Tuckakoe Creek in Henrico County.

"The slaves who were working the farm in Henrico County be-
came dissatisfied and it seems thought they were being oppressed,
which led to a plot on their part to poison my grandfather and his
family. The slaves, of course could not purchase the poiscn, but a
Negro woman in the neighborhood by the name of Caroline Henley had
been freed for some reason, and she was prevailed upon by the slaves,
through threats, to purchase the poison for them. This she did, but
immediately informed my grandfather. Ee intercepted the plot and
sold the slaves after administering severe whippings. Tre cook,
"Aunt iahaley", was a very much beloved servant, and my grandmotlier
in telling of this episode, stated that "hunt xahaley" declared vee
hemently that she had received the poison at the hands of the plot-
ters to quiet them, but had no intention of putting it in the food.
Ly grandmother believed her, but my grandfather was unwilling to
trust her further and sold her together with the plotters.

"Ly grandfather gave Carcline Henley as a reward the place
now owned and occupied by the family and descendants of Jesse Ellis,

This property is lccated on the north side of River Road just west

of the road leading to Vinita." (This information was ziven the
writer in December of 1959).

Here seems a logical point to state that Caroline Lenley
maintzined her membership in Dover Baptist Church and attended ser-
vices regularly until her death. Among her varied possessions prob-
a2bly the most outstanding was an oxcart and an ox to draw it., This

was her only mode of transportation and in the l.anakin area Caroline
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placidly driving her slow, but sure, wingless crariot was & fapiliar

sight. Some members of Dover, even in this year of 1959, clearly re-
call Caroline driving her oxcart to Church on Sunday mornings gl

"parking" it in the churchyard while she attended the Church services
#* 3 3 ¥*

L4/17/1855 The minutes here tell us very definitely that
Bro. Cosby is out of the woods. At this meeting he, along with
John E. Laughton, was appointed a Delegate to attend the General
Association,

8/20/1859 Ero. J. E. Laughton appointed to write the
letter to the Lover Lssociation and 3rethren Johnson, Farrar, Cosby
and Saunders appointed Delegates.

9/18/1659 "On motion the Church cordially invited the Lover
Association to hold its next anniversary at this place.”

ilong with several otrers, Caroline henley (free colored
woman) was received as a candidate for baptism.

In the minutes of December 18, 1858 some reference was made
to Bro. £Exall who had apparently served at Dover Crurch in the capa-
city of Pastor even before that date, In the minutes of November
19, 1859, we read:

"The Clerk was directed to enter upon the minutes a report
made by Bro. J. Johnson that he had paid Bro. G. Exall one hundred
dollars, the sum agreed upon for his services from the year 1858 to
the first Sunday in December, 185%. On motion, a subscription was
opernied to ascertain if the amount could be raised to secure the ser-
vices of Bro. kxall another year, and Bro. S. Duval was appointed to
take the subscription and see what he could get outside of the Church
ard confer with Bro. Exall upon the subject and report at the next
cturch meeting."

12/17/1859 Committee to obtain subscription and confer with
Bro. Exall asked for a continuance.

1/15/1860 Partial report made by committee to obtain sub-
scription and asxed for further continuance,

LL/14/1860 Brother Cosby in trouble againl!

Although the minutes of the previous meeting are completely
silent on the subject, the minutes of April 1L, 1d60, read in part
as follows:

"The committee consisting of Bretkren John Johnson and John
Wilson, appointed at the last Church meeting to investigate a report
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p?ejudicial to the christian character of Brother 4. Cosby, charging
him with dealing in arcdent spirits and selling goods on the Lord's

Day - reported they had investigated the matter and ttere was no

truth in the report. ithereupon the Church, on motion, received the
report, discharged the committee and resolved itself into a committee

of the whole to get such informetion as was present and investigate

the matter itself. &ro. Cosby being present stated that he had sold
goods on the sabbath, and would sell liquor as long as he kept store
and could get license if it did not conflict with the constitution

of the Church., Brethren who acted on thLe committee objected to re-
ceiving testimony out of the Church, wi.en a motion was made and car-
ried that brethren present, members of sister churches be invited and
requested to zive the church any information they might be in possession
of. The subject was elaborately discussed, the charges sustained. Dur-
ing the discussion the following coumunication was handed in by one of
the sisters:

"Lear Brethren:

"Inasmuch as we are excluded from all participation in your
deliberations and from voting upon any subject which may involve the
interest of the church (except that of calling a pastcr) and feeling
a deep interest in the welfare of Zion at large and our little Church
in particuler; and earnestly desiring its prosperity and sadly lament-
ing the present state of declension, discord and the alienation of af-
fection among the members and believing that intemperance and the
traffic in intoxicating drinks are the principle source of most of the
trouble in the Churchk, and misery and crime in the world, and the 7reat
sin [or which our heavenly tather has withdrawn the smiles of Lis counte-
nance, and withholds his helping hand from us, we think you ought in
the fear of God, in the discharge of the solemn obligations which rest
upon you as the disciples of Christ to purge the Church of such offen-
Sive members who by their disorderly walk are stumbling blocks in the
wey of sinners and are daily bringing a reproach upon the Cause of
Christ and a disgrace upon our Church. Ve cannot fellowskip such
members, nor can we expect the blessing of God upon our Church while
they are suffered to rewain in it. e pray that our heavenly father
will preside over your meeting; the holy spirit guide znd <irect you
to accomrliish his ill, and the grace of our Lord Jesus (hrist rest
upen you, that tlie povers of darkness way fall and the Lord our
righteousness once more visit old Dover in mercy and olessings.

"Your sisters in Christ

"Susan Frith Rhoda T. Duval Lharriet D. Ellis
kartha L. Ellis liary R. Cottrell hillie Ellis
Emma P, Duval - He A. Cottrell Eljzabeth Harris
Sallie £. Ferguson Frances i. Bowles Elizabeth Farrar
k., A, Smithers Frances A, Viade Mary J. Ellis
Jame E. Puryear lariz C, ¥ebber J. &, Webber,"
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be ex-

"A motion was made and seconded that Bro. A. Cosdy D€
15 wel‘e

cluded from fellowship of this Church and the "I's" and "HNO ton
called for. Those voting "I" were Robert Farrar, John k. Laugglai;
;m. Ferguson, John F, Bowles, Thos. J. Jordan, Henry ﬁails°“;n
mithers, Henry Nuckles; those voting "No" were John Wilson "
et . Nnge
Thomas Wilkinson. The other brethren excused themselves from voting
(Italics in original minutes),"

ution:
The Clerk then offered the following preamble and resolu

"ihereas Intemperance has been and now is ti.e most fru%zgul
-sowrce of evil and crime and misery in the world - making the r; od
poor, the poor miserable, the once kind and affectionate_husban atber
father a fiend and brute, the once happy and confiding wife and mZhil—
a poor heartbroken and wretched being, making worse than orphans

dren whose parents still exist, destroying soul, body and estatz,re
peopleing the world of woe with the inhabitants of earth, therelo

"Resolved

"That any member of this Church who will persist in manu-=
facturing, selling, or in the habbitual use of intoxicating drinks
as a beverage should be considered as walking disorderly, exerting
a demoralizing and baneful influence on Society, as bringing & ré=
rroach upon the cause of Christ ani ought not to be retained 1n the
fellowshiz of tris Church."

Upon this question the "I's" and "No's" were called for and
the following result obtained:

"Brethren voting for the resolution were John Johnson, John
E. Laughton, \m., Ferguson, John F. Bowles, T. J. Jordan, henry m%dﬁson,
3lair Smitkers, kenry Nuckles, John S. Saunders. Those voting "No
were John Wilson and Thomas %ilkinson,"

S0 far the above reports thie longest and stormiest meeting
held by the members of the Church.

5/19/1860 "On motion of Bro. J. Johnson the act of the
Church excluding A. Cosby was reconsidered. After considerable
discussion on motion the subject was postponed to the next Church
meeting and a committee of Brethren Farrar, Wilkinson and 3. Luval
appointed to investigate the charges against i. Cosby for dealing
in liquors and selling on Sunday."

"On motion of Bro. J. Johnson, the Preamble and Resolution
adopted at our lezst meeting was reconsidered and action postponed
to the next meeting,"

6/16/1860 "The committee appointed at our last meeting in
the case of Cosby reported, confirming the charges. The report was
received and the committee discharged. On motion of Bro. Farrar,
A. Cosby excluded from the fellowshiip of this Church.
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"The Preamble and Resolution on Intemperance was called
up a:id on motion were indefinitely postponed.

"On motion of the Clerk the Resolution adopted February
1k, 1652, authorizing Bro. John Johnson to grant Psuedo Baptist
ministers permission to preach in the Dover ikeeting liouse was
rescinded!!" (Exclamation points in original minutes).

7/14/1860 3ro. J. Johnson tendered his resignation as
Treasurer of the Church and Bro. J. Saunders elected in his place.

There was a meeting on August 18, 1860, at which nothing of
note transpired - then no further recordation until the year 136L.

It must bg remembered that Goochland County had suflered
gre=tly during two wars - the Revolutionary iar and the Civil War,
Dahlgreen and his cohorts, Tarleton and his Red Coats, as well as
others, had left ashes and rubble in their wake, and it was to be
a hard pull uphill for the County to settle down into a normal way
of life. By the same token it can be assumed that the Churches in
the community endured similar hardships and struggzles.

It is not known what transpired at Lover Baptist Church
during the period of the Civil War. The Linute Book was preserved
and after the war recordations continued as though nothing untoward
had occurred. Not even a page was skipped to show the break in time,
nor a single written word concerning the bitter war that had finally
ended,

There was unfinished business at the meeting on July 1l, 1860,
but we can never know what actually happened. Vhat of the Preamble
and Reéolution, action on which had been postponed indefinitely?

And Brother Exall - was he still at Dover?
Based on honest concern rather than idle curiosity, one

cannot but wonder what happened to Brother Cosby during the period
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here referred to, Had he become a changed man or had the Church mem™
bers finally decided to give up in their efforts to save him? One
thing is certain, Brother Cosby had "a way with people.” Surely
there must have been some virtue in this man who found it SO diffi-
cult to keep his feet from slipping off the straight and narrow path,
for in spite of his "off again - on again - gone again" exploits he
always returned to the Church and took an active part in its works
There is not a scintilla of evidence to indicate that he was & hypo=
crite and deceit, no matter how powerful, could not have lived 80
long. Must it not, therefore, be conceded that Brother A. Cosby Was
2 human being just as weak, but no weaker, than the rest of us? It

is plain that his fellownmen loved him and found it easy to forgive

him when he occasionally strayed along the forbidden highway.

The silence which lasted nearly four years is finally broken
and following is the main item of business which transpired at the
first Clurch meeting of record:

L/17/136L4 Bro. Cosby present at this meeting and it was
on his motion that Brethren Blaylock and Saunders see Caroline henley,
a colored member, in regard to her harbouring roguery. The signa-
ture of Bro. John F, Bowles appears as Clerk.

Our anxiety concerning Zrother Cosby seems to have been need-
less for although he had, on June 16, 1860, been excluded from the
fellowship of the Church, we now find him not only active in the af-
fairs of the Church but making a motion to investigate another member =
said member being none otrer than Caroline Eenley who had played a
dramatic and important role in-saving the lives of Brother Samuel

Duval and his family and who, when last heard of, had been accepted

as a candidate for baptism at Dover Church!

In contemplating these reversals, one might well conclude
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that fate is sowetimes capricious and that regardless of the dezree
of precision with which the axe is aimed,when the block is chopped
the chips do not necessarily fall in any given direction.

5/15/186L4 The report of the committee which was appointed
to investigate the charge against Caroline henley, a colored member,
in regard to her harbouring roguery was received and tr.e committee
discharged and the case postponed until the next regular Church meet-
ing at which time she was to appear before the Church.

8/21/186L Brethren Cosby and Saunders were chosen as Dele-
gates to the Dover Association. The Clerk of the Church (dJokn F.
Bowles) appointed to write the letter to the hssociation.

%/11/186 "On motion of Bro. Cosby the Church extended an
invitation to Brother Binford to preach at this Church the first
Sunday in the month,"

It is not clear as to whether this was intended to mean the
first Sunday in each month, nor is there any record trat Brother Bin-
ford accepted the invitation.

Ti.e next minutes of record are as follow:

2/19/1665 "The Church voted for Bro. Smith to preach for us
two Sundays in the wonth.," 3rother A. Cosby signed this recordation
as Clerk. Ee continued as Clerk of the Church for some time.

5/21/1865 Although the sisters had not yet, according to
the records, been allowed to take part in the voting activities other
than when electing a Pastor, they were at this meeting called upon
for help. Funds were badly needed to pay Bro. Smith for his services
as Fastor and the sisters were prevailed upon to aid in raising the
necessary funds,

6/17/1865 At a meeting held on this date the Church agreed
to appoint a committee to confer with the colored members in reference
to church organization, Also at this meeting the Church agreed to pay
Bro. Smith $200. (Presumably #200 a year for his services as Pastor).

7/15/1865 The Clerk, A. Cosby, appointed to write the annual
letter to the Associztion.,

8/19/1865 Bro. P. Cottrell, A. Cosby, J. Saunders, E. kadison
appointed Delegates to the Association., The Committee reported on the
list of colored members. Only 22 members found, the balance beingz drop-
ped from the Church rolls.
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: 2 n
In part the letter written by the Clerk to the Lssociatlio

reads as follows:

"Since our last report we have received into the mgmbersLlp
of this Church by baptism four persons and by letter one. e have
lost five members by death and since the colored persons have-been
freed forty (LO) of our colored members have gone from the neighbor=
hood without getting letters of dismission and their names have been

dropped leaving our present memberstip 90 whites and twenty-two
colored persons,"

o0

vith the spring of 1865 had co.e the end o) ihe Civil 'ar
@nd Kegroes were freed, Vhereas ‘he attendance of Hegroes at Lover
<ureh during the prior years had been large, it can be assumed tha®
they were at this point unsettled and at lcose encs. sreecom meant
itany things to these people who had been bound to masters who, in
most instances, were kind and cared for treir every need including
the provision of a Kouse of Viorship., Now they were free to go their
ovn way. It is reasonable to assume that many of them experienced fear
of tre unknown - £hat freedon was more of a punishment than a release.

Ee that as it mey, Freedom's Eell had tolled and trere was no turning

back.

It is interesting to note thLat ieginning witlh the year 18LS,
and probably from the year 1773, the ccrgregzetion at Dover consisted
largely of Negrces. Certainly the majority, if not ell, were servants
of the white members of the Church, being actually the "property" of
such white members for this was long before the emancipation,

Thie mere word "slavery" is repulsive to every right thinking
American., The selling of Megroes into bondage was unquestionably a

terrible crime. Yet, history tells us that crimes of far creater im-

mensity have beer committed through the ages. What could reve been
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more horrible than Hercd ordering the head of John the Baptist cut
off and served in a charger to a cruel and wicked woman simply to
assuage temporarily her greedy vanity? Seldom is tris act referred
to excert from the pulpit and then it is usually mentioned as casually
as one would serve bacon and eggs for breakfast., And the crucifixion
°f Christ by the Jews, the very people he endured so much to save.
This, too, was a sin and the Zreatest crime ever perpetrated. But,
as in the case of cohn The Daptist, it is 21l too often fargotten or
Fut cside zs scrething that has Leen done znd there is no going back
to undo,

Whe wes responsitle for the diabolical practice of slavery

and vho deserves the credit for abolishing such practice is of little

consequence now., The point in interest is that the Negro has been free

to pursue !is own life, liberty and happiness for ninety-five years.

After the Civil "ar a generzl exodus came about at Dover and
th.e Negroes began organizing their own churches in the comrunity. This
indicated clearly that their Ged-given irstirct was asserting itself
and they desired to worship separate and apert fram the white race.
There is no suggestion that they were driven from Lover, rather every
irdication that they went of their own free will and volition. =rom
the ;ery beginning of Dover Church they were welcomed among the members
of the Church and accepted as part of the Church.

Durirg the years that have passed since the Civil War couni-
less numbers of Negroes have gone down in history as great, They have
left uneraseable footprirts in the sands of time; nor would anyone wish
to eradicate the memory of their outstanding achievements and splendid

contributions to the world at large.
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So it is true with all races of people. Some reach the pin-
nzcle of success, beccme sleek and fat with wealtt and glory, others

are crushed in the ever present struggle for existence, the, end I'€~

sult being more or less sauged by the individual's ability, ingenul®y

and force of determination. However, it must be conceded that the
] : . : Stetes
fine churches orgzanized and supported by Negroes in these United Ste
» . : i
bear witness that they hLave not in any measure been restricted in the
Sipen 3 . . i & . . 4 completely
~irst intention and desire to worship in their own way and CcOLp
. _ s x T
removed Irom the Caucasian race. And - there are innumerable memoriais

bearing testimony to the fact that the Negro has been recognized with

highest honcrs.

what has all of this to do with the subject matter? Simply
te pin-poirt the fact trat the Negro himself knowingly, willirgly,

even eagerly, chose segregation and adopted it as his unalterzble

way of lirfe,

3/17/1866 - At a reguler Churcr meetinug, it was moved thet
tre "colored pertion" be dropped from the Church Book and the Clerk
was authcrized to write for all the members a letter ensbling then to
coin any other church of the same fzith and order.

£t this meeting & letter from Bro, kadison was read by the
Pastor and a committee was appointed to see him and cite him to ap-
pear before the Church at the next meeting.

"On metion of P, Cottrell a committee was appointed to see
all the members who heve been dancing and tc say to them if they wish
to stay in the Church and will forszke their folly in sin amnd will in
the future do better we will forgive them end receive them to our fold
again,™

Trhe salary of Rev. A, B. Smith was raised to $200 a year for
the year 1866 and "a committee of Sisters Ellis, Frith, Duval and all
the old committee to continue with them to collect funds for the last
year."
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L/14/1866 "The committee to see Bro. wadison could not make
a report and the case was laid over for the next meeting. The committee
to see the members for dancing made a partial report. Sister Elizar
Clarke was excluded from the Church by her own request,m"

10/20/1866 "At a regular Church meeting held the 20t day
of Uctober 1866, the report of the committee to revise the Church
Constitution was taken up and adopted and the revised Constitution
ordered to be recorded in the Church books, # % # The following
resolution was offered by J. S. Saunders and adopted:

"We the members of Lover Church in Church meeting assembled,
being desirous of increzsing the Laborers in the Lord's Vineyard, en-
larging the number of ministers of tne Gospel of Christ, and of build-
ing up and strengthening his Church, do this day authorize and secure
our Sro. Jchn R. Wilkinson to preach the Gospel of Christ, in this
or any other community in which he may feel disposed to exercise his
gifts in dispensing the word of liZe to fallen and perishing humanity.m

There is no record of the revised Constitution mentioned avove.
for a long period now the minutes are very sketcry.

There was a meeting on Februery 17, 1867, but there was no
business of consequence.

8/10/1867 "On motion a committee was aprointed to look
alter absent members.- Brethren Peter Cottrell and J. Saunders,
committee and was to see Bro. liadison specially and if not heard from
before the next Church meeting he will be excluded from the Church,

"Bro. A, Cosby résigned as Church Clerk and Bro. dJ. V.
Eowles was elected Clerk of the Church.

"Brethren Peter Cottrell, W. T. Johnson and Henry Nuckols
arpointed delegates to the Generzl Association. The Clerk was
instructed to write the Church letter."

The minutes record that on September 7, 1867 the Churck had
a membership of "1% males and 57 females, a sabbath school with 1L
officers and teachers and an average of 80 scholars,"

1/12/1868 "After preaching the Church remained a short time.
Bro. A. B. Smith, Pastor, tendered his resignation to the Church, then
left the Church. On motion Bro. Peter Cottrell was called to the chair,
On motion of Bro. J. S. Saunders, Bro. A. B, Smith will remain Pastor
and that the Church pay him at the rate of $200 for the next three
months. # % % % On motion Bro. Peter Cottrell will report to Bro. Smith

what has been done."



Lk.

2/8/1868 "Tne Clerk instructed to write to Bretiren
Laughton, lioody and Vim. Cosby requesting them to attend our Ch thems
meetings or get letters of dismission to join some Church near T.D.l
The Church excluded Brethren W. J. Ferguson, Henry liadison amd ¢ Bro.
Wilkinson for immorasl and unchristianlike conduct. On motion o7
Cottrell, Bro. Cosby is to act as a committee to cite Bro. Samugro
Duval to appear before the Church at our next Church meeting. =%
Cosby moved that we amend our constitution at our next meetinge

3/8/1868 The following resolution was adopted:

aid Bro.

n . - k our S
Therefore resolved -tlLat we respectfully as ris Church

k. B. Smith to withdraw the resignation he has offered to t
and thet he continue the pastoral charge of the same.”

L4/11/1868 "It was moved that we reorganize our Church }lSt
and that all who wish to remain in the Church will come fO?Wardlin _
person or send by letter and show a willingness to rewzaln 10 fe fw
ship with the Church by our next regular Church meeting oT that they
will be considered no longer members of this Church.”

5/9/1868 ht this meeting 22 persons appeared in person and
their naues were taken to enter upon a new list.

5/10/1866 3ro. Jokn 3. Saunders appointed Delegate to attend
the General Lssociation.

6/1L/1868 Lccording to the minutes "Bro. A. B. Swith, our
Pastor, gave us a very healthy and christianlike exhortation on this
particular Sunday ard a committee was appointed to find out who the
Trustees of the Church are."

The 2nd Saturday in September, 186%. -A careful perusal
of the minutes would indiczte that this date was in error and should
read:

"The 2nd Saturday in September, 1868". At this meeting
Brethren J. T. Bowles and Henry Nuckols were appointed Delegates
vo the Dover Association.

Following tLe above is a copy of a Church letter written .
by Clerk J. V. Bowles to the Dover Association. The letter is headed
"Lover - Sept. 1866", 1In his letter Clerk Bowles states "we now find
upon our Jiurch list 16 males and 4O females, which make our whole
number 56."

Recalling the notation under date of April 11, 1363, one
might wonder if the alternative "appear" or "disappear® caused this
small membership.

Saturday, January 9, 1869: "Kt a Church meeting held trnis
day, present Brethren A. B. Smith, Peter Cottrell, S.T.3.(believed
to be 5. T. Bowles) W. L. Johnson, A. Cosby, Henry L. Nucxols, James
Torloine, J. V. Bowles and several sisters. Brother i, B. Smith,
our Pastor, tendered his resignation to take effect January 10,
1869, On motion of Bro. Peter Cottrell, Bro. Cosby was appointed
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uoderator Protem, On motion of Bro. Cottrell, the Church accepted
the resignation of Bro. 4. B, Smith to take effect at the time speci-

fied. On motion we tender Bro. Smith our thanks for his past ser-
vices,"

10/10/1869 & coumittee was appointed to prepare a resolu-
tion to be tencered 5ro. Smith, The Church voted for a Pastor and
elected 3ro. U, B. infree their pastor. A committee was appointed
to see Ero. Winfree on behalf of the Church and the committee in-
structed to report on the next Sabbath,

Sunday, kay 16, 186y: At this meeting 5Sro. Rennolds' naie
s given as Pastor. Several of the sisters were appointed a com-
mittee to collect funds for thre pastor's salary for this year.

6/23/186% The Treasurer's report gave a balance of 23,2,
cash paid £, B, Zmith, Pastor of Dover Church for the yeer 1368
167.75, balance on list of subscriptions 3LL.00.

The minutes also state: "On motion of Bro. Powers, the
Srethren will meet here on next Lord's Day, June 27th at L o'clock

to consider the propriety of receiving Caroline henley, a colored
women, into the Church,."

7/L/166y  Caroline Henlsy's request was discussed at length
and put off until the next Church meeting.

7/18/1369 Bro. Rennolds' name again listed zs Pastor.
varoline Henley's request wes postponed indefinitely. Brethren
Jo 5. Saunders and 5. T. Bowles appointed Lelegates to the Lover
Assoclation, The dates of uweeting were changad to the 2nd and
Lth Sundays in each month and it was decided to hold the regular
shurch meetings every 2nd Sunday in each month after preaching
"and that a collection be taken every 2Znd Sunday for incidental
expenses. 0On motion Srethren Peter Cottrell and J. S. Saunders
were appointed a comnmittee to notify Bro. Stringfellow that he
oust change his day of preaching. i # # "

The minutes go on to say that .r. Sanipson was desirous of
holding a feast in the Lover .eeting house and although 3ro. Cosby
made a motion that his request be honored, there was no se=cond and
the request was denied. The Treasurer was instructed to wake a re-
port at every Church meeting, Bro. Cosby was appointed to collect
funds for the pastor's salary. The Clerk was instructed to give
each collector a certificate stating that tl.ey were appointed by
the Church to collect funds for the pastor's salary.

Note: It is not clear as to when Bro. Stringfellow appeared
on the scene as Pastor or how long he remzined at Dover Church.,

11/14/1869 At this meeting Bro. Rennolds' nare appears as
Pastor. The Treasurer reported a balance of 29¢ on hand, and a note
to the effect that Bro. Fennolds was paid up to date in the amount of
®54.75. Bro. Cottrell resigned his office as Treasurer and Ero. E

i l-li
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Egval was appointed Treasurer in his place. At this meeting 2
¢lnance Committee was appointed.

1/5/1870 After a lengthy consultation, Bro. D. M. winfree
was elected Pastor "for this present year.," On motion the Finance
Cogmittee was instructed to "devise some ways to make plans of
raising means for the support of the Church."

Lth Sunday in January, 1870: - a Called Neeting.
It was decided that the Church meetings would be held on the Lth
Sunday in each month and that the monthly payments De made eyery
Lth Sunday. A request was presented from tte hiethodists asking
permission to preach in Dover Leeting House once a month a.d this
gave rise to a lengthy consultation. After many motions made_and
1ost it would appezr that the ilethodists would be granted their re-
quest, but that all Pseudo Baptist denominations would be excluded
from preaching in Dover ieeting house after the first of July, 1870.
A comnittee was appreinted to notify Dr. Stringfellow and ir. hobday
as to tle action of the Church., A committee was appointed to "1ooK
after" Brethren Samuel Luval, Bowles, Lavis and Ellis,

The 1lst Sunaay in rfebruary, 1870: The committee appointed
to see Bro. Vinfree was discharged. "On motion of 3ro. Powers, we
send Bro. A, B, Snith a call for two Sundays in each month and thal
we will pay him, 4. B. Smith, the sum of $350.00 for his services far

twelve months." A committee was appointed to see 3Zro. Smith in be-
half of the Church.

Following is a copy of the report submitted by the Finance
somnittee:

"Dover Baptist Church

"The finance Commitiee beg leave to report that they have
taken into consideration and bestowed much thought upon the presemnt
ineffectual mode of raising funds to meet the necessary and contingent
expenses of the Church and this Committee believe that if the Church
desire to see its cause prosper and the community benefitted by such
prosperity, the Church must adopt more stringent measures than have
herestofore been in existence for the accomplishment of the work;
therefore your Committee respectfully (?) that every member of the
Church be required to pay monthly sowe stipulated sum into the trea-
sury for the purpose of supporting the Pastor and other expenses.
Your committee are of opinion that any member in the Church can pay
twenty-five cents per month without inconvenience and that a large
majority of the members can pay a much larger sum. If the Church
will adopt some such system as this, funds can be raised, by monthly
payments, sufficient to defray all the expenses of the Church and the
contributors will never miss the awount. Your Committee also recommend
that a Secretary be elected, who shall attend only to the finances of
the Church, that he shall keep a regular and accurate account of all
sums of money paid into the treasury and his accounts shall be kept
in such & condition that at a moment's warning he shall be able to
give the Church the state of the treasury. Your Committee believe
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that this arrangement should be entered into and date from ti.e first
day of January, 1870. That if tie members of the Church will unite
and adopt this system with that spirit and feeling which should
characterize a christian body, seeking the upbuilding of the Church,
the spreading of the Gospel and the welfare of the entire coamunity;
the word failure will no where be found in their vocabulary; but that

a complete and perfect success will abundantly crown their praise-
worthy efforts.

"Respectfully,

"E. J. Duval )

"Robt. Dunlevy ) Finance Coumittee,"
"Wim. H. Powers )

2nd Sunday in March, 1870: Bro. A. B. Smith was present and

stated to the Church that e would serve the Church as their Pastor

-or the next 12 montks. Thre remainder of Bro. Rennolds' salary for
last year was raised =t this meetingz.

Lth Sundey in April, 1870: The committee appoinied to see
3rethren Sam Duval, Lavis, Bowles and Z1lis was discharged. On
motion fellowsrip was withdrawn from Bro. Sam Duval, Bro. Davis
and Ero. Frank Zllis for drunkenness. No mention is made of Bro.

Sowles in this regard and it is not known how he escaped the wrath
of the Church!

end Sunaay in June, 1870: Brethren Powers, Bowles, Saunders
and Dunlevy appointed Delegates to the General Association. Bro,

Saunders directed to write the Church letter to the Association.

Lth Sunday in July, 1570: "On motion the Secretary will
call on all persous who are in arrears. On motion the Church ap-

pointed three female collectors to collect funds for the Pastor's
salary."

Lth Sunday in Novemver, 1370: "4 committee was appointed
all of the members of the Church and find out what amount
can be raised for the Pastor's salary for 1871l. On motion the
Church gave the sisters permission to have a feast or tableau, or
anything they might think advisable, in Dover leetinz Louse for the
purpcse of raising money to shingle the house."

1o see

Here it should be noted that the brettren have finally ad-
mitted that the sisters play an important role in the work of the
Churck. In the above motion they left the gate wide open, but, after

all, if the roof leaked and the brethren had been unable to raise

sufficient funds to shingle it, then desperate measures were definitely

in order!
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i th Sunday in December, 1870: "The committee that Wasdap‘
Pointed to see what could be raised for the Pastor's saiary, ma e
@ report and the committee was continued."

2/11/1871 "On motion % # we take up tre subject of tre d?z
Paid salary of our Pastor for 1870, On motion of the Secretary, wi
call on all of the members of this Courch for a new subscription ?0
finish paying last year's salary. On motion Bro. J. S. Saunders #as
elected Secretary. On motion of the Clerk we now call a Pastor
afler remarks by Brethren J. 3, Saunders and Jessee Bowles it Was
carried. On motion the Church called Bro. 4. B. Smith to preach
one Sunday in each month and thzt we pay him one Lundred and pifLy
dollars per year. A coumittee of two was appointed to notify Bro.

3 -~ - E 1’
Saith of the action of the Church & # % % Jessee Eowles and . hue
ro.ers, Committee,"

Note: A lapse in time of more than one year,
2nd Saturday in Lay, 1872: The minutes here state in part:

"At a regular Church meeting held the 2nd Saturday in &y,
1872. Present: Brethren Minfree (Pastor) # # # # +"

This would indicate trat Bro, Winfree was at trzt time Fastor
of Dover Church.

2nd Saturday in July, 1872: Bro. Winfree again referred to
&s present and listed as Pastor. E. J. Duval and J. T. bowles e%ef-
ted Lelegates to the General hssociation, W, h. Powers, Wm. 5. Join=
son and George Clarke were elected deacons.

2nd Saturday in August, 1872: Routine minutes,
£ memorandum to the effect that no meetingz was held in
September, Followingz this memorandum is evidence that many pages

have been torn from the iinute Book, then a notation as follows:

"Dover Baptist Church
Ledicated Oct. 15th, 1855."

This is the first mention of the dedication of Dover Church
end there are no details.

Now we find paper of an entirely different type bound into
the Linute Book and the first minutes of record since kuzust, 1872,

The 12th of Septemver, 1374. A called meetinz was held for
the purpose of calling someone to the pastorate for the ensuing year.
Sro. hugh D. Ragland was unanimously called to preact two Sabbatls
each month at a salary of two hundred dollars per year,

No further meeting is recorded during the year 187L.

L meeting in January, 1875, was routine.
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WSeturday, april 17, 1875 # 4 % Present: H. D. Ragland
(Pastor) # # # On motion Bro. Cosby was invited to sit with us and
take part in the meeting. % 3% % On motion the first Resolution
adopted at the last Church meeting be repealed # # # it was carried.
On motion # # % the second Resolution was repealed also."

In present day pkraseoloéy the above tells us that E. D.
Rasland had accepted the call and was serving as Tastor - that Bro.
Cosby was in good repute, and that two Resolutions, of whick we know
absolutely nothing, were repealed.

"3aturday before the 2nd Sunday in tay, 1875. * % the Zon-
stitution of the Church was read, Ero. Jas. E. Torloine was appointed
a2 delegate to the General Association, # # ¢ Brethren .. &, forloine,
5. T. Sowles, Vim, 5, Johns and J, L. Stratton appointed delegates to
the Dover fssociation."

"Saturday before the 3rd Sundey in February, 1875, % = =
Sro. <. .. Stratton reported to the Church thet several of rer members
had been drunk and dencing. # i s 3rethren L. Cosby, dJ. .. Stratten,
w. 5. Johnson and Powers vere appointed & committee to see them."

Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in April, 1876: The comuittee
aproirted at the ebruary meetinz to see those accused of drunkenness
and dancing, made 2 report and the committee was disclarged.

Seturdey before the 3rd Sundsy in September, 1876: The uatter
of "electing" a sexton for tre Jlurch was considered at this meeting

and it was agreed that the sexton would be paid 2,00 per menth.

4t a Church meeting held on the Jaturdzy before the 3rd Sunday
in October, 1876, the Church unanixously called 3ro. H. D. Raglani as
-

Pastor for the next year. On motion, it was decided that the Pasicr
would be paid monthly.

"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in February, 1377: == % - Cn
motion of tre Clerk the Church now proceeds to the election of a Pas-
tor, % # #* that this Church call Bro. E. D. Ragland tc¢ the pastorate

of this Church to serve us for an indefinite period of time at 2 salary
of (%150,00) one hundred dollars per year, £nd thet he, Bro. Raglzand,
render this Churct the sawe awount of service per year that re has ren-
dered in the past and that whenever the Church becomes dissatisfied and
wishes a change they will give him (Ragland) six months notice, and also
request him, Ragland, whensver he vecoues dissatisfied and wishkes to
leave ug that re will give the Church six months notice also, # < "

"Saturday before the 3rd 3unday in April, 1877: % -3t the
Treasurer submitted a report in regard to the sexton's pay and the
Church was due the sexton nineteen (ly) dollars. On motion of Ero.
Jotnson the Treasurer will pay the sexton if he hes any money in the
treasury and if not that a collection be taken every 3rd Sundey to meet
the incidental expenses of the Church, - # "
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The minutes of the meeting held on Saturday, the 2r$1J3§_

in T P . :

N ~ecember, 1877, are o: interest, They read in pert as follo

Lo . . . . o the

- "$ i3 on motion the following Resolutions in regard trave

death of Rev, 4, B, Smith was unanimously adopted: “herezs weﬂ‘rn,

heard wit} deep sorrow of the death of Rev. &, B. Smith wro was &i-a

Tl S A o e . : ed

"eMy years the faith{ul end efficient raster of this Church wro

°n tre Stk of lecember, 1£77:

) 5 . 3 i v signa-
"Therelore Zesolve 1lst: Thet while bowing with hwnple resig

tion to the will of God, we feel thet in the death of owr lamented

2 . . i eorgeis o -rnect
zrcther the aeromination has lost = good man and 2 faithIiul, earn
ranister ol e Gespel,

"2nde Thaot . . it vwicow end orplelg
2nd. -hc‘\v ur Sy’m}'athles t,e tenderp(_. J}Ae VILCOW el
of our late lamentec Erctler,

"Ipd. T ; faithful services rendered
2Fd: In grateful renembrance of the faithful servi > (25

)i B s y =I1ve

w28 (hurch in the past by Bro. Zmith that tre suz of EeEiieeLlil L

: 1 A stk
collers bte donated annually for four yeirs to his bercaved widow witl
Tt -

S _f¢rmest request that she accept tre scre as a menento of our s’fec-
blonet

&¢ve regard for our old paster,

. i - Jhurcl.
"Lth: That s copy of these Resolutions be spresd on the b

Sp2k end anotter copy Ilorwarded to tle widow of 5Sro. Smith."

There viere no minutes of note until -

"Saturdey before the 2ra Sundey in lay, 1878: * + % IZro. L. Jo
Tuval offered his resimnation ag Treasurer of the Church, which wes i
&ccepted, On mction tle follewingz Resolution was unanimously adopted: .
Resolved: That the thanks of tris lrurch are cdue end arc hereby tendcrec
2rc. I, (. Tuvel Zor the feithfol manner in wlich he has discherzed th
cutlies &s Treasurer,

“Un JIiOtiOl- o), Q. henl Y t:Chnson was elec‘t'ed .reasurer Of this
i t‘x R L
Gwarceh o T W,

"Saturday befere the 3rd Sundey in Jure, 1874: % % % Cn sotion

of Zro. 'y S. Joknscn the Zurch wzs to inguire into the languzze used
By Zro. A. Cosly at our last monthly umeeting, =+ « & Cn noticn of Ero.

l-eLry Johuson the Jhurch azpoirted their Fastor Yo see Eru. Coshyd

"Saturdey tefore the 3rd Sunday in duly, 1870: s+ i # the
committze appointed at our last ueeting made a report and the coumittee
discharged. + + ¥ Jn motion of Zro, Cosby the following rescluticn was
offered: 'Seeing the zreat difficulty now existing in the Church in
regard to the rules of the Church, Therefore, for peace and hariony we
move that bygones be bygones - and thzt the Church have a new Jonstitu-
tion or Bylaws that shall be dravm up oy four btrethren, or less if need
be, so that there will be no more misunderstanding, !

"The Resclution adopted - the Churcth appointed
cIlvene, J. V. Bowles, J. i, Stratten ard L. L, Ragland (7

i astor) =
cereittee to prepare a new Constitution for the Church,

d Zrethren 4, Cosby,
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"Dro. ccsuy reporied Zro. Saunders as guilty cof using profane
language., =« # % The Church appointed 2ro. '. 5. Jolnson & comnittee
LC see oro, Saunders. 3ro. 3tratton reported the neme of 3ro. Jas. =,
Ford as guilty of being drunk., The Churck appointed Bro, W. S. Johnson
2 ccxnittee to see Zro. Tord, ¥ # #"

".ondey, July 22, 1876: &t 2 call meeting of the Church s+ 4
the committee arrﬁlnted at the Saturday neeting to prepare a Constitu-
ticn for the Church made a2 report trat they had prepared a Church Cove-
nact and a series of bylaws for the Church.. The rercrt was received
and tre committee was discharged. On motion the Church adopted the
Covenant presented by the committee,  + # the brlaws presented by
“he cornittee was laid upon the table for the ;resent, # « "

"Saturdzy before the 3rd Sunday in rugust, 187t: #* % % cn
meiion the lhurch will ta:e up the bylaws which was laid upon the tzble
&t our last meeting., ALfter remarks by several brethrern, the bylews
was again leid on th table., ¥ % % on motion the Church excunged the
&L irticle from tle Zhurch Clovenant. On motion # i+ the bylaws was taken
Zrou. the table and acopted., The committee appointed to see trethren
Seunders and Ford made a regort thet he Lad seen 3ro. Saunders and thet
£ro. Seurders denied having used profzne language at ary time since hLis
cennection with tris Jhurch, and Iro. Ford saild it had been so leng
since he was druns et he had forgotten when it was that he was drunk,
~he report was received and the committee discharged. On motion of Erc,
Z. Jo Duval the Church appointed 2 committee to cite Zre. 3aunders to
agpear before the Zhurchk at our next meeting, i % » Un motion of Bro.
&. Cosby ihe Zhurch invite ir. A. R. (unreadable) tc appear before the
churclh as evidence in 2ro., Ssunders'case. {n motion of Zre. ... 3, vohnmsen
the Zrurch invi:ie ir, Claude St, Clair to appear alsc. Un motiorn the case

of 5ro. Ford was laid on the table urtil our next meeting., # # = %",
lotve: There is no record of tte new Covenant sna Ly-laws. It

would be interestirg tc know just what they mizht have enmbraced.

It is obvious tkat Bro. Costy's luck was holding. Just a few
W&eks cefore Le had been visited by a committee rezerding his use cof
profane languzge, or wes he visited by the committee? There is no re-
cord tc show that Zre. Fagland discharged the duty imposed upon him at
the meeting in June tc see 2ro. Cosby with relsrence to this natter,
It would seem that the whole affair was forgotten for at the July meet-—
ing 3rc, Cosby arpeared in person and offered a resolution for a new
Church Covenant.and a new set of By-laws, moving that "bygones be bygones",
Eis resolution wes irmediately adcpted and he was placed on the coumittee
to prepare suck Covenant and By-laws. 4t this same meeting 3ro. Cosby
nemed a witness to be called in an effort to prove another Zrother zuilty
of tke same offense of which he had been charged!!

At this point the writer vegs leave tc indulgze in one sh.ort line
of levity: '"Button, button, who's got the button? Or, was it a golden
horse-shoe that Bro, Cosby carried in his pocket?"
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"The 2rd Sundey in iugzust, 1876: # # sro. H. D. Ragland,
cur Fastor, tendered his resi;ﬂation to the Church as its PaSFor’
sald resignation to take effect six months from date. On motlon
¥ * % we as a Church approve of Bro, Ragland's labors here as a
Pastor and that we earnestly ack Bro, Ragland to withdraw his Te-
Signation. Carried with but ope dissenting vote. Cn motion 2a

comzittee of two was appointed to notify Brc. Ragland of the actior
of the Church, + % n

"Szturday before the 2rd Sunday in September, 187b: * * ¥
on motion the case of Zro, Saunders wasucontinued until our next .
teetirs, On motion 3ro, Jas, “ord was excluded from the fellowship
of this Churck for drunkenness, s # 4 "

"Saturday before the 3rd Sundey in November, 1876: + + z
on metion the case of Bro. Saunders continued until our next meet-
in;o ot oaE ”-

"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in lecember, 1L78: % # ¥
on movicn the case of Bro, Saunders was taken up and passed., On "
motion the Church excluded Willie J, Clarke for drunkenness. * i "o

"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in January, 1879: = # 3

Tre case of Lro, Szunders was called and on motion it was continued
until tou.orrow immediately after Sunday School, # # #".

"1079, January 19th, Arter Sundey School this morning, the
case ol Jdre, Saunders was zalled and as neither the Plaintiff nor the
Lefendznt were present, the case was continued until our next regular
Church meetinz,"

‘ "Sundey, Junuery 1y, 1879: After preacting this morning, the
church was called tcgether by the Pastor., Bro. Alfred Cosby requested
the Q.urch to drop his name from the Church roll or book. After re-
merks by Zrethren Fowers, Ragland and Stratton, and Sro. Cosby urging
the said request, on motion of Sro. Stratton the Crurch orcered his
name to be dropped or erased from the Church Book. 4 3 = < 4 ",

Srother Alfred Cosbr has until this time been one ¢f the high-
lights of this history. His request that his narie be removed from the
Church Book comes as a shock and a surprise, Whet could have prompted
suck action on his part? According to the records he had been forgiven
for any and all trarsgressions and was, in fact, the "fair-haired bey".
Regarcdless of what he might have done contrary to Christian teaching,
the meumbers always found & way out for him and he vizas welcomed back into

the fold with open arms. Throush the years he had faithfully attended

Church services andg meetings and had taxen an active pPart in the work of -
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the Crurch, It is more than curiosity that causes one to wonzer what
motivated 5ro. Cosby's request that his name be rewoved from the Church
roll, Unforturztely, we must wonder in vain for this question can never
be znswered., This writer freely admits that it is with a degree of re-

gret, even sadness, that she records for the lest tine the nane of

Brother Llfred Cosoy!

"Saturdzy befcre the 3rd Sunday in “ebruary, 1lg7y: = + * On
motion of :Zre. Stratton the cuse of Bro. Saunders was taken up, and
on mellen oI Lro, nenry Johnson, Zro. Saunders was acquitted. oo w
on meiion of Ero. Stratton, this Cnurch will hold a feast to raise
money to zay the balance of the Pastor's salary for 1878, « « # ",

Y O

wote: The time element here is of interest. It was in
July of 1873 that 2ro. Saunders was charged with using profane
language, and altbouth there had been many, many _hurch meetinzs since
that tiue, it was not until Tebruary of 187y that he was finally acguit-
ted of <he chargze, d

"Jaturday before the 3rd Sunday in Noverber, 1379: # # i Zro,
5o L. Ragland tendered his resiznation as Pastor of this Church. On
motlion -« # s the Jrurch declined accepting Bro. Ragland's resignatior,
In motion s+ i+ =+ the Chureh will retain Zro. Ragland as Pastor # s « ",

v before the 3rd 3Sunday in .arch, 1880: = i » Presen’:
zland (Pastor) # # % % Two of our Lre%hren were repori-
ed Yo the Clhurch Zor being drunk; Bro. J, . Stratton reported Ero. L. C.
votirell and Iro. henry Johnson reporteil :ro. Lewis Gordon., On motion

* -+ Brethreu (. i, Stratton and Zeorge Clarke were appoinved a com-
uithze 1o see Sret:ren Gordon and Cottrell and admonish them and resor
at owr next regular Church meeting # # + =M,

w W

3rethren &, I, ®

~
S~
v

urdzy vefore the 3rd Sundey in fpril, 1840: * » = The
: 2

b b
commitSee appointed zt our last meeting made a report and the report
eceived and the committee discharged, * # =

"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in Lay, 1561: * % % On motion
-rethren =. J. Duval and C. E. Woodson were appointed a committes to
meet Delegates at the Depot cominz to the Linisters' and Deacons' mest-
ing end assign them homes. * * = On motion 3ro. ¢, V. Jowles was ap-
pointed a Lelegate to the General Association and Bro. C. Z. Woodson
alternate, * = % ",

"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in June, 1561: % +« % 3ro. B, D.
Ragland, our Pastor, tendered his resignation as Pastor
to take eflfect six months from date and his resignation
the Church, # # « &

of this CIhurch
was accepted by
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-~ ’ T . & * % Tbe
"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in July, 1681: * ollect
Ghurch appointed a coummittee consisting of four sisters to C

money to pay the balance due on Pastor's salary for the years 1877 =
1860 - 1881 # # x,n

"Dover Church, August 20, 1381: # * % "Bro. Ragland ask;?e
to be relezsed from the pastoral charge of the Church at once. 3
Vvote was taken and he was released. Amount of money collected 2n
turned over to the Treasurer by the committee $llL.35."

Note: "The 3rd Sunday in September, 1881: Preachingyb¥eet_
3ro. C. L. Pilcher of Petersburz, Virginia. No regular Church i
inz in September,™ :

"The 3rd Sunday in November, 188l: Preaching today by =ICe
L. E. Cox of Richmond. #ifter preaching the Church weas called to ;
order for the purpose of securing a pastor for the year 1582- 1D' .
“infree o Chzsterfield, Virginia, wzs nominated and unanimous=y -
elected as Pastor. The Church agreed to pay him a salary of #150.
[per year for his servizes, -+ & "

Note: "The 3rd Sunday in December, ldvl. Preacl.ing again oy
Bro. A. Z. Cox of Richtmond,"

Note: "The Uth Sunday in January, 1882: Preaching by Bro.
U, 3. Winfree % + .

"lLth Sunday in February, 1882: # % The committee aPPOiQted
to collect Brc. Ragland's salary reported that they had collgcted
“56.05. The committee appointed to collect the £25.00 donmation to

Rev, A, B, Smith's widow reported they had collected $11,25 Zor tre ye:iT
1351, # = o wh

Note: A record of only one meeting in the year 1383 and that
meeting was held on Sunday, iarch Lth, 1803, The object of this neet~
inz was to elect a Pastor for the Church. On motion, Ero. Edmund harri-
son was unanimously elected and the Church agreed to pay him $150,20
rer year for Lis services,

After the above no minutes were recorded until the year 1385.

"Saturday before the lst Sunday in iay, 1885: # 3 % The Church
is due the Pastor 515,48 # s s xn,

"Saturday before the 3rd Sunday in June, 1585: # * 3 Present
Srethren E, Harrison (Pastor) # i #, On motion the kozerator appointed
Srethren E. R, Nuckols, W. S. Johnson and S. D. Ellis Delegates to the
Dover Association. On motion Brethren H. R. Nuckols, Dr. Jas. Browm,
J. &, Stratton, R. ¥, Gaskins and J. V. Bowles were appointed a com-
mittee to have the cemetary enclosed # % # % ",
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"Dover :eeting touse, January 17, 1386: s+ # % The ceumetery
comnittee made & report and were continued. On motion, 2 comnittee
of one, <. V. Bowles, Committee, was appointed to attend the Circuit
Court of this County and reguest that Srethren \im., S. Johnson, S. D.
=llis, henry K. Nuckols and Dr, Jas. Brown be confirmed and appointed
Trustees of this Church, i ¢ # % ",

Note: Bro. Edrund karrison, Pastor, is listed zs one of those
present at the above meeting.,

T T

Lt this point it becomes necessary to make a slizht digression
in order to incorperate and explain some facts not recorded in the min-
utes oI the Church meetings,

:t will pe noted that at the meeting held the Saturday obefore
the 3rd Suncay in Juae, 10685, a coumittee was agpointed to hzve thre
cenetery enclosed., This is the first .ention of a cemetery in éqnnec-
tion with the Church. On January 17, 1586 the cemetery committee re-
ported and was continued, This vould indicate that the cenetery wa
established certzinly us early as June of 1d65.

Following is a copy of a deed recorded in the Clerk's Of7ice

of Goochland+Circuit Court:

"This Deed made the 3rd day of .arch in the year 1885, betwzen
E. J. Luval and Phoda T. Duval, hLis wife, of Goochland County, Virginia,
of the first part, John Z. Ellis, Levy D. Ellice, James 4. Brown, Henry
K. Nuckols, trustees and their successors in office, of the saue county
and Stete of the second part, Witnesseth: that ‘te said &. J. Duval and
Rhoda T. Luval, his wife, for and in consideration of the deep interest
they feel in tie welfare and prosperity of Dover Church as a place of
divine worship & for the venefit or tlie members of said church and in

considerztion ol ive dollars cash in hand paid by said members uno
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aid = 21 ustees
the said Z, J. Duval ang fhoda T, his wife, do grant unto SR B

3 + : 1 eace or
ana their successors in office with general warranty a certain pe=x

Farcel of land lying and “eing in Dover district Goochland, Va., coatazn-
ing three quarters of an acre, more or less for the purpose of a burylng
ground, bounded as follows: On the north and east by the lands of the
over Cole Mine Company on the south by the Dover Church property, on
thz west by the lLanakin Terry Road, Said parties of the first part
covenant th:t they have the right to convey the said land; that the
srantees stall have quiet possession of the ssid land free from all en-
cunmbrances; that they hLave done no azt to encunber the said land; tret
they will execute sush further essurances of the said land as mey ve Tre-
quisite or necessary,

"itness the folloving siznztures znd seals, dey and date 2bOvE.

";

. J. Luval (SZAL)

"3, T. Duval \SELL)

"State of Virzinizs
"County of Goochland, to-wit;

"I, R, B. 7inston, a lotary Public in znd for the ~ounty
aforesaid in the State of Virginia, do certify that E. J. Luvel whose
naume 1s signed to the within writin:; bearing date on the trird day of
-arch, 1866, has acknowledgzed the same before me in my County aforeszid.
Given unier my hand this Lth day of fpril. 1357.

"R. B. Winston, K.P.

"fnd I Zurther certify that Rhoda T. Duval, the wife of E. J. Duvel whose
names are signed to the within writing bearing date on the third day of
lkarch, 1886, personally appeared before me in the County aforesaid and
beinz examened by me privately and apart from her husband and having the
writing aforesaid fully expleined to her by me, she the said Rhoda T.
Duval, the wife of E., J. Duval, aclknowledged the said writing to be her
act and declarsd thrat she had willingly executed the same and doesn't
wish to retract it.

"Jiven under my hand this Lth day of April, 1867,

"R. B. Winston, . P,
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"In Goochland County Zlourt Clerks Office, 16th ilay, 1887,
"This Leed was this day re -eived in said office, and with the
certificates annexed, admitted to record.

"Teste: Wm. killer, Clerk."

The dates involved in this deed should prove of interest.
The deed was drawn and dated ..arch 3, 1886; the signatures were not
certified until April L, 1887 (moré than a year later) and the deed
Was received in the Clerk's Office on wmay 16, 1887. To complicate
one's thinking even more, the cemetery wus apparently in use in June
of 1885,
The boundaries stipulated in this deed should also be observed.
" % s . containing three quarters of an acre, more or less
for the purpose of a burying ground bounded as follows:

Un tke north and east by ti.e lanis of the Tover Cole
iiine Clompany, on the south by the Lover Church rroperty,

A |
.

on the west by the ..anakin Ferry Road, * -+ %

These boundaries clearly indicate that “he vroperty on the
south of the present cemetery (tr-= property on which the church was
erected in 1055 and the adjacent land) was at that tise considered to
be ormed by Lover Church., 4s previously steted on Page 2y of this
vriting there ls no record to show how, or from whom, the Church progerty
was acyuired., It is entirely possible trat in the long ago rast gifis
0. land may Lave been made without "deeds of writing", Even in such
event, it is odd that a survey {(if one was made) lor the gift of the
cemetery property did not bring to light the fact that there was no
deed on file covering the Church property. There have been two surveys
in recent years, which surveys involved the acquirement of additicnal
property cdjoining the Church and thése transactions will be discussed
in their proper places.

* 30 de F 3 3
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w ings
e return now to the minutes of the various Church meeting

: £ Tover
and continue our efforts to form some idea of the progress of ZoVe€

Saptist Church,

Liter the meeting on January 17, 1886 tie record is 51lfnt
until the lst Sunday in Lay, 1887. At this meeting the [inance :omj
mittee reported that they had subscribed towards the Pastor's salary

201.00.  Tue Treasurer reported irat the et Lioc paiad her Past8f+
UP o date [147.21 en! was vet due him $102.79. It is not knovm ¥hav
rerivd these caownts covered,

- . ~ a - D M L & ld
"2rd Sundey in October, 1887: « # Srethren C. E. Woodson &l

~+ S. carter vere appointed Delegates to the Laptist Generel et il
o
tlon, ¢ 4 % A

collection vas taken for the Stae Lissions # = =

) "3rd Suncey in December, 1687: # # Th.e Treasurer reported that
the lhurch was in debt to the extent of 3159,88, = % M,

. "lst Sunday in July, 1868: # i Breturer J. V. Bowles, 3. L.
Lllis, J4 .. Stratten, R. F. Gaskins were eppointed Lelegates to tre
Lover Zaptisi issociztion. + ¥ The Churat granted her Fastor a fur-
levgh during the monthr of August, - % 4 ",

Trers are no minutes for the vear 1889,

"end Sundey in Cctober, 1890: i # On mction of 3rc. Stratten
fvery nember of this hurch pay ten cents per ronth to defray the in-
cicental expenses of the Church., + % ",

There it no indication trat Bro. Stratton's motion was carried.
Lowever, thLere is every indication that the Church has been beset with
extreme financial diZficulties ever since the new builainz was erected,

"2nd Sunday in Movember, loy0: + i % Erethren Fox and Saskin
were appointed Delegates to the Generzl association. # % Bro. Je. He
Johnson resigned the offlce of Trecasurer and Bro. L. E. Cordon duly
elected in his place, # % % ",

"2nd Sunday in february, 1891: ¥ % ¥ It was reported that it
would cest $15.00 to have the Church Louse insured for the sum of $1,000,
Tre Church received this report and ordered Srethren Crouch and Gaskins
tc have the Louse insured, s % 3 ",

"2nd Sunday in lLay, 1691: % t % After preaching the Churct was
called together Zor the purpose of collecting %4$.00, the amount due
or Pasteor. Amount raised to pay this amount and tle meeting adjourned."

"Lth Sunday in June, 1892: 3 % % Brethren S. D. 2lliss J« Vs
Bowles, L. E. Cordon and R. 7. Gaskins were appointed Celegates to thre
Cover Lssociation, # * 4 " |
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Once again it is deemed expedient to depart from facts and
figures in thre Linute Book in an effort to portrey a picture of Lanakin
Village during this period,

A Post Cffice was establisted in the village on September 3,

1868 under the nazme of "Dover .ines", It retained this namne until February
2, 1509 when it was changed to ".anzkin',

It will be noted on Page 1 of this history that reference is made
to lrs. L, C. Clarke ard ir., Jenkin Jones, both members of Dover Zaptist
Churchi, This writer will now try to recapitulate soie of the facts given
by irs. Clarxe ani .r. cones,

~rs. Clerke is a life-long resident of the Lanakin area. In the

vear 1893 she was sixteen yzars of zge. 5She clearly recalls events that

ct

~

ook place during thzt year (and before) and distinctly rereuwbers Fro-

k4

essor rarrison vwho was the Pastor at Lover around that time, In talking
Wwith irs. Clarke it was learned that in, and before, the yecr 1593 .anakin
was a thriving village, inhabited by from fifty to seventy-five families,
with approximately thirty-five of these families living in a radius of a
third of a mile, There was a fifteen foot road rumning right through the
village and streets were laid out and numbers used on the houses. There
was an excellent hotel, a commissary, barber shop and three stores. These
stores were cperated by Deitrick, Snead, and Richardson & Sublett. And
there wes a bar! (This writer viewed the license issued to Saml, T.

Luval in 1883 to operate the bar, This license is now in the possession

of .rs. Ruth Henley).
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§ v. Dover
Th.ere were three active Churches in thle area, namely,

o i 111 be
Baptist Church, a .ethodist Church, and a iliegro Church which wil

referred to in tre reminiscences of ir. Jenkin T. Jones.

) . . illage
irs. Clarke stated thzt there was much activity 11 tre v

. ion
during those days, such activity being brought about by the operat

n : : ing W d s
>f the Tover Cosl i.ines and the quarry which was then being worked BF

+ Gin
1 i i feoe - the mi o ot
Eenry Karris, Of course, it 's understood tiat the mines Wwere n

) 1
. . " \ : : : ad had
full operation at thzt time for the Chesapeake and Chioc Railroaa b

: 2 and the
alrezdy started bringing in cheaply mined coal from the mountains an

v 5 : 5 . . T additian
mining of coal in the ..znakin area was lessening all the time.

g . - 5 n a”O”Hd
to the mines, thers were other enterprices on a smaller sczle in and arou

the area and the village was a "bee-rive" of goings and cominsSe

+
|9

M

.rs. Clarke recalled (arolire Lenley and her oxcard, stating &
_he regularly drove this conveyance to over Church on Sunday, 1o the stores
at .anazin and the vicinity thereabouts., It is believed that Caroline hen-
ley was the last llegro member to leave Lover church.

Tre lamps rreviously referred to as being used in tre weeting
Eouse constructed in 1772 were not removad to the new Church. .I. =. Ce
Clarke, husband of .rs. Clirke, retrieved two of these lamps from a TuD-
Dish heap near the site of the original leeting Louse many, many years
after it was abandoned. These lamps are now in the possession of iliss

wary L. Clerke, daughter of urs. L. C. Clarke. lrs. Clarke does not

know of any other lamps that were salvaged.

In the back of this historywill be found a map which was drawn

by iiss hary L. Clarke under the supervision of her mother, This map

cives us an idea of what lLanakin Villagze once was.,
(=] o
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A salute to lrs. L. C, Clarke for her ability to remember
these important events, and gratitude to her and to Liss iary L.
Clarke for their cooperation and help in the compilation of the facts

concerning Dover Church!

So far as can be ascertained, .r, Jenxin T. Jones is the old-
est living menber of Dover 2aptist Church, Ffrom .r. Jones' bin of
mendries cowe nany interesting facts.

LTe Jones was corn in Cardiff, Vales in 1872, In a conversation
with him he stated that when he came to the ranakin area in 1588 he found
a bustling anc flourishinz village at that time occupied by from fifty
to seventy-fivé families, that streets were laid cut and naned and the
houses were numbered,

“Ten guestioned about the original .eeting fouse, .r., Jones
pointed out its exzet loceticn and described in detail tre adioining
lands. ZFrom his description it wes unquestionably a one-room, logz
structure, built so tlat it faced the east. ir. Jones clearly remen-
bered the fraiework of the buildinz which was still standing when le
came wO uanakin,

=r. Jones tells us that in 18068 there was a large brick church
on the south side of tre Piver Road, and nearer the James Piver, which
General Charles P, Stone, General :anager for tle Zover Lozl Coumpany,
had caused to be erected for the sole benefit of the Negroes in the

comunity. It is believed that this church was built shortly after

the Civil Var. In his discussion of the past, .r. Jones stated that

the bricks from this church were later used in the construction of the
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Negro Church (First Baptist Church) now at .anakin.

kr. Jones discussed at length the vast operations of the Lover
Coal Company stating that this enterprise involved some 1760 acres o
land, and he also talked much about General Charles P. Stone Who had
built for himself a pretentious home near ianakin, Lany years later
this home was sold, torn down and moved away.

. s ] g vias
i merber and regular attendant of Dover Church, .r. JOR€S ¥

Church Clerk for a nurber of yeers, he spoke with clarity end with cer-
tainty and described a fence which was built in the Church for the Pur=
pose of separating the write and colored menbers while they attended
services.

Sincere zratituce is here and now errressed to .r. Jenkin T.
dones for his cocperation and interest znd for the help he has given

this writer in attempting to reconstruct a picture of Lianakin and the

surrounding area as it actually was in the 1800's!

EE I
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"e return now to the lLinute Book and pick up with =

"2nd Cunday in kay, 1893: % # % On motion of Bro. Cordon a
committee of three was appointed to assess the members of this Church
to neet the expenses of the Church., * % % ",

"Dover Church, Jenuery 25, 1896: # # Bro. Jepkin T. Jones
was unanimously elected Church Clerk. s % # ",

"Sunday, larch 22, 1896: # % Bro. karrison made the announce-
ent of his resignation as Pastor of the Church to take effect between
this date and June of the present vear, # = ",

"April 12, 1896: « % After prezching by Rev. k. L. Fugate of
Richmond # % # Bro., Larrison's resignation as Pastor wes accepted. * *
“he Treasurer made a report as having a balance due the pastor of £120.00.
The committee appointed to canvess the members in order to pay the retir--

ing pastor the 2120,00 due him, # # # ",

"April 26, 1896: s 3 The matter of securing a pastor to succeed
Prof, Harrison was discussed. The majority of the members preferred
Bro. J. ¥. Reynolds rather than Rev. dJ. Wilkinson. Bro. <J. V. Bowles
appointed a committee to confer with Nuckols' Church with 2 view of as-
certainirg whetker they would cooperate with Dover Church and have the
same pastor for both Churches., = 3 % ",

"uay 2L, 1896: % * On motion * % the Church went into electing -
a pasvor to succeed Professor harrison. Rev. W, W. Reynolds and Rev.
Jd. V. Reynolcs were nominated. J. V. Reynolds securing a majority was
elected pastor and on motion # % # the vote or caell was made unanimous.
The Chair then announced Rev. J. V. Reynolds, Pastor of this Church.
The Cheir appointed a committee of three to tender the call of Dover
to Rev. J. . Reynolds. # * The committee was instructed to notify Bro.
Feynolds that re would be expected to preach two Sundays anc one Satur—
dey in each month «nd that the Church had fixed his salary € £150,00
per year. The committee was further instructed to notify him that the

call would be for twelve months,"

"July 12, 1696: Lfter preaching by Rev. Jno. Reynolds, Sr, s %
the committee eppointed to tender the Pastorate of Dover Baptist Church
to Rev. J. W. Reynolds reported and also layed the proposition of Bro.
FPeynolds to the committee before the Church for careful consideration
and discussion, which reads as follows: 'Your committee after having
conferred with Bro. Reynolds # # 3 Bro. Reynolds makes this proposition
to the Church: that he will give the Church two Sundays, one himself
and one by his father. The Saturday service which was asked by the
Church he would have to leave off as it would necessitate the giving
up of one or more of his Churches., He said he would do all of the
pastoral work of the Church himself, * 3 % ",
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; ided
hfter much discussion concerning this matter it was decl

that the Church would reject Bro. Reynolds' propesitiomn. The Clerk

: : invite
was instructed to notify Bro. Reynolds of this decision and to 1RV

him to preach zt Dover the Ltk Sundéy in July, 1896.

At tris same meeting Brethren E. S. Holland, L. D. E11is,
“u. Crouch and Jenkin T, Jones were appointed Delegates to attend the
Dover Association which would meet zt Taylorsville Church 21, 22, 23
of July, 1896,

At a meeting on hugust 9, 1896, it was decided to have a pPro-
tracted meeting before selecting a Pastor. Rev. R. B. Collier cof Seven
Pines, Virginia was recommended as a suitable man for the occasion. The
Clerk was authorized to invite Bro. Collier to preact on the 16tk of
August, 1696, A motion to invite Ero. Reynolds to hold the protracted
meeting was voted down. A motion to invite Bro. Collier to hold the
meeting was carried.

"Thursday Night,'August 27, 1896: 3+ » % On motion a standing
vote was taken which unanimously elected Rev. R. B. Collier Pastor of
Zover Baptist Church under the followingz conditions: that Bro. R. B.
Collier of Seven Pines, Virginia, would serve Dover Baptist Church in
the capacity of Pastor for an indefinite time at a salary of #£150.00
per year, the Church requesting Bro. Collier to preach twice every
month and attend the regular Church meetings once every quarter on
Saturdey, and in the event that the Church would get dissatisfied with
the Pastor the Church would give him three months notice and if the
Fastor would get dissatisfied with the Church he would duly give the
Church three months notice. % * 3 3 M,

Apperently Bro. Collier accepted the call for immediately

after the above minutes is found the following note:

"August 28, 1896, James River - Near Roscobel Station.
Bro. Collier baptized 1l young members."

VWhile the above dates are clearly written, one naturally pauses to
consider the time element. It was on August 9th that the Church decided to

invite Bro. Collier to hold the protracted meeting: on August 27th that
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the Church elected Rev. Collier to take over the pastoral duties, and
on Lugust 28th that he baptized fourteen young members. There are no
minutes of record between August 9th and August 27th to indicate that

Bro. Collier held the protracted meeting and no record of his acceptance

of the call,

"October 17, 1896: # % Bro. J. T. Jones, Church Clerk, offered
his resignation. # # Action deferred until a committee could confer
With Bro. Jones. # # Brethren Holland and Saunders elected Delegates
to the General Association. # % % ",

Notes of interest:

"Sunday, Nov. 1, 1896: Preacking by Ero. Smith of Richmond
College. Rev. Collier present but could not preach on account of a
sore foot.

"Sunday, Nov. 15, 1896: Preacking by Rev. (illegible) Ianson
of Highland Springs, Virginia. Rev. Collier, Pastor, absent on account
of having a sore foot.

"November 29, 1896 - Called Meeting, # #* % The object of this
meeting was to get permission to have a cantata in the Church for tre
purpose of aiding the Church in purchasing new benches, The ladies
were authorized to have the cantata in the Church. % = = ",

"January 16, 1897: % % % The authorization given the ladies
to have a cantata in the Church was reconsidered. Bro. J. T. Jones
withdrew his resignation as Church Clerk. It was decided that prezch-
ing services would be held on the lst and 3rd Sundays in each month
at 11:30 A M, # % = ",

"Jalled Meeting - 3rd Sunday in Jenuary, 1897: For the pur-
pose of appointing a committee to frame new bylaws and constitution.
Committee: L. E. Gordon, L. D. Ellis, J. li, Stratton, H. S. hollend
and J. T. Jones. The committee was instructed to report at the next
meeting, 3 3 & ",

"April 18, 1897: # 3 Bylaws read to the Church by the Church
Clerk."

Tke above extract is the lzst recordation in the first minute
book of Dover Baptist Church. There is no record of the new bylaws and
constitution the committee was, on the 3rd Sunday in Janwry, 1897, in-
structed to frame, nor is it known what bylaws the Clerk read on April

18, 1897.

3
Sk
*
*
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At this point we move on to what is supposed to be the secon

L3 red
Linute Book of Dover Baptist Church, Many of the pages here 2r€ yellowe

and
and broken by age. The book indicates that it has been badly handled

£3 es
the first page of writing begins in the middle of a sentence. Half pag

and pieces of pages have been glued or taped in the book and pages ars

* . : . . . 'ter
missing. Also, there are many pages of written material which BhiS wrl

has been unable to decipher, Eowever, an effort will be made to show the

progress of Lover Baptist Church through the years.

"October 17, 1897: At a regular meeting % # 3 the Church care=
fully considered the apology of Rev. J. W. Heckman, Pastor of the Lebs
Shurch of this place which he sent to the Church by Bro. Stratton for
the insult that he had been guilty of, and for slandering members of
Dover 3. Church. After carefully considering tte weight of the charges
made against this Church and careful consideration of the apoloZy, ©on
motion this matter was deferred until our next meeting. * ¥ *".

There is no previous mention of this matter and it is not kmown
what the slandering consisted of., There were only two meetingzs recorded
during the year 1898 and nothing of importance transpired at either meet-
ing. At none of the meetings after October 17, 1897, up until tris time,
has the "insult and slandering" by Rev. J. W. Heckman been again referred
to. It would seem most probable that the entire matter was settled pri-
vately or simply forgotten as time went by.

"Called l.eeting, June L, 1899: % % % In view cof the faci that the
Association will corvenc here next month, the following comuithees were ap-
pointed to attend tc affeirs: Committee on hospitality H. S. kolland, L.E.
Cordon and V. S, Sannders. Committee to attend to grounds and tables
A. C. henley, Sam'l DuVal, Jr. Ceo. Sanders, irs. DuVal, Lrs. Nuckols ard
'rs. Crouch. Committee to solicit homes for Delegates, L. D. Ellis, W.S.
Sanders, Wm, Crouch and W. E. Ashby. % % %",

Note: Protracted services commenced with Rev. I. K. Harrison.

Rev. Verncn I. 2nson and Rev. R, B. Collier in attendance - October 8th
to l.h.th °

EEE G
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We start the year 1900 on a sour note.

"February 2L, 1900: # # #* Whereas ouwr Pastor, Rev. R. B.
Collier has been charged with misappropriation of money collected for
the different Boards of this Dover Church, and whereas said R. B.
Sollier has proper receipts showing to the contrary, Resolved this
Dover Church exonerate him from all censure of guilt. A rising vote
was taken, terminating in twelve for exoneration and one only for

censure,"

If all present voted, it would seem that the number 13

was an unlucky number for Bro. Collier!

"April 1, 1900: 3 # It was moved, seconded &rd carried at this
meeting that the minutes of the previous meeting be reconsidered. #
Bro. Gordon moved that a committee of three be appointed to investigate
the whole trouble and charges against Bro. Collier in regards to the
misappropriation of certain Church funds and report such findings on
the 3rd Sundey in April, The committee appointed consisted of Bro.
Saunders, Bro. S. C. Duval and Bro. Ben Duval, # 3 st,

"Sunday, April 15, 1900: # s Bro. Saunders handed in the report
of the Iindings of the Committee that was appointed to look into the
charges that were made against the Pastor. The report being read to the
Church, 3ro. lolland moved that the connection between this Dover Church
and Bro. Collier be disconnected. On the vote being taken it was unani-

mously adopted. #* 3 3 ",

Unquestionably, Bro. Collier's "connection" was"disconnected"
for a committee was appointed at this meeting to look for a new Pastor,

Bro. Spencer of the Baptist College in Richmond preached at

Dover on July 8, 1900, After services at a Church meeting, Brethren

m, Crouch, Geo. Saunders, B. B, Duval and L., Gordon were arpointed to

go to the Association,

At a meeting on September 30, 1900, the Church decided to extend

a call to the Rev. A. D. Louthan to serve as Pastor at Dover. The call
was mzde for one year for the sum of $150.00, preaching to take place

every second Sunday morning and every fourth Sunday evening, the year

comuencing Octovber 1lst, 1900,
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the
Note: e can assume that the Rev. h. D. Louthan'acceg}gzgchl
call for his name appears as Pastor and as attending various
meetings after October 1st, 1900.

For a long period now the minutes are recorded in an illegible
manner. Occasionally a full sentence can be read, but for the most part
the writings are Jumbled and meaningless.,

On November 7, 1902, a meeting was called for the purpose of

ralsing the amouat of §$54.90, balance due the Pastor for the fiscal
year 1902,

At a Church meeting on September 13, 1903 one important lt:fe
of business was to appoint a committee to "find out the amount due th
Pastor and other financial affairs of the Church."

t

This seems to have been the unfortunate pattern all through the
years. If records were kept, who kept them? Vhy should it have been
necessary to appoint a committee every two or three months to deteraine
how much money had been paid the Pastor and how much was still due him?
Yet, this is precisely what happened end when the amount of the debt to

the Pastor was established it became necessary to use almost drastic

measures to raise the money to liquidate said debt.

At a meeting on liovember 8, 1903 it was determined that the amount

cue Rev. A, D. Louthan at the close of the Pastoral year October 1, 1903,
was $45.00. It was ordered that this amount be paid at this meeting and
such anmount was promptly raised by members present and paid to Rev,
Louthan.

Bro. A. D. Louthan was again called as Pastor of Dover Church
for the year beginning October 1, 1903, and he accepted the call,

Bro. H. S, Holland was, at the meeting on November 8, 1903 ;

elected Treasurer of the Church to succeed the late L. E., Gordon.
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&% a meeting held on ipril 10, 1904, Bro. . 3. Saunders wes

elected Treasurer to rill the vacancy created by the resignation of Bro,

£. 5. holland.

Altheugh no mention has been mzde of the resignation of 3Bro., J. T.
Jones as Church Clerk, Bro. W, L, Crouch is now and has for a long time
been serving in this capacity,

July 1C, 190L, was Childrens! Day ét LDover., A4t this time 3ro.
A. D. Louthan was still serving as pastor. On this date Brethren ', L.
Crouch, J. VU, Sowles, L. L. Cllis and Jenkin T. Jones were elected Lele-
gates to attend the Lover Association which wes to convene at Berea Church
in Hanover County, Virginia, on the 25th of July, 150,

The next minutes of recerd read:

"January 8, 1%05: the Churcl being without a pastor, called Bro.
Sreen as supply pastor until a regular pastor could be obtained."

On January 22, 1905, a meeting was held for the purrose of deter-
mining how much money was due Rev, A, D, Louthan, the retiring pastor, and to
pay the amocunt due., It was also 4 cided that Zro. Green would be paid #12.50
per month salery, the same as had been peid Bro. Louthan,

On iy 1k, 1905, Bro, 7. L. hardy wes elected pastor, and 2 com-
mittee appointed to "inform the 3re. of his selection.,” Tre following is

an exiract from the minutes of ~ay lith:

"i#=5¢ Bro, Green preached his final sermon and the Church paid him
in full to dete, #14.50. Also Bro. Louthan in full $13,60, and sexton's
bill 21,34 in full, So that Bro. Hardy will find the Church clear of
debt. God grant it may stay so."

These minutes were signed by V. ii. Crouch, Clerk.

"Lay 28, 1905: Bro. Herdy preached his first sermon after being
czlled as pastor,"
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. . gy do
Now come periods when there zre no minutes and when they

appear they are illegible or undated.

LLrS. L'

"January 1L, 1906: # # % the old "Bible" was given tO nis death.”

« Gordon, as her husband expressed a wish for the same before

=
-

"say 1, 1906: Lt a called meeting of Dover Crurch, el l,tizgé’
tpe object of the meeting was stated by the pastor, Rev. F. haydy vice
iis time of service for the past 12 months had expired with tLis se;';v
and he alsc stated that if invited would come and preach for us ot h1
next meetirg, June 10, 1906, But stated that he could not accept the .
call for less than #20C.00 as the Goochland Church had already g
Fis salary. The Brethren had until June 10th to see vhat action sk

oe tzlien, The sentiment ol the Church seemed favorable to comply ¥
the request of the Pastor,."

oulc
ith

. +3in~
"Called meeting, June 10, 1906  # * The object ol this megglnzl
was to consider the recalling of the pastor, Zev. F. L. Hardy, bhe iS¢
year ending liay 13, 1906, % # # After a discussion of the financial al=
fairs of lover Church # # # it was decided by standing vcte to reca
Ero., “rank L. Hardy for another year, also to raise Pastor's salary to
$200.00, the present amount being 150,00, 3 i ¥ #"

"July 8, 1905: % + Brethren J. V. Bowles, Walter Zllis, B. Duval
and Jenkin T. Jones, also irs. knna Ellis elected Delegates to attend
meeting of Dover Association to be held at Cool Springs Baptist Church
in Hanover County, Virginia, on July 2, 1906. 3 # % "

There are no wminutes of note until:

"Deceuber 2%, 1907: # s * Bro, Frank Eardy, pastor oI Dover
Saptist Church offered his resigznztion to the Church asking that it be
promptly accepted and wishing it to take effect on the Lth Sunday in
January. After some discussion armong the zrethren, 3ro. Lardy's re-
signation was accepted. Ee leaves in good fellowship and love to ac-
cept a call to another field, 3ro. Hardy steted that the Church is now
due him 765,00 and requested *hat this amount be raised and paid him at
the Church's earliest convenience. * #* 3 Prewious to this meeting Bro.
fardy asked the members to assist in the Endowment Tund for Richmond
College. 150,00 was promised by January 26, 1908."

"After the close of services a called meeting of the Brethren
was held to arrange financial matters and arrange to have someone conduct
services until a regular pastor was called, Bro. Hardy suggested Bro.
“ythe Anderson of Richmond College., It was decided to ask him to supply
until other arrangements were made,"

Note: It is interesting to observe that no financial difficulties

have been mentioned since the meeting on kay 1l, 1905. The fervent prayer

of Bro. Crouch on that date seems to have held for nearly three years!
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"February 9, 1903: Bro. Vvthe L. Anderson of Richmond College
conducted services at Lover Church on the above date. The sum of #5,00
Was rcised and paid to 3ro. Anderson. ot many wembers present and no

eclision on 2 pastor or not any money raised for 3Bro. Lardy's salary.
Sro, Anderson will preach again on tke Uth Sunday in February. 4 bill
of £6.00 was presented to the Church by the sexton, ir. C, H. Powers."

"warch 22, 1908: At a czll meeting of Dover Saptist Church #
the object of this meeting is to raise funds to pay the former pastor,
Rev. F. L. Hardy, #63.25, the entire amount to date. * # Bro. Jones
Spoke in regard to the cemetary and made a motion that all who are not
kembers of Dover Church must see the Trustees before the privilegze of
burizl was granted. This notion was carried."

£t a meeting on June 1), 1908, ttre following matters of business
- % o 3 7 3 (<]
7ere tvaken up:

The balance due Bro. F. L. sardy was raised and he was paid in
Fad
Lullo

The Church was requested to reimburse Bro. J. V. Bowles the
arount of £7,00 which he had personally advanced to pay Or.
Louthan, a former pastor,

The matter of Trustees was discussed and it was moved that
srethren Jenkin T. Jones znd Sam Ce Luval be appointed and
confirmed at the next Circuit lourt of Goochland ZJounty to
fill the vacancies created by the deaths oI Brethren L. =,
Gordon and E. X, Kuckols.

The celling of a pastor was discussed but no decision reached.

The minutes of this meeting were approved by J, B, Hill, Lcting
Pastor,

At a meeting on June 28, 1908, the matter of calling a pastor
was azain deferred, ‘

"September 13, 1908: At a call meeting # 3 3 the object of this
- ’ ° s .
meeting is to call a pastor. 2ro, (? Clarke was named and motion made to
> p \
extend to him a call to the pastorate of Dover Church. # 3 "

Notez The conditions of the call - that Bro. Clarke preach one
morning and one afternocon service, the salary to be
£150,00. Bro. Clarke agreed to consider the call ard
in October, 1706, he accepted the call on the named
conditions.

liote: It seems proper to mention here thab the year is well

.on the wane and no reference has been made to the $150.00
promised for the Endow.ent Fund for Richmond College.

The minutes of December 2y, 1907 stated this amount was
promised "by January 26, 108",
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The meeting on Larch 13, 1909, was one of great event. Th

pastor, 2ro, Clarke, was moderator at this meeting.

vilege

"4 motion made to allow the sisters in the Church the prlrt in all

£ 4 - . s e 1 ;
0= voting - was unanimously carried and in the future will take P2
the meetinzs,n®

CUpposite this recordation in bold handwriting are two words:

"loman Suffrage."

\ . ” . . " r.zt an caster
"april 11, 1909: + + On motion # # it was suggested t;°* y % that

“estival be hLeld for tle benefit of the Church. ¢ # # On motlo nenefit
Polk Liller of Richmond deliver a lecture at the Church for tzeﬂwvrh;“Asso-
of the Church, # # % the object to have the Church painted berore Eburch
clation meets here in July, Also an entertainment be held &t theﬂh;rch n
Erounds during the Associztion - proceeds for the benefit of the C .

* - ‘p

»t a meeting on lay 9, 1909, with Bro. James L. Clarke (Fastor)
acting as soderator, it was decided to have the Church painted azt 2 Gt

. r n13 zedt
of 345.00 and a committee was appointed to see that the job was accomplish
Tollowing is an extrast from the minutes under the above date:

"Sro. Zllis then made a motion, or rather thouzht, we hfd betﬁiz
fix the fee at tre door. After some discussion left open = 35¢ Lor.ad‘ =3
25¢ for children. After consideration the above amounts were agreed upon.
* % % ilter much discussion and delay the meeting adjourned."

It is not clear what the above fees were intended to cover unless
they were admission prices to hear the Polk Liller Lecture whick had been
previously discussed,

The minutes move on to Octcber then November and still no mention
of the hAssociation having met at Lover during tle month of July.

After the above there are no legible or connected minutes until
the Lth Sunday in August, presumably of 1910:

"# i % at a called neeting of Dover Church the Deacons were appointed

as a committee to see after a pastor for the Church to succeed Bro. James 4.
Clarke who has resigned his pastorate of this Church."

"November 13, 1910: * ** % the object of the meeting was to call a
paster, Brother Zllis made a motion that we call 2rother Tucker as pastor
at a salary of §150.00, if we can't get him at that price, try to gzet him at
$200.,00. The motion wes carried, i +
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Srother Tucker was duly waited upon and stated that he could not
2ive a decided answer until the lLith Sunday in November, so the Church de-
cided to wait until that time to call a pastar.
The next meeting of record reads as follows:

"Called meeting, February 12, 1911: After a discourse by A. J.
Adams of Spurgeon Lemorial Church, Lorfolk, Tirginia, the Church convened
for bu51ness. Bro, L, D. Ellis kuommittee on Pastor) read a letter from
Rev. <. T, Tuzker to the effect that he declines the call to the pastorate
of tris hurch which was tendered hir a few months ago. On motion, 3ro.
L.D. Ellis wes retzined &5 Coumittee to secure a pastor. Lr. 4. J. fders
being present, the committee approached him relative to *he pastorate.
~e resdily consented “o taxe the Church and preach each Zunday in the
month at ““03 00 per annum, The committee was instructed to defer mzking
@ final report on the matter until two (2) weeks hence. On motion, th
Chair eppointed 3ro. J, L. Dunlevy to repair the Church fence and present
tils bi1l to the Church. On motion, the Clerk wes instructed to have the
church record here on the Lth Sunday in order to zet the nzues of the Church
Trustees. Tespect’ully submitted: . 3. Ellis, <lk Tro tem. J. T. cones,
--oderater. ipproved April 8, 1SIX,

"+3. Upon investigation, ‘. T, Jones ascertained the fact that

the above meﬁtionpd £+ Jo hdams is not a minister, £Lfter writing to Frof.
Je 7. Boztwright, e31Jent of Richmond uolle're, and President of .arvard

University end ?ev C. L. Jenkens, Tastor of Spurgeon Lemorial Zaptist

Crurch, he was satisfied ttet the man Ldams is an imposter and notified
him to leave the village at once. (Zimed) J. T. Jones, llerk,"

"Celled meeting, Tebruary 2¢, 1¢11: ﬁ“mﬁd;ately afier '*e_c“*u;
ces by Rev, V. D, lnderson of Rizhmo:d, Virginia, the lhurch convened
s

irzl

g. 3Bro. L. L. Ellis stzted that he had securcd th:e services of
. Lnderson as u“Olj temporarily at the rate of "1£2.00 ver anauxz.
onocotion, J. T, Jozmes wis elected Church Jlart, i o a?

4 aw

;170i accting, fpril 8, 1511: + «+ & previcus mentlon appsars ir

3 1L 6, 1511
L.esz recerds of Lr. A&, J. /dumizs of Norfelk, Tirginia and & metion was made
Lo dispese of this exceedingly discirgestle zubject, f7ier being r"cct..ssed
#® 33 4 1% wes decided thet the Clerk dictate a letter to .r. idans! Taster,
Zev, Cl. L. Jenkens, Pastor of Spurveon emerizl pant*"+ “h“rcl Yorfclk,
Virgiria, ard precent the same the Deacons and officers of our Jduurch
and secure their sipnatures to the saL-.%fﬂrit"

S is 2 cecpy of the letter that was written:
T.anskin, Virzinis

"Pev. C. A. dJenkens ipril &, 1y11.

Pastyr, Jpurgeon L.emerial Zaptist Church

Xorfolk, Virzinia

"Leer Bbro:

"un February 12, 1411, a young man by the name of A. J. Adams,
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claliding to be a Lirister of the Gospel and claining membership in your
Ciurch, came to our Church {Lover Zaptist) and delivered a discourse
which in sone respects was very well handled, After services he in-
Sisted that we instzll him as Pastor. e, Lowever, decned it prudent
to defer final action to two (2) weeks later. Upon investigation it was
ascertained that Lr., fdauzs is not and nsver hzs been an ordained pinister.
e steted while here that be hed attenced Larverd University fer e §
Pichuerd Cellegze for two and ore half years, and thet re hed been pashor
Tastor of intioch

o
ol ore of your lLerfolk hurches Jor over a vear, also

cturch for two years, e find after takinz the metter up with the actcve

. . i N AT ~
colleges that he hes never attended Lervard and zitended Sichmond Sollege

z
- &

m

less thar one neuth, Ke stated thot he lost everything that Le had during
e ; - 4 .
the Zire zt Pictuiond Jollege Decegber 25, 1410, all cf kis text-books, rls

J‘-L—

~etler's bocks, (who wzs 2l=o0 a Saptist .inister), his money ard clething.
“'e have your letier cf the 16tL of Tebruary, 1911, to owr Church Clerk,
cro. J. T. lcnes, recozmmending lr. Ldars. e also have Ero. Jones's
letter to you beariang dz ‘e of “ebrusry 205 1911, esking for Zurther in
mation with reference %o Lr. hdams, It appesrs that efter you had pronmised
tc Five us any information you possessec relative to the man n question
vaccording to your letter of Cebruary 1€, 1911) that when J. T. cones wrote

vou asidng for the information thet you simply referred his letter to .r,
idems for rerly, Lir, Adams, in reply ¢ that inquiry, sicply merked across
the first sheet thus X, and on the last he vrote on the back as follows:
"the Dest pack of trash that has ever come to my nctice, signed L.Jd.A."

It seeus that lr. Adams was burning with indignation and wrath and he does

not fail to show that he is in reality what Lervard is pleased to czll him

"an imposter"”,




\vontinuation of letter to Rev., C. 4. Jenkens.)

"Le wrote Lro. Jones the most insulting letter that is possible

-or a gentleran end Zaptist to receive, he denounces Zro. Jones as being

ir, Lr. or Zro. That he 1s

[€5]

a devil, liar, znd not worthy to be called
a disgrace to the comnmunity in which he lives and a hindrance to the cause

[ : . . - i =
o7 Christ. In view of the facts above set forth and being assembled in

Shurch Zonference with sufficient evidence at hand and witnesses to testify
&S to the accuracy of the above steted facts, we deem it our duty to take
this matter up with you. 4s officers o Dover Baptist Church, we cannot
overleck the fact that it is our duty to state that Bro. J. T. Jones las

been a mewber of this Churzh for 22 years, and has been a faithful meunber

of this Church and still is., ke hes served the Church as Trustee, Trezsurer

nt Supcr-—
Supe

and Clerk. &4nd has served the Sunday 3chool as Librarian, LAssistant

intendent and for 12-1/2 years wes Superintendent. He stands well in ths
comrunity and church, he is truthful, sober and reliakle, Therefcre, e,

1 a4

tle undersigned, take plzzsure in attesting to the same, and recomrend tiat

Jyou deal with the young man in quesiion according to Four by-laws.

"3igned: Jo T. Jones, Clerk.
L. 2. Z1lis, iLoderstor
e s Jrouch, Zeacon
J. ¥, Bowles, Ceacon

S. Zllis, Treazsurer

L. T. Pugh, Supt. of Suncday School.,

C. Henley, Trustee

C. Earris, Trustee."
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¥ . r 1on Eo D“'
Cn Sunday, June 25, 1511, Louis Henley, %, . Crouch,
3 Ea’:tist
Duval and E. R. Henley were elected Delegates to attend the Dover =&i
fssociatiorn,
J. T

on July $, 1911, an excellent sermon wes delivered by Rev.
Phillips of Richmond College.

o . g = ices con-
"Zalled meeting, Dec. 2L, 1911l: Inmediately after servic

; . = et tioned the fect
cucted by the Fastor, Fev. . D. inderson, the Clerk menticnec 5 mes
thet according to en agreement entered into between the Clhurch an c;lI.ES
frderson three months ago (viz: that Ero. fnderson would accGFE B term
Fesior fer three months) this Church stands now 2t the end of U¥eeé;rg
agreed upon, Tastorless. After a statement by Sro. Arcerson anﬂfv‘all;pr
telks by several of the nembers, it was agreed that the matzer oL catiilbo
. 0 . ~ 0 . (o]
a Pester te deferred until the 2nd Sunday in January, 1912.
. 5 - cse
Or January 28, 1912, there was a called meeting for the purp
of raising meney to pay the retiring pestor, Bro. w. D. Anderson. i.ccord-
ing to Zro. inderson's statement the amount due was $20.36. A& collection
amounting to {16.15 wes taken up and turned over to the Clerk with instruc-
tions to held until the full amount was raised. It was decided to wait
PR s . - r
until 3ro. Anderson was paid ir full before calling another pastor to tre
Church. & committee was appointed to provide a supply Jor the pulpit until
a pastor was called,
Thus the pattern at Cover has held through the years. All too
frequently the Church is without 2 pastor and without the necessary funis
to taze care of Its financial requirements,
£t a meeting on nay 12, 1512, it was deemed advisable to call a
pastor at once. The names of several ministers were presented, and the
na.e of Rev. C. R. Angell was placed in nomination by J. T. Jdones. Others
were nominated, but 3ro. C. R. &ngell having received such a large majority
of the votes, the Church voted unanimously for him. The Clerk was instructed

to netify zro. Angell that the czll would be for six months with the under-

standing that either party i.e, the Church or Pastor woulcd have the risht to

—ots
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cancel this agreement at the expiration of the specified term. It was
further agreed that if both parties were satisfied the call mey continue
indefinitely, Bro. Angell's salary was stipulated as not less than
7150.00 per annum and he was required to preach two Sundeys each month.

At a meeting on June 16, 1912, the Clerk was instructed to
communicate with Deep Run Baptist Church relative to forming a2 field in
order to have a resident paster.

£t a called meeting on June 23, 1912, the Clerk read a letter from
Ueep Run Baptist Churc: in reply to a communication addressed to thet Church
relative to joining with the Lover Church in forming a field for the pur-
Fose of mainteining a pastor and locating him permanently on the field,
They favored the prorosition but had secured the services of a pastor pri.r
to recéiving the letter from Dover Church. At this meeting Rev, C. R.
Angell étated thet he had accepted the call as Fastor of Dover Church,

Notetion under date of June 23, 1$12. "First service conducted
by C. Roy ingell as Pastor of Dover 3aptist Church,"

Following is another notation which reads:

"The wire fence around the Church and cemetary was campleted on
the 16th of August, 1912, The following persons having worked faithfully
on it - G. W, Lenley, X, R, Henley, liarry Henley, Frank Henley, Arthur
Henley, Bernard henley, Elmo Henley, C, Roy Angell, Paul, Marvin and

J. T. Jones. The grenolithic walk from the gate to the doors of ihe
Church was also made and completed with the fence. W. E. harris, 3zbot

11111, Virginia, donated the cedar peosts usec., H. J.-Harris & 3Jon donated
the stone used. Balance due %62,03."

ind -

"Revival coumenced on Londay, Asuzust 19th, Rev, W, T, Hall of
Falifax County in charge. The meeting continued throughout the week with
services lionday and Tuesday nights then at 1l A.L., 2 P.li,, and 8 P.E.,
“ednesday, Thursday and friday, resulting in the conversion of six and
the Church being revived - many of our members reconsecrating their services
to the Lord. ILiay God add his blessings to this effort."
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~ring
Septe.ber 25, 1512: Sunday afternoon at 3'oclock, after preagitno
services held by Rev, S. L. Bass of Richmond, assisted by the PaStoi’llae
followingz young members were baptized by Rev, Bass: Gracie Thomas, O -
Duval, 4lua Ford, Paul Jones, James Ford, herbert Tillmen. Good COMETES
tion, beautiful day, and plenty of water! J. T. Jones, Clerk.

On Octeber 27, 1512, a Finance Committee was elected.

’ A e pre-
LY a called meeting on Decerber 8, 1512, C. Roy Angell, the P

sent pastor, was unanimously elected to succeed himself for 2 period of 12
months, commencing January 1, 1913, "by the largest and most enthusiastic
vote cast in this Church for many years. The enthusiasi was SO apparent

nat scme remarks were made upon the subject."

Rev. Hall of Richmond College conducted services on January 12,
1513, due to the fact that Rev. C, Roy Angell was ill,

Cn Novenmber $, 1913, 4. T. Pugh wus elected temporary Clerk to act
during the alsence of 3ro. J. T. Jones.,

it a czlled meeting on November 23, 1913, Bro. . T. Halstead
was called as pastor of Dover Church and he took the call under consideration.
in Secemwber of 1913, Ero. W. T. Ealstead accepted the call for the year 1913~
14, Ee resigned as pastor in June, 1y1lL.

Note: It will be observed thct great care was taken to elaborate
on the enthusiastic vote for Rev. C. Roy Angell as Pastor of Dover for tle
year commencing January 1, 1913,.and it is guite clear thet Rev., Angell
accepted the call. However, there is no record concerning his departure
from the Church.

Neithgr is it clear what occurred during Bro. Halstead's short
scjourn at Dover. There is no explanation as to why he did not serve as
Fastor for the specified time and no reason is ziven for his resignation.

"Jan. 1915, 3ro. H. O. Wyatt of Richmornd College (who has been

supplying since Bro. Halstead resigned) was called by unenimous vote as
Pastor for one year. Bro. Yyatt accepted the call s = s 3,0
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"Aug, 1915 # % ¥ A series of meetings were held by Pastor H.O,
Uyatt and Sro, Conrielly of Richmond College # # # "

. "January 23, 1916, Rev. H. O. Wyatt resigned as Pastor of Dover
having served the Church one year."

"Cctober, 1916, During spring and summer months Sover Church
had no regular pastor. Supplies from Richmond College filled the pulpit
during this period,"

"On Februar, 11, 1917 * #* #* the Church convened for the business

of calling a pastor and Rev, Wicks of Baltimore was extended a unanimous
call, % s % "

"On February 17, 1917, Lr. Wicxs accepted the call to Dover as
Fastor and pledged to serve to the best of his ability. ke urged the
members to unite in an effort to revive the work of the Church which had
been retarded by not having a regular pastor. # # % " ‘

Ero. Wicks did not remain at Dover ver; lonz. 2n the 27th of
Lay, 1917, he offered his resignation asking that it take effect at once,
and stating that it was due to "circumstances over which he had no control.”
Lis resignation was accepted.

In June, 1917, services at Lcver were conducted by Rev., Cheathan
ol Richmond College. At a meeting during that month 3rettren Taul Jones,
Ferbert Tillman, 3enjamin ILuVel and 7ill Gordon were elected Delegates to
attend the Zover Association,

"Aug, 18, 1917, * i A motion was made that a committee of five,
three male and two female members, be appointed to attend to laying off
cemetery in lots, same to be numbered and record kept to whom assizned.
The men appointed a2t a previous meeting are Ben Fowers, Walter Ellis and
£. T, Pugh, Ladies - irs, L. C., Clarke and irs. C. B, Taylor, Carried."

Revival services were held during week of September 21 to 26,

inclusive by Rev. Chas, HNorthern of Richmond College.

On October 22, 1917, a call was extended Rev. Northern to take

the pastorate at Lover for one year and on Novemver 1lth he accepted the call

for one morning service and one evening service each month at a salary of

$200.,00 per year,
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The next minutes of record are dated a year later and are as
follow:

. ) . o)

. "Lov. 17, 1516. Night services by Pastor L. C. Ix.orther‘crll :2 ’
after a br%ef Sermon, stated it was the end of his fiscal year an o he
tendered his resiznation, stating that this did not necessarily meament
would not be subject to a call, but owing to the terms of the agree dénpe
he was called for one year which ended at this reebting. OSmall attendenc
and the metter was not further discussed."

) o
At 2 called meeting in December, 1918, a motion was mads By Broe
e
Jo T. Jones that a committee of two be appointed to see ths members ok T
hurch and ascertain if the majority wished to recall ir. Northern. ZTrO.
Je T. Jones resigned as Chureh Clerk and Bro., A, T. Pugh elected to serve
as Clerk.
inother meeting was held in December at which a vote was taken
concerning the recalling of Rev, Northern. "4 vote was talen and & small
majority cast the vote not %o recall him for 1519." No reference is made
. . : 3 & d
Lo the "large majority" but it is clear that Rev. lorthern wzs not recalled.
On January 12, 1¢1S, 32ro, “alter =llis was appointed a committee
of one to zet 2 pulpit suprly until 2 pastor could be secured. Bro. Zllis

L ] . ?\H‘
stated thzt the Church was indebted to Rev. liorthern 4o the extent of 557.65.

Pev., kabbel of Riclmond conducted services on Jdanuary 26th. 4fter

services a meceting was held and the amount raised to pay Rev, liorthern in full,

february, 1917 - Lr, Eabbel of Richmond conducted services.

Services conducted by Lr. fskew of Richmond on lLarch 2L, April 27,
June & and June 22.

4t a meeting held on June 22nd, two Senior Deacons, ir. LeRoy
Zllis zng Ir. V. k. Crouch were mnde honorary Lezcons for life,

June 2%, 1519, CErethren Valter Ellis, L. Z. Clarke and Zen DuVal

were elected Telegates to the Dover Association which will convene in July.




-

ol
The following no%e arpeers in the Linute 3ook:
"Impressive ordination services of deacons wzs conducted at
Dover Church, Sunday, July 27, 1919, Those ordained were Ero. L. C.
Clarke and bro. 3enj. Powers, Charge to Deacons made by Rev. C. &.
L"‘ . .
Sall, Charge to Church by Rev, fLrendall,"

. "Oct. 26, 1715, Revival services held at Dover Shurch durin :
vwC Weexs in Ccteber and MNovember by Pev. Ches., T, Herring of Ind, # % % "

following the zbove is a notation +at on October 17 191¢%; &

s Was held for the puwrpose of calling Bro. O, I. Eerrirgz as

+b a weeting held on January 1h, 1620, 3ro. J. T. Jones rmade =
statement thct tre Zylaws and Constitution of the Church had been lcst from
“lie Church book end asked tlat a com.ittee of three te ap.cinted to draw
Up Zylaws and a Constitution for Dover durch. wobion was made to this
ellect end carried, The Tastor steted he would céppoint the cowrittee 2t a
future date, BErc. ¢. T. Jones offered Fis resignatior as Trustee of the
Jhurch, vhizk resigiation was accepted,

Some difficulty seezs to huive been encountered in ~ornection with
the celling of 3ro, terring as Festor, The follcwingz notation aprecrs in

tle Linute Book.

"Cct. 1719, Owing to absence of Church Clerk the repcrt on
calling of Pastor, Rev, 2, I. Lerring, was delayec until present czte."

There was a called meeting in Jebrvary, 1520, The object of thig
meeting wes to determine the amount to be peid the pastor,

(There is no evidence to indicate that Rev. Eerring had been serving
at Dover during the period Uctober 151S until February 1920).

Linutei of the February, 1520 meeting state that it had previcusly
been ugreed tc raise the pastar's selary from $200 to #500 per year. Hovever,

at this meeting it wes unanimously voted that the salary would be %600 per

annum and such fizure was presented to Rev, Herringz., The call to become

5

pastor at Dover included a 60 day clause in the event either the Fastor or
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the Chu ; . g i scal year
uile Church became dissatisfied with the arrangement. The fiscal ¥
was to legin with the 2nd Sunday in lioverber, presumably of 1515

Extract from meeting held on December 15, 1920:

i
-

"Question before the Church whether Church warts Ero. Ce

kerring “or next vear. The vote is taken and two vote for him an?fig

3 13 ~ e = T i l
vote against rim, Ir. Pugh gave details of Bro. Lerring's Past-l té
told by Eerring., # # % + Vote is taken to give 2ro. Eerring notlcey‘ﬂ
leave, tc take effect next Zuncday, three menths from this date. :»h N
suggested that the Church may decide by that tine tc keep him. 7€
Deacens were elected to notify him (Bro. Eerring) which notification
Was given on Cecember 26, 1520,"

Loparently the Church decided it could get aleng without Irc.
Herring for his name appears for the last time as conducting services on
February 16, 1921,
+1. ~t

I . ve ~ . ” =d .
4L a neeting on lay 29, 1521, a motion was made and secoriéad «.<

all old Church reccrds be sent to Richmord Colleze to be kept for Church with
the privilese of being seen at any tire.

There is no record of what occurred between Lay 29, 1221 and
June 18, 1922, which is the date of the next entry in the .inute Zook,
£t this meeting, June 18, 1922, Bro. J. H. Liller was called bty 2 unarinous
vote zs Fastor of Dover Church for an indefinite +ime at 225.00 per month,

"if he wants to lezve the Church, give the Church 30 deys notice, and if the
Church wants hinm to lesve, give him 30 days nectice." Bro, killer accepted the
call on these conditions,

Zlmo EHenley, Cec. Keeton, Ben Powers, Paul Jones and Karvin' Jones
were, at this same meeting, elected Delegates to attend the Dover hssociation
which was to meet on July 18, 19, 20, 1922,

Nete: Protracted services held at Dover Church beginning iumust

20, 1522, lastirg one week, Leeting held by Rev., J. Hillis iiller of the

University of Richmond,
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"July 1, 1923, # % % Delegates arpointed to attend the Tover
Association to be held at Barton Heights Baptist Church July 17, 18, 16,
1523: ir. J. H, Eiller, kr. Wm, Crouch, Lr. Ceo. Keeton, Liss kollie B.
CuVal, liss Bessie DuVal.d % % M

"Lug. 15, 1923, A collection was taken Zor Vebber Lemorial
. N . y ¢
and 100,00 was paid to Trezsurer for same  # 3 % 3 M

"Auz, 20, 1923, Evangelistic services held at Dover Baptist
Church beginninz on the night of Auzust 12. J. Hillis willer, Pastor,
conducted tl.e services, 3 % # # "

Note under date of August 31, 1923:

"L. C. Clarke went to Richmond, Virginia with a hired truck and
treught back the Webber Lonument., Bro. Elmo Henley, Bro. <. T. Jones, Ero.
L. C. Clarke and 3ro. Wm. Crouck erected the monument on Saturdsy, Septezber
1, 1523, withcut any expense to the Church."

"waralin, Virginia
September 2, 1923.

"The Tlebber iemorial was presented to Lover Church by the Lover
~apiist Association on Sunday, September 2nd, 1923.

"The meeting wes. called to order by the Pastor, J. Eillis Liller
a2t 10:30 o'clock. Prayer by Bro. Willis Pilcher of Petersburg. DIr. Carnett
Rylend made a shkort tzlk then 2ro. killer gave a very interesting talk on
The Grewth of the Church., Bro. L. G, Lontague mede a wonderful address on
“ebber. 3Bro. Billings and 2ro. Luther Jenkins brought greetings from the
Association to the Church., At 1:15 dinner was served on lawn of Church,
a#fter dinner, Bro. Douglas Freeman gave an address on The Growth of the
Baptists., It was a most wonderful address. 4 large crowd was in attend-
ance, some of Pastor Vebber's descendants. The Church was represented by
Ero. Benjemin [uVal and he accepted the monument with a very impressive
speech. Among the visitors were scme very prominent people of the Baptist
denondination."

It wes at e meeting on £pril 20, 1924, that the metter of class
rooms for Dover Church was first discussed. Two comnittees were appointed.
Zrc. Ben DuVal was appointed Chairman of the Finance Comrmittee aﬁd Bro,
Zlmo Henley was appointed Chairman of the Construction Coﬁnittee.

"kay 1L, 1924, Church gave flowers to our beloved Bro. and

Dezcon William Crouch whe died May 8, 192"

Lt a meeting on July 6, 192L, the Church elected the following

Delegates to attend Dover Association which was to meet at Fowr Lile Creek
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hurch: Liss Bessie Duval, 1. 7. Jones, Geo, Keeton and L. C. Clarke.
The proposed class rooms were again discussed at this meeting
and it was decided to have an architect draw the necessary plans.
On July 20, 192k, plans were completed for holding 2 protractec
ool rooms

meeting at Dever in the month of August, Plans for the Sunday Sch
were presented by the architect through Bro, willer (the architect being &
friend of Ero. iiller), There was some discussion ccncerning the class-Tcoms
and it was left to the commnittees to raise 1,000 for the construction of
Séme. Also, the committees were instructed to go over the plans and see

if it was best to build the rooms accordingly,

e

sug. 1h, 1924, Protracted services ccmpleted - wonderful
sermons by Paster, Bro, Miller # # s %"

Cn October 5, 192l, it was decided to reject tre plans made by
Ir. Locklane, the architect, for the Suncay School rooms, and to notify him
thet if he wished to meke another bid he mizht do so. A mction was made and
carried to have Brethren Zlmo Henley, J, T, Jones, Paul Jones end ¥, #. Jones
draw up plans and present them to the comrittees Zor arproval.

There were rumblings of misbehavior on the part of some of the
merbers of Dover Church and at this meeting the advisability of calling
them before the Church to account for their conduct was discussed. Eowever,
final decision was postppned to a later date.

On October 12, 192, some of the members who had been "walking
disorderly" were tried and found wanting and were dropped from the Church roll

Cthers were granted reprieves until a later date.

The following notes as they appear in the kinute Book are of

interest:
lr, Miller resigned kay 31, 1925,
br. Joe Rotella is in question as Pastor of the Church,
Ir, Iiller will conduct revival services at Dover
beginning with the 3rd Sunday in July,
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After several meetings of the Committees on the Sunday School

Class Rooms (composed of members of the Church) it was decided to accept

the plans submitted by Bro. i, F, Jones. Work was begun on the class-

reoms in June, 1925,

In June, 1925, the following Celegates were appointed to attend
the Dover Association which was to meet at Glen Allen Baptist Church:
Larvin Jones, J. Hillis liller and Liss Lollie DuVal.

"July 25, 1925, Revival services were held at Dover Church
§Eginning with services Sunday morning and again Sunday night by Rev.
voseph Rotella. On Londay Bre. J. Hillis .iller continued through
the week and two nights the following week,"

On July 26, 1925, a committee was appointed to wait on Ero,
fctella to see if he would accept the pastorate of the Church.

"Aug. 2, 1925, The committee called on Bro. Rotella and he
agreed to accept Lover for one year beginning with the above date - 1lst
Sunday in Zugust, 1925, with the salary named by Bro. Rotella at %500,
for the year with services on 1lst and 3rd Sundays. Report made to the
Church and Cro. Rotella accepted as pastor fugust 2, 1925,"

"wn

"hile there had been considerable talk concerning the construc-
tion of Sunday School Class Rooms, the minutes do not record any definite
action until the following:

"fug. 1925. The following committee to have Sunday School rooms
built was composed of: Liss Mollie 3. DuVal, lLr. Harvin Jones, Lr. Zlmc
fenley, ir. L. C. Clarke znd Mr. George Xeeton. Work was done by Lr,

J. T, Jones, i, Paul Jones, ir. Larvin Jones, Lr, Elmo Henley and Lr.
“1ll Gordon. The amount paid for the building and for the concrete steps
ané painting was tlis amount - $1500.00, Fifteen Hundred Dollars.

"4 committee was composeG of kiss Bessie DuVal, liss kary Gordon
and Ben TuVal to go over and check and pay all bills for this building.

"Bro. Thomas Jones and Bro. Vernon Hall gave several hours of
their tirce to paint inside of the Church, especially the new rooms.

"4 number of Ladies met at Church one day and cleaned with the
assistance of some colored women. This group was compcsed of irs. J. T.
Jones, Lrs. J, L. Clarke, Miss Lollie DuVal, Lliss Bessie DuVal, lrs. W, A,
Cordon, iiss kary Cordon, Lrs. O. B, Taylor, lirs. L. A. Tood, irs, Jo. W
Cary, irs. Saw Herley (irs) Vernon Hall, urs. R. Byron Clarke, liss Eallie
KcCullen, Lrs. L. C. Clarke. Church was beautifully cleaned."

The above eﬁtry in the minute book beers no signzture,
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g . - . “ : -Sto
. £ note in September: "Ready for the dedication which wa
vake place September 20, 1925,

Unler date of September 22, 1925, appeers the following:
3 iful
"Sept. 22, 1925, On September 20, 1525, a bright and lygend

Su r * : : . am wWae
~unday, the dedication exercises were held and the following progrés
carried oud:

"10:30-11:30 - Sunday Sct.col

wE v % = r
1. 10:30 Opening Zxercises. Speclal iusic by iiss Faullme
from Atlee, Va,

by Lontagre.

2. 10:L5 Lesson Feriod. Conducted by Eonm. Z. Lo
2. 11:1% Closing IZxercises

- . T & ::I' f‘t,OI‘.
11:45-12:30 Xorning Service, Sermon by Rev, Joseph Fotells, &S

lie preached & fine sermon on Talents.
12:20-2:00 Intermission. Lunch and Social Zour.
2:00-2:20 Devotional Exercises led by Pastor, Rev. Rotelle.
2:20-2:10 Talk by ir. William Bradby.

- It
40-3:10 Specisl Sclections rendered by Eroad St. hLethodis®
roir and iss Germinie from Charlottesville, Va,

[ SRLA
.

~ s e o2 s
3:10 3Speaker of the Afterncon - Rev, J. Eilliz ;*ller.. =.1s
subject was: Building for God Afier the Tasiion of the laster
Suilder.

rd josrnment,

The Church was beautifully decorated with ferms and cut flowers
cnd the day was termed a success., Perfect weather and a large crowd of
reople. Signed: L. O, Jlarke, Clerk."

—_ -

cilowing the zbove th s no item of note until Jure 20, 1,26,

T
'.J‘

re
when it was repcrted that the Church had nd 3Bylaws or Constitution., After
much discussion a coﬁmittee was appolnted to take care of this important
item,

Cn this date the following Delegates were appointed to attend the

:ssoclation: Sister Dessie IuVal, Sister :.ollie LuVzl, 3ister L.

2.

~
~over

ELE

Tood, and 2ro, L. C., Clarke and 3ro. George Xeeton.
ilso at this meeting on June 20th there was much ade about waiting

upon a cervein sister who was chargsd with walling "indiserzetly." Two
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groups, consisting of seven members, were appointed to consider this
Provlem, Apparently there was not sufficient evidence for &t a meeting
on July Lth only one member of the seven appointed put in an appearance
and the case against the indiscreet sister was filed "nolle prosequi,”
In July, 1520, :iss Bessie [uVal, .iss ..ollie 2uVzl, irs. L. L,
‘iood and .rs., 1. C. Zlarke were appointed Delegates to attend the _over

Lssociztion,

Lo regort unier dste of July Lth reads in part as follows:

"Report of iembers - 151
Schiolars in Sunday School - 117
vorkers with diplomas - 13
Church members in School = 73
Scoks in library - 120."

"fug. 1926, On Sun unday, August 29, 1526, a p‘Ot.n“tPi meeting wes
held at Zover Shurch by the Tagtor, Joseph Rotella, with 2ro. Zlmo Tmitlock
leading the singing, Jeverzl additions to the Churct, The ireacher was
paid %50.00 and he was 4o pey Bre. "litlock for hls services osut of ihe
Saie. Zcapvisu wes held on 3rd Sunley in Septerber (Sept. 19) in Tuckahoe
Creek with a2 largze attendance,"

Time .arches on .with only routine business tasing place until:

"Sept., Y, 1427, L revival service was held at Lover Chureh
bezinning Auvuu 1, 1%27, Rev, Rotella presaching. 2Bro. Tlmo thitlock
lead the singing, -en additions to the Church i s 3zptism was conduated
at Tucialioe Treek September L, 1627, # # + & marker was Ziven te the Jhurch
by Tobert Leadbetter of Richmond, Yirginia, and 2ro« Js T. Jenes th the
marker in rlace with the Church consenting. The Church insiructed Liss
Iren- ZuVal to write a letter of thanks to Robert Leadbetier for this

oeautiful ;ift - which he 7ave for the love of kis rother to the Crurch
of her clildhood days."

’
"

-1 (J

llcte: Believing thet reference tc the above marker should be
clarified, the writer has made ar attempt to find out some of the details,
From information supplied by Iliss kary L. Clarke it is learned *hzt Nobert
Leadbetter's mother wes Irs. Imogene Forloine Leadbetter, a direct deécend-
ant of the Luguenot Forloines who settled in the'village of vanalsin in the
vear 1700, and a sister of lrs, Luther Celvin Clarke. .Lrs. Leadbetter was
a member of vover Church for many yesrs,

The merker, in the shape of a shield, had a black backzround an

was inscribed with gold letters reading: "Dover 3apiist Church." 2 vear
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i i ds.
date, which is believed to be 1927, was inscribed beneath these wor

urch
The marker was placed directly in the center of the front of the Ch

and is easily seen in the picture of church after addition of sundey school
rooms,

In June, 1928, iir. Gearge Keeton, Miss Bessie DuVal and Jnse
L. C. Clarke were appointed Delegates to attend Dover Association which
Was to meet at Hopeful Baptist Church July 16-19, 1526.

Also in June, 1928, a revival was held at Dover beginning
June 17. Rev. Rotella conducted the meetings with Bro. Lonnie Wood L
care of the singing. Converts were baptized in Tuckahoe Creek.

In kay, 1929, Brethren Will DuVal, L. C. Clarke, Geo. Keeton and
lirs. L. C. Clarke were appointed Delegates to attend Dover Associztion.

August, 1930. Revival services held beginning August 3rd.

Rev., Rotellas preached.

December 7, 1930. At this meeting there was discussion con-
cerning a memorial for the kisses Bowles. It was decided to have a memorial
window put in the Church at the back of the pulpit. A committee was appoint-
ed to see that this was done.

Note: lMrs. L. C. Clarke of hanakin has advised the writer that
the "Lisses Bowles" referred to were Liss Ann Eliza Bowles and kiss Lou
Bowles who were long-time members of Dover Baptist Church. These ladies
bequeathed to the Church the sum of $500.00 and it was the purpose of the
Church to use this money to pay for the memorial window described above,

Note: Bro. B. F. Powers, Deacon, died on August 3y 1931,

liarch 6, 1932, Mr. Will DuVal, kiss Lollie DuVal, kr. and ﬁrs.
Earvin Jones and Mr. and Mrs. L. C, Clarke were appointed Delegates to

attend the Dover Association.
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The minutes of June, 1932, were terse and to the peint. They

read as follows:

"June 1932, Call meeting of the Church. Rev, Rotella as Chairman,
“uite a discussion as to cuttinz Pastor's selary. Nothing definite decided.
xeeting adjourned,”

In July, 1932, Revival services were held at Cover with Fev.
Rotella preaching and .r. Elmo Vhitlock in charge of the singing.

o

in fugzust, 1932, Fev, Notella held baptizing at Lclean's Fond,

“h January 1, 1933, a committee from 3alem Baptist Church broughit
the following proposition to “he Tover congregation:

"Lsking Dover to consider one afternoon preaching service so
that they might have one morning service instead of every
afternoon service."

This matter was referred to a comnittee which was instructed o

réport on Tebruary 5, 1933,

it would appear from the zhove thst at this time Rev. Rotella
¥was serving as pastor lor both Dover and S:zlem.

The Zcllowing would indicate that the com=ittee had completed
their report before .'ebruary Sth,

"daznuary 15, 1933, Tev. Rctella called a meetinz of the church
to hear the decision of the committee., It was put to a vote as %o Dover
&~Vvirg one morning service to Salem. Church voted 2zzinst this change
having previously tried having Sunday School in the afternoon without

success it % 3t M

1¢23. A Revival Service was Leld by Rev.
Rotella, e Church.
With this last entry the second book of minutes of Tever Zzptist

Church is closed.

Al
-~
o
o
b5
o
%
)
-
als
v
.



SRR el - DRl B B P ek e 2 2ol

90,

The third book of minutes for Cover Baptist Church begin with

ing . ointed
a reeting on Lecember 17, 1$33, at which a Tinance Conmdittee was &pPOlr

to canvas members of the Church,
‘ “ ' . e don
february L, 1$34: lr. and irs. L. O, Clarke, ir. +ill Gor
i ] Cia"
and .iss .ary Gordon named as Lelegates to attend meeting of Dover 4SSO

tion.

Septenber 193k: Revival services held by wr. Mott ourby, begin-
ning Sertember 3rd,

Larch 17, 1935: Treasurer's report indicated the Church was in
debt to Pastor Joscph Rotella to the extent of 3100,00. Bzlance in bank,
#+ There'were other assets however such as: savings account £103.05,
amount in bonds 275.00, sinkirg fund £3.79, A motion was mede and carried
%o agpoint a Visiting Committee to visit all members who do not attend
rurch,  Chairman to nzme members of this comrittee 2t a later date., Some
discussion as to Trustees of the Church. A request was nade to see the
Sourthousc records in regerd tc this mstter, There was also discussion
concerning improvement of the Clhurch building and the grounds, bui 2ll of
these matters were left to be discussed at a future date.

Larch 31, 1935: Treasurer czlled meeting of Finance and Visiting
Committees to instruct them as to their duties.

dune 16, 1935: Luch talk of improving Church and grownds. Ques-

tion asked if the money left by the llisses Bowles was left for any specizl

purpose, zotion made that some of this money be used to defréy Church ex-
penses.
Decenber 6, 1935: The (lerk reported that names of the Trustees

£ Dover Church had not been recorded at Goochland Courthouse anc the Church



Was now without any Trustees. After much deliberation the following
Trustees were elected by vote: Lr. Tom Staples, Lr. Will LuVal, ir. R,
Syron Clarke, Lr. Ben LuVal and r., L. C. Clarke. The Clerk was instruc-
ted to have tlese names recorded at the Courthouse.
lr. Zen TuVzl made a motion thai zfter the Trustees are recorded,
they make pPlans to lay off cemetary, mark jraves end sections and tc sive
perriszion for new secticns and graves., Lotion carried by vote.
Treegurer's report revcals the Church in debt te Pastor Potelle
%o the extent of #133,33. This lack of funds was unguestionably due to
thie fact thet twenty-five members hed failed to pay their pledges.
There was discuszion concerning election of new deacens. .r.
Potella suzgested that after the deacons are naced thgy meet and dicscucs
the condition of the Church and try to settle the affairs if possikle.
Janucry 10, 1y36: A& letter read from the Jlerk 2t Goochlend

5

Courthouse in regard tc the Church Trustees asking thzt a Nesoluticn te
made by the Church and presented to the Judgze that he mey name the Trug-

tees appointed by the Church., Ir. Ben TuVal was asked to drew up the

3

Tesolution and present it for approval on the 3rd Sundey in January.

-

14

Rev, Rotclla asked that & Budget Comxittee be appcinted. Ir.

)

will TuVal mzcde a motion thet lr. 3en DuVal be Cheirman of this Committee
end be z1llowed to select his comnittee-men. There was some discussion as
to how the Pastor's salary would be paid, ‘

January 19, 1836: Pesclutions to be presented to Clerk of
Goocklernd County for Trustees of Dover (hurch were read zand accepted,
4 copy of the Rescluticns sent. to Jounty Clerk on Januzry 20th,

spril 21, 1%36: Treasurer reported thet the Church was still

22ht to Pastor Joseph Rotella,

[N
v
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~ay 31, 123£: Church agreed to have Bev. John —ievop o=
Al bt 'd § . ~ +the Sull-
wicK, 4. Y. conduct Tevival Services beginning July 5, 1936, at we 2

oy o . tion
g service and continuinz through the week, with the excep

22 Zaturday nizhi,
. -~ ~ A‘ill
September 1, 193¢: Trezsurer reported that the Church sv
owes the Fastor 171,26 for 1535, Under the head of new business, =T+

Star T P § . . ~ ;14 -h i3
Staples suggested a baptismal rcol and .r. Een LuVal suggested L1zt

ot A

and heating Ior the building, There was some discussion, but rothing
“efinite decided, L comlttee was appointed to "look over' the Spureh
and report whal repairs were needed, There was sore discussion ts o
how the 502,00 was to be used. (Presumatly the *500,00 previously re
red to az being left to the Church by the iisses Dowles)., And - 3t this
+to dste for

same meeting 1t was reported thait the Fastor had been paid up

M

W2 rear 1626, Lr. PRotella ached that the Crurch accert his offer to can-
. . - . = SAm oA o
cel ils indebtedness to him for the year 1935, (Cnly one vcte Jor &CCedv

r . 3 - - Mot Shetal el
Lote: A&lthough It was decized cn ..arch 17, 1522, that the <hurch

would hsold ausrierlyv wmeetings, it now appears thet such meetings ars occur-

[

2z much more fregquently.,
Ccvober L, 1636: Repair comnmittee reperted on needed repairs and

it was agreed trat such repairs would be paid Zer from thz roney left to

the Jhurzh.

‘e - 4}

liote: irs. T. X, Daves received into Church by letier from
Eethany Zaptist Church, Zaskerville, Va., on Jov. 1, 1536.
Note: January 22, 1936: Liiss 3eulah Daves was received into

the Church by letter from Bethany Baptist Church, Baskervills, Va
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Yebruary 21, 1637: irs. I, E, Daves, irs, L. A. Tood, Er,

elegetes to Dover lLssocia-

9

~2niel Keeton amd .r. L. C. Clarke named c¢s

3 ]

tion. There was discussion about wiring the Zurch for electric lights.
~otion was made and carried that lizhts be installed in the Church and
the Trustees were instructed to sign the contract for this work., Committse
on Improvements asked for two more weeks to get bids for wiring the Church.
rel 7y 1937: L call mﬂetiﬂg ol the Church to read dids on
Wiring the Jhurch., Two bids vresanted, one for 460,00 froum :r. Layle te
inclade fixtures, extra outlets 2,50, the other from ir., Cordon for “T6.50,
not including fixtures, %5.00 extra for each outlet, Daniel Xeeton zrd Lrs,
L. 4, Vood were asked Lo secure other tids, The Improvement Cormmittec vias
instructed to see about the type of fixtures to be used.
-2y 3, 1937: This meeting was devoted to discussion of the bids

Jor wiring the Church, and the poor condition of the wire fence arousd the

church building, ir. Rotella suggested that if 2 new fence was erected it
be placed on the newly established line. Lr. Staples agreed to measure
and Iind out the zost of necessery material for a2 paling fence, It was

o

suggesved that each Church rember give one panel of fence, Yothing delinite
Note: _r, Rotella's reference to the "newly established line" :Is

vague. There is no record of any lines being discussed at previous meetings.
llote: CJall meeting on June 20, 1937. The Church granted Lr.

Cherlie Zreed permission to be buried in Dover Cemetary.,

—

lote: Pevival Services held for one week by Rev. John Lierop of
New Tork, beginning Sunday, July 18, 1937,
Tebrusry 20, 1938: Rev. Joseph Rotslla offered a verbal resignation

as Pastor of Zover lhurch to take effect by the last of April.




ol.
Lrs. 2. 3. Clarke, .r. . A, Gordon amd idiss -.aIy Gordox
named ss Zelegates to Dover Association which was to meet at 3arton
Heishts Church in Zichmond on Loril 135, 1930,
"Larch 20, 1930: Call meeting of the Church with Rev. BOteTE
to cgn51 er

acting as Chairman, l.r. Potella stated that this meeting was :
tiis resignation, that he was not able to sive us what we needed. mr.ﬂ i
Staples did not want him to offer his resimation or the Church to anfiQ,,
it. Rev. Potella seid he hoped to renain through way and the Swaner =ieis
and to straizt*en out affairs so that if a new pastor case he would ?ft
find such a disorganized Church. He said he did not know sozetimss viren

he came where he would get lunch. # 3 & ="

e minutes go on and on and the Clerk is requested %< read
previous minutes as there were some members who hed not been present oF
else Lad not hesrd Zev, Rotella's verbal resignation on February 20th.
"inally, Lr. Staples made a motion that the Church not accept Fev. Rotella's
resignation. l.otion was seconded znd vote was taken twice as ihere Wwas much
confusion and misunierstanding, The result was: 13 not to accept and J 0
accept. Rev. Notella said he hoped the zction of the Church "would lead to
& better feeling,."

it is not clear wkat Rev. Rotella had in mind as there is no re-
cord of any impendinz rift or ill-feelinz.

Lpril 3, 1638: Rev. Rotella arnounced that a new Board of Leacons
H o 3

[41]

and Deaconesses would be ordained 4pril 17, 1¢38., The Zeacons to be thos
named in Jcnuary, 1935, The Church was no£ consulted in rezerd to ordina-
tion services.

Lpril 17, 1338: COrdinstion services postponed on account of
Zaster Sundey falling on April 1Tth.

kay 1, 1538: Rev. k. C. Zicafoose preached the Ordination Sermon.
The Deacons ordained were: lr. W. A. Gordon, .r. Arthur Eenley and .r. L, L.

Wood.
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It would seem that as time passed Rev, Rotella became unhappy
With his association at Zover Church and some of the members beceme un-
harpy with Rev, Rotella., ALt any rate, an "activated breeze" was possibly
averted uy Rev, Rotella oa -

"June 19, 1$356: Before Church services, Rev. Rotella said he
Was offering his resignation agein. He was going to give up the Church
and the ministry. HKe will not preach after August, giving the Church
four more sermons. It was better for all for him to leave for he did
not give us viat we deserved., He suzgested thet the Leacons appoint a
Pulpit Committee to get 2 new preacher. To those who had voted to keep
him, let their minds be at rest. Those who voted to accegpt his resigna-

tion, if they have anythin: against him to take it out on him when he is
Tone [ B4
o .

Note: Assumption may well be made that there were "happenings"
not recorded in the rinute book.

"July 20, 1938: s i ¥ The verbal resignation as offered by Zev.
Rotella on June 1$th was read. Lr. Wood said the Deacons had nct been
able to see Rev, Rotella because of Zoumencement Zxercises, but Rev,
Rotella had promised o written resiznation by the end of August. # # !

4Lt a meeting on lLugust 15, 1933, the main business before the
Church concerned painting and papering the building, Zids were presentad

ie work to Ashley Bros.

and discucsed and it was decided to give the insid

llote: Rev, Rotelle lelt the Church on Adugust 21, 1938, e
was paid up to date, ‘

"august 28, 1938: i, Staples called a meetirg of the Improve-

ment Committee tc decide on paper eand color or paint for woodwork, 3 % 3
«otion made and carried that the Church accegt Vernon Clarke's offer to
wire the Church free of charge, if the Zhurch would furnish the mzterial,
% oae "

Sept. L, 1936: It was decided that the Church would pay a
supply pastor 710.00 and that he be told this before he czme, and when
a regular pastor was called, the Church would decide whet his salary would

be. :ir. E. L. Brandis, 2 student from the University of Richmond, wes

the supply pastor for this date.
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: ket
£t this point the following note appears in the minute boo
air

"Found on the walls of the Church Sept. 11, 1938, when rifairman,
work was done, the following: Committee: Dr. Gask}nsé Eﬁp

~r'. Yoodson and Lr. TuVal. !iles T. Phillips r?palrewkpd‘with
Church July 13, 1883, Otis Lills and Ches. Hewitt wori®

him,"

n at
Note: September 18, 1938, Clyde Francisco, Senior Student

University of Richmond was the preacher for this date.

£t a meeting on September 21, 1938, shades far the windows,
wiring of the Church znd fixtures were discussed, but nothing definite
decided, A motion was made by irs. 3. S. Henley that a memoriel window
be placed in front of the Church, This motion was seconded and carried
by unanimous vote. The Improvement Comzittee was instructed to attend to
this matter. 2 motion was mede ani carried that the Committee be limited
to 50,00 for “thls expenditure.

Jote: Octeber 2, 1933: Dan Fowler, Student linister from the
University of Pichmord, preached today.

lote: Jctober 16, 1538: James Fogg from the University of

c
o

Pichmond was preacher for the day, and

"i new Eible, ziven by an unknowvm friend o? the Church was
Fresented to the lhurch tecday and used for the first time,”

-

&
(o]
>
(6
-
,,_l
\0
W
<M
..
N

r. ¢ohn J, Vicker of Fork Union iilitary Academy

WS the supply minister on this date, Ee brougtt with him an ll-yzar ol:

0

boy, a student at the Acadeiy, to singz.

Nov. 20, 1938: Paul Wattlington, post graduate student at the
University of Richmond was the supply preacher on this date,
Nov. 22, 1938: There was further discussion of the memorial

windcw, but this matter was held up on account of names and dates to go on

the slass. The matter of calling a pastor wzs brought up ard it va
N o &5 I8 h 8 s moved

thet the Church try ir. Fowler and lr., Wattlington azain, idss Zlizabeth
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LuVal was requested to talk with Ir. Ryland about formins a field.

Dec. L, 1933: Dan Towler, student from the Uriversity of

»
s

oy
ichmond, prezched today.
Cn this date there was a mceting of the Church to read the list

of officers and teacters far the Sunday School for year 1$39. The list was

s . . §e N
accepted as read. (The names were not given in the minute boox.,

Dec. 18, 1938: Paul Tattlinzton, student from the University
of Tichmosd, preached thi
I Tichmond, preached on this date.

Januery 1, 1335: Lan Fowler of the University of Rickzond, supply

pastor for thic date,

Jemaary 15, 1937: Pzul Tattlington, University of Rickmord stu.ens,

preached on this dzte,

Lt a called meeting on the above date tle Church accepted Tobert

Zu7al as teachcr of e Intermedicte Class as the former teachsr ha =

Lr. Starles reported that the memorizl window that could be ob-

—

tained far 50,20 would not be setisfactory and asked that the 7£0.00 1li-it

POS -

be withdrawn. This was ione znd 1% wes voted to allow 100,00 Zor the wrindow

with “he admoniticn trat the Committee should use their judgment as to the
azount to be expenied.
Pebruary 6, 1939: IT..h. C. Siezel of Richiond preached toley.

February 19, 1939: Rev, Carl Jollins, Dastor of Teer Pun Zaptist

Church was the supply preacher for- this dste,

werch 5, 193%: Lr, 7. E. Bass, student from the University of

Richmeond, preached on this date,
m.arch 9, 1939: # % # lr. Stagles, Chairman of Improverment Jow-

e |

mittee, reported that “he aemorizl windwv il o5t zbecvt *7L,00 with naries,

ta
(3]



1] the window

nete of birth tpd date of death. .r. Stzples would inps “ler in
withcut cost to tle Zr:rgh Theie was scme iiscussion £5 to &M PJ:;;i.'c-—
the window, .rs., Til1 ouvel rade 2 motion that we heve an embler Sous
2ble Zor & Zartist Church, This was seconded anc cerried by unan;?;
vote, e zre planning for e _emorial Service to dedicate the windov

_ —
"The irnnuel Zhurch Leter to over Lssocistion ves CPETOV a.
I ing <=
~clegetes to represent this church at the Lover lssociaticn ?ec Pe T
Zlen Lllun Zhurﬂk were: -rs, L, 0. Clarke,-.rs. Js T. JONeSy -LS¢
ouVel and .r, Arthur Fenley, + & « M
. . . 1 mettrrs
The above neeti: was lengthy end many inccnscquential

Wwore 235 2 . — , +h <
were clscussed. lLowever, anong the items of importence vas t

o

- ~ « P i = car
Fetothe Church e2ll 2 reguler pastor. The motion was seconded and

1 e~ oA 5 T s . . P oy 1'lﬁr 1ied ‘-‘-lectea
ried and severzl nales were rlaced In nemination., ILean Towle

. 'l ‘0‘1"'}':?
by wnanimous vote, The Church decided to cell _r. Towler for tweive RO

: . . 5 . . . d *1C.00 a
to prewch the first snd thirs Surdey merninzs in eczch month at 1C.C0

- ™

warch 22, 193%: !r. Ion Towler wes precent at this meet

e ' - AnctArot
asked *he Zhurch whet would be expected of him i he accepted ths pashoratd
v ~ ) = T Arer [l ol a +
of Zover. The custox mary dutles were exrlsincd end Lr. Towler zgreed to

. 3 & 5 & “h1r ok
&ccrpt seying he would do as much az ke could, .otion mede trat tre Clhurch

2ccept Lr. Jowler as e ctudent kinister witl tre un.erstaniing that sixty
days nctice be siven if either »erty found a reazson for discontinruing the

contract.
73.: It was decided to heve Devivel Jervices teginnin:
cure lth with the Sundeay morning service, follewed by a nish® service Zundzy
night znd centinuing through Fridey nizht. Tre matter of financing the
Fevival Services was left tc the Deaccns.

Note: Following the above in the minute book are two references

to the dedication of the memoricl window., The first reference is undated

"Special services for memcricl window were held with one service.
Severz]l menrberz of the Bowleg lemily were rresant .
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The second reference zppeers under date of June 12th and

"re"‘v 1 Zervices were held at Zover Church beginring Sunday
orring, cune L, witl: the dedication of the lLemorial Window,

wommunicn Qerv‘cH“ were held Sunday night. Several young
ladies from estharmpton Zollege had cherge of the music at
the Surdzy night service. On Tuesday evening, Ir. Crowder
of Calvary Zaptist Church in Richzmond was the speaker.
Thursday night, ir. St.Clair from the University of Nictmond
was the guest speaker, 3Sirgers from Richmond helped with
the music ueveraT nlﬂhts FRTNCN |

"July 6, 163G: + s @ .r, Lbner Knibb had expre s.c'4 a desire %o
come hizre and prezch & scrnon on "eriminclogy" if the Church would let
kir., As ne unday morning scevad to suit, Lr. Will Gordon soid he would

take the matter up with the 2,.T7,U, end ee if they would zive him a night.

". rising vote of thanks was given %¢ .r. Arthur Lenley for the
recestels he hed made and ziven to the Church, New collection rlates

were given to the Church by an anonymous friend,

"The Church deccided to hold baptism at Celvary Zaptist Church
n Rickmond on 3rd Suncey in July at L:00 2., as the Calvery Church pool

N

zad ceen offered to us,

"Lr, Staples broughi up question as to improvement to the cemetary
and malking 2 plat of the grounds. £4fter some discussion, it was decided
that the Trustees stould sec what it would cost to have a plat made.is # % #¢

Lt a meetinz on September 5, 1939, there was discussion concerning
additional room for Sunduy School activities, &L community house, baserent
rcoms and additional rooms on the back of the Church building were considered

Cn Septenmber 2L, 1539, the "additicnal spece™ problem was azsin
discussed to extent of size cf additionzl rooms, entrznce, material &nd,
most ixzporteant of 2ll, the cost of this prpject.

Cctober 5, 1539: Lr, Staples reported he had scen a Civil

I

($]
(%]
ct

Znzineer in regard to making a plat of the cemetery znd the coct would

o=

be between “2£,00 and 3L0.00, TPastor Fowler asked if the Church wanted
this work enough to pay for it. Lfter much discussion & maximum of $L0,00

o

was set for this expenditure,
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~r Nyod » 2 to th.e
.8 Sullding Cormittee for the new rooms to be added

~ base~
weurch mede reports, During the discussion it was suggested that

. . its a"'C
mert roems would not be feasible for fear the Church, becsuse of =
and size, would gl o

. - e e ) . N was
«Te Will IZuVal said he was not opposed to the plan, but

tahe N : . . . ¥ t:e also
OFFesca to building anything nct :n keeping with the Church. =

. cq s, was stertede
f8vored raising the noney for this venture before the building Was S
- ; skes" to be
It stould be noted here that the plans called for "cinder blockes

used in tkis new construction,

~r, Robert IuVal asked the question as to what the rew rooms
would be used for and Lr., M1l Zordon stated it would relieve congesticn
in Sunday 3ctool and e To U

-~

dote cf interest: "ipril 7, 19L0: Church and Sundey School voted
on some letters that had been submiited to cur approvel, asiing Songress
end the Tresident of the United States that they stop shipment cf scrap
meteriel to Japan., Each letter was signed by the Pastecr, a Ceacon and the
Sunday School Superintendent. Letters sent tpril §, 19hO."

en ipril 11, 15h0, it was decided to let Committee o on with
the survey of the cemetary. There was no report from the Zuilding Com-
mittee,

£ new fence Tor the Church grounds and wi wiring for the Church
entered the discussion and it was agreed to have the cemetary surveyed
and the Church wired and take care of the fence when the other work wes

completed,

& moticn was made that the Church call ir. Fowler for the next

twelve months.
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On June 16, 1940, there wus a meeting of the Trustees to sigzn
& contract with the Virginia Zlectric and Fower sompany for service to
the ‘hurch. Tre contrect wes signed by V. V, LuVal, T, S, Staples and
L. C. Clarke, v, Fowler acted as Chairmsn of the meeting.
Note: TFrom this it would aipear that the Church had been wired,

although the minutes do not so state,

Jn July §, 1940, ir. Fowler offered his resignation as pastor,

vO taxe effect Afugust 31st, His resignation was accepted. It was decided

to hold Revival Services beginning Sunday night, fuzust 1lth at 8:00 P.L.
fugzast 11, 19L0: Revival Services as planned, Ir. Solon 3.

~Ousins was guest speaker on Tuesday night., Five additions to the Church

during service

Saptismal services conducted by ir. Fowler at T2dze Septist Thureh

on fuzust 18, 1¢L0.

September 15, 1910, Jack lianley, student from the Uriversity of

Richmond, was speaker for the day.

Uctober €, 1940, irthur 3rown, stuzent from ihe University of

Richmond, speaker for the day

Ccteber 20, 1940, ir., =-- Rziney, student from ire University

of Richmond, spezker for the cay.

Un October 27, 19LC, a meeting of the Fulpit Committee was held

for the purpose of discussing the callirg of a pastor. Lengthy conference -

nc action.

Noverer 3, 1940, Arthur Brown, student from the University of

Richmond, returned to speak at the morning service,
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 fr 1 \ - -2 1tV Of
hovember 17, 1940, r., Spain, student frem the University

“ichioend delivered the sermon on this date.

December 1, 1910, E. C, Zicafoose, supply speaker for this
Sunday, '

Decenber 2, 15L0: At this meeting the survey of the cemebary
Was agein brought up, but there was ne report available, £ motion Was
nede thet the kerosene lamps be taken down and stored. such talk, but @

o1 = : . . )2 w~nt = O
dc-.c:.Slon. The Calllng of a pastor wes given a great deesl of thouzit 1

Jack ianley, student from the University of Richwond, W&S supply
pastor on Decenber 18, 19.C,

venuvary 5, 1941 - Juck lanlsy spealker for the dey.
Jenuary 19, 1941, frthur Brovm speaker for the day.
Februery 2, 1941, Herold Zicafcose speaker for the day.
ebruzry 2, 1951, with twelve Church memders precent, the
question of surveying the cemetary azuin took the spotlight. The man who
nad agreed to do this work was not then available znd the Comzittee was

1

sked to find someorne else tc make the survey.,

o

» . . 3 3 . - =
Lt this meeting it was decided to call a rezuler pastor. A vove
wes taken and .r, Lrthur Zrowm wos elected for one vear,

Cr Tebruary 16, 1941, Lr, Arthur Srown accepted the call as

I

rastor of Zover Church for one year.

£t a meeting in 4pril, 1941, Lr, Staples was asked to contact

a merber of the fhurch who was a Civil Zngineer and see about getting plat
rade. re was to repcrt at the next Church meeting.

The mztter of taking dovn the old lamps was again brought uvp and

after much discussion, a Committee was approinted for this pwrpose consisting

of .rs. byron Clarke, Chairman and .r. and .rs. T, 3. Steples to assist her,
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L ‘trn=dy~ 1
They were instructed to take down the lanps and return the "swinging larcp!

tc lrs. J- L. :lErkC.
July 22, 1941, Lt this meeting urs, J. L. Clarke brought back
the "evin~in-~

inging lamp" and said it belenged to the Church, Chairman said he

would discuss this later.

£ ~
USLIelds ol

Lt

setting the plat of cemetery is now in the hands B,

-
<

Sivil Ingineer who is preparing it.
L metion was mede that all Church menbers and families ol non-

Churct. members who hed relatives buried in cemetery be contacted with the
idea of arrenging perpetual care for the cemetery.

fugust 10, 1941, innouncement made cf Revival o bezin Ltk
Sunlay in Jeptember and close Jgtober 3rd.

iugust 12, 1. Chairman of Improvenment Committee reported
pregress eon plat of Church graunds. .r. Staples asked that the Cocxzmittee
be given autherity to use funds to get cemetary cleaned, buy new fence
posts, huve dead trees removed, and a new fence put around all liurdh
Property. Eé recoumarded thet we ask for a yearly contributlion Zor mez.in-

tcrance,

Gicte: Thanksgiving Service held at 10:30 £.... Thenksgiving Lorning

o=

with Tustor in charze. Cormmunion service held at same tine,

goruary 15, 1942. The Church extended a call to the TPestor
for another yesr, beginning with this date.

Yote: Dover Zeptist Sunday Sclicol zave 35,00 to Fork Union
ilitaery scedemy for one chair,

kprd) 1, A942; ir, 3vovi offered his resignation to take effect
the 1lst Sundey in lay.

Lt a called weeting on Liay 3, 19L2, .r. Brown's resignation was

accepted.
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. . )2
-r. Zaves fron Crenge conducted services on .ay 17, 154c.

-T+ Mller conducted services on June 7, 1242,

. = c Q)2
°r. Cousins conducted services on June 21 and July 5, 19hee

pR R

. . was argin dis=
&t a meeting on July 6, 1942, the fence problem wes ag2

- . 3 nd the
- was finally agreed that sore new »pests would be put in &

wotes: 1ot Sunday in July - .r ldns preachec.
3rd Sunday in culy - .r. Tayler precched
1st

Sunday in fugust - Lr, Frouse preached.

3rd Jurday in fugust - .r. Brovm prezched,

Sept. 6, 1942, ir, Fred Scott conducted Services.
3rd Sunday in Septerber -

.r. Lusty conducted services.

vitober 1lst Sunday - Lr, Lushy precched.
Cctoler 2rd Sunday - ir. Rhodenhiser preached,

The record states that in kpril, 152, Ir, Erovm offered his re-
signation to tzke effect the 1st Suni2y in 'ay, and at a called mceting on
-y 2rd Wis resimation was accepted, Lfter thzd time many other ministers
cr student ministers conducted scrvices et Zover, yet at a meetin
Jetober 12, 1342, ir, Brevm was present and sposreniily sEill sesving @S

JOR VAN [V,

&b this reeting the sawe old problems rearc

(RN

~e M
anzry heads: The
Irprovement Committee had no report to offer, the elect»ic hezters which
had been inctelled in the Church were not heating satisfactorily - and the

roof leaked,

ir, Zrown offered to zive framed Church Covenant for 4. vestibule

aonle

znd he also told *the meabers that ke had been callzd to Stoney Creek Zaptist

Church for one year. A motion was made thet the Church pey ir. Prowm w2 e o
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On Decexnter.l3, 1642, tke Thurch voted to extend z z21l1 %o T,

Stanley Lushby as Faster of Dover at £17.00 a Sunisy for two 3undzys each
month; this contract to be for one year znd to begin with Januzry 1st,
1913,

Cn January 3, 1¢k3, .r. Lusby refused the call.

Tebruary 1, 1943: The Pulpit Ccomitiec wes instructed o as<
:T. Lisby %o reconsider and accept the Church ac student rizister for
nenths unless czlled to other duties.

iarch 7, 1643: Church Letier to issociztion read and aprrovel.

T . -
“elegates nazed %o 2itend the meeiing of the T

7or nsscelation were:

‘- .- T - - a3 - - - -~ - - .
8. L. ¥V, IWVal, Lrs, Z. E., Taves, .rs. 3. 3. kenler, Irs. E. Z. llarxe,

february 21, 19Lh3: ir. Lusty addressed the meeiinz ¢2d said Le

would preack twice zack month, hut was uncble to do eny visiting, Ie stated

+ L -~ -~ - ~ s 3 - ) B
©t.zt he had been deferred frow active duty in the irmy but was subject to 2

-

o

call. ke a2zree

FS
uvC

]

ccept the cell to Dover if tie Shurch would taxe him on
these conditiens. ir. Lusby was to rotify the Church of Fis Iralt Zcard's
deeisions

"ay 23, 15h3: irs. Staples offered to furnisk Service Tlag
for the Jhurch meetings. Ler offer was accepted.”

s

Note: Ko service on first Sunday in June as ixr. Lusby was deing

installed zs Young Peoples Leader at First Baptist Chirch In Richxmond.
July 12, 19)43: %o news from Lr. Lushy as to wheiher or ot ke
had been called into the Service.
September 12, 1943: Letter of resignation from lr. Lushby read
to the Church and accepted.

Tiscussed havingz Revival to begin October 1lst ani tc ask Ir.

Cousins if he would be available for that week. Would try to have dedization

service for tre flag on the 1lst Suniey of the meeting, the Tlaz being given




services,

Octover 10, 1943: . meeting was held for the purposc °f @
a pastor. A nurber of names were placed in nomination, but no decist
nades It would seem the difficulty incurred was due to the varicus s
men being subject to "draft" by the Lruy,

On Dececber £, 15,3, the Clerk was instructed tec write -T.

Rholenhiser and extend him a call to Zover Church.
on Tecember 13, 1543, a letter fwom ir. “hodemhiser wes reed
to tle Church refusing the call as he was clready pastor of another erurch.
on larch 2€, 194k, the search for a pastor wes renewed. T
Zraishav was selected and on larct 30, 15Lk, a letter from lr. Lelvin
—radsl.aw accepting the call was rezd to the Church. Lis firs*® service
was tc be held the first Sundey in fpril, 1L,
The following was not reccrded in tl.e minutes. It is & copy
of a newsparer itcm furnished this vwriter:

"On 3unday morning, July 16, 1gLhL, Lover Baptist Church, at
ianakin, Ve,, dedicated 2 plaque, given by liss lerion Staples,
in henor of the boys of the community serving in the arzed
forces, Lelvin Sradshaw, pastor of the church end a ministerial
student at the University of Richmond, delivered the address.

& pilano solo, "The 3tar Spanzled 3anner®, was played by _iss

Largeret Lenler "
Lt a Church meeting on July 18, 194, plans were made for Revival
Services,

Nete: fugust 20-2h, 194h. Revival Services held with Rev,
Ferguson of Venable Strezet faptist Church conducting the services,

On September 3, 19LL, a letter dated lLumust 3lst from ielvin

Bradshaw was read cffering his resiznation as pastor of Dover.
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Nete: October 15, 16LL: Z3 Eutton, student from the University
ol Richmond, was supply paster for this date.

In January of 194E, an effort was made to interest Oekland Bap-
tist Churet in forming a field with Zover. A letter from Ozkland, dated
2/7/L5 said they would advise lzter.

There were many suggesticns 2s to pastors and supply pastors.
“rom all available inforration it would seem thzt supply pastors woild be
Serving Dover fer a wtile.

vn June 17, 1945, Ir. Gzrnett Ryland of the University of Rich-
mond conductzld services.

July 1, 1945: Flans made for Revival Services to begin Sundey
night, July 8. Ir. Turgurson was to conduct sll services except the first
service on the night of July 8th, lr, Oliver, ir., Furgeson's Assistant,
would have charge of that service:

liote: Attention is called to the difference in spelling of Lr.
erguson's name on this pagze and the precedinz paze. It was so writhen in
the minutes. Lowever, it is believed that the party referred to wes Rev,

™ 1=t

"« 7. Ferguson.
llote: Revival Services held Suncay night, July §th, throuch week.
ilote: September 2, 19L5., Church Clerk, L. C. Clarke died.
Ceteber ¥, 1245: irs. L. C. Clarke elected Clerk of Church to
7111 the vacancy created by the death of ir, %. C. Clarke. Lr. Clarke
havinz also becn a member of the Board pf Trustees, lr, B, S, lenley and
ir, Lelvin Powers were appointed to fill this vacancy.
October 25, 1945: A committee from Dover met with a committee
from Salem 3aptist Church to discuss asking the Virginia Z2oard of lissions

and Zducation for help and to also aid in securing a pastor,
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Dover in
£ note to the effect that Dr. Szdler preached at Dever 1

Leceumber, 1g45

:ne Trustees
February 10, 19k6: Call meeting for the purpose of naming

of the Church .. Those naued
+ WHE LLurcen asc none wsre recorded at Goochland Courthouse.

-

-

. i - . o d Zenj.
were: 5. S. henley, lelvin B. Powers, T. S, Staples, W, V. DuVal an

~

_— i and Court-
S. DuVal. Resolutions of this meeting sent to Jlerk at Goochland “OW

(

- . . - +Lese naeres
house Tebruary 11, 1946 for arproval. The record indicates that thes

1
were duly recorded in Goochlan

——a

)
—

<
O
.

Circuit Court Jommon Law Crdsr 200

Peze 1,56,

Tebruary, 19L6: ir. Collins served as paster.

larch, 1546: Lr. Lcluy served as pastor.

-

. - o - \s 2T Cli=—-
b a meeting on larch 31, 1945, it wes suggested thet the church
: o i 114
vard and cemetary be cleansd by April 10th as the ",l.U. Associaticn would

LI Py

meet at Zover on that date,

It was repcrted at this meeting that an inswrance policy in the

amount of 16500,00 had been secured on the Church.

The young people, under the supervision of .iss learicn Ciazples,
were sranted permission to serve the Ruritan Supper,
it was planned to orgenize a Young Lens Eible Class. .r. Pay

venkins egreed to teach the class which would be organized the lst Suniay

- . o

£pril 1st and 3rd Sundays: ir, Bryant and .r. Dawson corducted

services at Dover,
£pril, 19L6: 4 letter sent _r. Earry Cosby, dr., thanidnz hin

for a %25,00 donation toward cleaning the cemetary,
~ay 3, 1946: lr. Rueben Llley was pastor “or the
bay 19, 19L46: lr. leSauver was pastor for the day.
June 2, 1946: i, ConnOr ccnducted services =t Cover,
June 16, 1946: lr, Price conducted services on tiis date,

day.
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June, 19L6: £ Committee Leeting .as held to discuss the
eld which had been cireed upon between Dover Zaptist Church and Selen

Baptist Church, and to consider calling Rev. %. 3. Conmnor to serve the

twe Churches.

.

L definite decision was not rezched at that tire and

another meeting was held on June 19, 1946, with .r. Connor rresent, The

call was then extended the Rev. ™. B. Coannor to serve Lover and Salerm,

dividing his time equally between the twoe Churches., Rev, Jenncr accepted
the call.

Eis pastorate was to begiz at Salem June 23, and at Dover the
15t 4 bezin June 15, 191%. OSalen Church was

to pay %600,00 per annum for lr, Connor's services #nd Tover was to roy the

It was agreed frat the Churches would asi the 7irgiria

[§9)

s .
Saptist Sozrd

of Tissions snd Tducation Cor an additional *800,00, theredy mazing .r.

Cenner's salary #2,000 per annum.

Luzust ©, 195 At a ca2ll meeting it was decided to hold Re-

vival 3crvices to bezin Afugust 18%h, 1. W, W, Ferguson cffered hic scr-
(=]

viges for tte Devival and _r. Connor agzreed to contact him with reference

.r. Decton s52id he would cut the grass in the Jhursh-] rerd - DU

b

it seems t'at the roof ol the Church was still leakire! There was much

&)

discucsion ceacerning this, but ncthing delinite was plarmed tc remedy

LY

th

WD
,l-
«)
¢

135
,.4

iugusts Pevivel Services bezinning fugust 10th and continuing

throuzh the week with Rev, Terguson preaching and r, Coaner

assisting.

it & meeting on Septemver 1, 1946, it was agreed that Zcver

=
Q
]
-l
N,
(1))

czent the Linisters Retirement Fund, the plan being:"tre Church
is +o ray each mornth 3% of the .inister's salary, the ~ipister pars 20
of what he gets and 37 of what the Board pays him."

It was noted et this meeting that the reool of the
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5 w om ek
ucst speaker at lst Septist L.UIC

"Cete 20, 20hE: # ¥ ¥ Nr, James Jleoan zeve percel of Lazd S0
~over Church, This purcel of land 2dicining +he Zhurch 'T““er+i 10?
fest Zront on Hockett Foad and 200 fiet deep, This to be used “oT &
parsoreze, Liss lLarion Stzples, .iss Lary Clarke and .rs. L. oo w==f
thanked Ir, Slean on belel? of the Church, It was suggested that the
Church buy souwe mere land from .r. 3l:zan if poscible.”

It wus :lso rejerted &t thiz meeting that the rocl ha d been TeT

reired at a cogt of $L3,00 and trat the Lill lead been paid.

wcter The deed %o the property above referred to was not dravn

iy el 4 A,Pil gf lchE. L copy of the deed will b reecrded at the prepel

igtcher 20y Yolly Trs. Qsse o Jroy offered the Serviess o-

g el - . £ 2 A3y~
e daughter 2s nurssry governess tc loolr alier little chiloren QuIZi.

i

- i S 3 i e = - — A~ =Y
Lovenber 15, 10L4: The colered Jharck will visit Zover on —CCCHI

= .2 4 S . . . . - . - 2t LY hanly »S ey
3tk with mirbers of twe choirs singinz and their Pestor, Sev. Smlil Sring-og
the nmessagze.

Ioverber 19, 19L6: Rev., Zomnor prescnted to the lhurch his vud et
Zor his sering "something would bave 4o be cone so he could mect
Yis expensss. he wanted a place %o live on tho field.™

iarsh 2, 1947: The conditlon of the coumelary was again discussel.
1% wag suzzested that the lhurcsh have 2 zZore JSordnz Tay Yo reise funds for
perpetuzl cars of the cemetary, .r. Connor advised tre ZQuurchk tat it wes the

duty of tre Bozrd of Trustees to attend to the cere of the cemetary B A
was finelly decided to have home Coring 2oy scmetiue in cduly. Ir. Ryland
would give the histery ol the Clhurch.

There was also discussion cf mc

3
[4]

Sunday Scheool rooms., Since

building meterials were so Lizh, it was decided to commence reisinz funds

and wait on the actual constructicn of the rooms. Lr, Cornor was to inquire
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111,
~ission Zoard about their aid Cop p=stor!s salary.

&

£

<v wes decided to have a Lzily Vacoticn Bible Schoel scuetine
3 T “ & . - v o L8
10 vune and to invite 3t. vary's Church te joirn Dover. This school to

~nclude through cuniors and e use youngz peogle to lelr,

Leciied te have Pevival in July. The
- of Yesthampten to helg.

"epril 20, 1947: ¥ % i Ciscussed having the cemetar; sni Church
yard clean:d by June 15, 1947, alec plans “or o uniley School rooms. Trustees
tc be given power 4o dc *hese things. The offering on i:one-Ceming —ay to be
used for up-keep of cemetary, % # # Trustees reported on plans for building
class-rcors cn rertt end 28 the Church to gonform witk eld Reildinz, Else
poried that cemeiory would he clsaned.”

Jdete: There is ne record to indicate whether cr hot the additional
Sundoy Zchool rooms t2lked of severel Yeers ago were ever zonstructed.

w8y 17, 1547: irs. Josephine Tyler cleaned the cemetery Sor
which the Church paid her by check the amount of $75.00.

cunc 11, 19k7: % meeting of the doint Pulpit Cozmittee of Lover
and Jzlem was held Zor the purpose of discussing an increase in Rew. Comnor's
selary. It was agreed that each Church would increase its peyment from “60C
2r year wurd that when askin

the Bap it%wd%rawmﬂﬂmm

of their help, 2lso ask them tc increase their peyment Zrem J30C to T900 per

m
=
=
&
e
@
ot
le]
£t

fact that r, Connor is now lifing on the field, devoting
Fis entire tine to the Churches and has no other source cf income. The
above stipulaticns would make a total selary of %2300.00. idss Tlizabeth
TuVel representing Lover, ard ir, £, W, Kay representinz Szlem would rresent

thiis proposal to the Virginie Beard of Lissions anq zducation,
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June 15, 1947: Eome-Coming Zey held st Dover Church with

di T . ' ~ ~ ~F I
1LLner or ihe grounds. Dr, Ryland zave the histery of the Churds. -1

the afterroon T e : i
€ allerroon Lr, Caines from Pichmond College addressed the audiences

e 4

Ture 2 » S r‘._i.—
June 22, 1947: Lt a regzular Church meeting the menbers unal

a«r - - o . 1 in-
mously voted for the propesed increase in .r. Connor's salary. The in

crease would take effect July lst, 19L7.

ne

Reli-ions T : . ; . . . ) —epf 43
Religious Inmphasis "Week was held teginnirg cune 16, 19n7, w=tl

-]
(]
5
™
(6]

Sleane Cuy preaching,
September 21, 1547: Zaptismal service at Westhampton Saptist
Shurch with Lr, Connor and ir. Sloane Guy officiating.
vctober 19, 1947: L motion was mede that Lover would not
in, tut extend hand of christizn fellowship. This moticn sceconced
and carried by vote,

LIter the alove meeting nothing of importence occurred until:

~erch 8, 1948, vhen the Zturch named a committee to have a plot
cf the cemetary made. Lr. Staples, Chairman, lrs. J. T. Jones and irs. L.C.
Clarke to serve. The rlzt to be mocde 2s soon as possible,

The tuilding of class rooms azein discussed - possibly two clas
reoms this year. Zastor reported that there was great need for some service
Ior the youny reople on Junday nights., Among the suggesiions made: a quiz
frogram on the Sikle, a gathering tozether of the young people epd yvisiting

another church. The Pastor sugzested a2 change of service with more prewching,

which vwould be harder on him, or he would invite the Church tc his rome every

Sundzy night for a gel-together. £ vote was taken., Six for and ten ageinst,

In commenting on the results cof the vote, the Pastor said: "Consigned to the

Fiery Pits of Helll" ZLe did not elaborate on who was being thus consigned
nsi "

and he did clese the m2eting with prayer!

This should have been a most interesting meeting!




April 11, 15L3: At this meeting :r. 2. 3. Henley anncunced
that on the Lth of 4pril the Ceacons and Trusters decided to sive ir.
Conner a zift from the Church and Sun ey School in the sum of ;50.00;
that if the Church would not pay the sum of ﬁB0.00, the Deacons and

Trustees would ray it., The Treasurer was instructed to pay this axount

.r. ltrnor's dire warning "Consigned to the Fiery Pits of
Eell" seems tc have hit "pay dirt".

"Lpril 18, 15L8: Call meetingz of Trustees to discuss plans
and contract in regard to land on the north of cemetary., Trustees
agreed to the plan end .r. Staples made motion thet we accept it, and
it was carried by vote, The contract was drawn up by Lr, Jokn Williams
specifyring a certzin nv.uel of land belenging to the Church on the
north to be traded with Lr. Jares Slcan for a parcel on the highway
south of the Jhurch. lr., ZJonnor, .r. T. S. Staples, ir. B. 3. Eenley,
<r. ielvin Powers and Lr. Y. V. ZuVal named ac Trustees."

Note: The mirutes do not indicate what the plan actually wzs,

&t a neeting on April 19, 1948: "ir, Connor explained to the
meeting the exchange of some property belonging to the Church with ..
Sloan. 4lso read paper drawn up by Lswyer John Williams., _x. Yood made
& motion that we accept plan as offered and rroceed with legal trensfer as
recoumended. lLotion seccnded by :r. Jenkins and carried by vote,"

Ilcte: 3till no explanation of the plan or recommendations,
cte: Leily Vacation Zivle Sciocl to be held 3rd week in June.
Nete: ur. Connor asked for vacation beginning Ltk Sunday in
Lzy (23) for two weeks. ™Would be back in time for ¥irst Sundey in June,
1948,

Note: Laintenance of Church-yard and cemetary azein discussed
and azein tavled,

Note: The Young iens 3ible Class offered to paint the Church if

the Church would furnish the paint,
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It seems proper to record here a cogy of the deed covering
the property involved with the cxchange made with Lr. Slean. ir. Sleen’s
Sft of land to the Church, rade on October 20, 1946 (page 110) stipulates:
"This parcel of land adjoininz the Church property 100 feet front on Eockett
Road and 200 feet desp"., The actusl deed, dated ipril 28, 19L6, includes

134 43 % rinz deed is to
additional footzge. e must therefore ass ume that the followlnz -f

ccver both ir. Sloan's gift and the land involved in the exchenze.

"TLIS DZIID, made this 25th day of April, 14§, by ant belween

Jiu D3 L. SLOAN and VIRGIIIA D, CLO.K, his wife, of Richmond, Virginiz,

. — L oJaatls

perties of thre first par®, and BIRWARD 5. HINLIY, iILVIK 3. PHZIRS,

o~

223, W. V. ZU7ZL and BIUJALIN S. DUVAL, Trustees oZ

ZJover Zaptist Church of Goochland County, Virginie, parties of the second

AIANEBBENE:

1=
It
It

- 3

"That for and in considcraticn of the suz of Ten {710.00;

i

~cllars, and other good an

[N

veluable consicderations, reccirt of which

is hereby acimowledzed,

cr

he pzrties of the first prart do

7 zrant and convey

z
unto the parties of the second part, with Ceneral “arranty of Title, tle
follewing described rezl estate, to-wit:

"Pzrecl of land lying in Zover .azisterial folEtTi.ef,
Goochland County, u*rg;n*a, in or near the Tillage of manakin
on the eastern line of lLanaxin Ferry Rozd, and bounded as follows:
"ZEZCILNING et a point on the ea tern line of lanakin Ferry Rosd
at i%s intersecticon with the southern line of the Zcuver ~aptist
Church TOV, u}ﬂnce extending southerly alonz szid eastern llne of
wenaldn Ferry Road Two hundred (200) Feet and thence extendinc back
easterly frox said front between seid soutrern line of Dover Saptist
Church and a line in prclongation therecs, on the north, and a
line perallel theﬂbw‘th, on the south, Two Lundred L;OO‘ Tfeet,
rcference being here made to a plat of survey. by V. ™, Lalracde &
Bros. dated .arck 31, 1937 and recorded in the Clerk's 02%ice of
Goochland circuit Court in Plat Book L, paze 135,

"3.IKG a part of the saze real estate conveyed te James & Sloan
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by decd from Dover Lend Corporation, deted June 7, 19LE,

and recorded in the Clerk's 0ffi:e of the Circuit Court

of Goorchland Ccunty, Virginia in De~d Book 72, page 308.

"The parties of the first part covenent that ttey have the right
to convey the said real estate to the perties of tke second part; that they
tave done no act to encumber the said reasl estate; that the parties of the
secend part shall have quiet possession of the said rezl estate, free from
all encumbrances; and i.at ‘he seid parties of the first part will execute

suchk Zurther assurances of the said resl estate as mey be requisite.

"VITWIZS the folloving signatures and seelus:

nJA ES k. SLOAU (32il
VIRGT.L. T. SLOSK (32L0)
ROOlaTt RALTE 07 YIDISRIA
I I RILhan, T
"I, Trances L. Nedfcrd, a Notary Public for the Jity aforesaid,

in the lcumenealth of Virginia, do hersby certify that Gt 3 2. SLOAE and

Ly

VIRGIIZA T, SIOAY, his wife, vhose names are signed to the foregoing deel,
datc on the 22th gy of frril, 1548, have each acimouledged the
sere before ne in my City and Stete aforesaid.
"3iven under my khand this 17tk doy ol .ay, 1946,
3

r.yr comxdission expires the 1ith dey of fpril, 1950,

" Signed) Crancec A,
sctzry Publ

"Wirginia, Goochland County, to-wit:
"In the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Jecurt for the County
£ Zeockland the 2nd day of June, 19LE, This Zeed was presonted ard with
the certificate annexed, admitted to record at 3: 35 o'zlock F.i.

aret e Diller,
n

{This deed Recorded in Deed Book 76, Page 32, Coochland Circult lowrt
aler &



June 20, 1948: A bill was presented from Lr. John Williams
for securing and recording deeds from Mr. Sloan for property exchanged
and some donated to the Church, The Treasurer was instructed to pay this
bill,

At this meeting the Young Ladies Class offered to give the
Church new hymn books. Their offer was accepted and the books pramised
by July.

July 25, 1948: Religious Emphasis Week was held with kr.
Stanley Lusby preaching.

At a call meeting on August 1, 1948, Mr, Connor asked if the
Church would let him off for August 15th, He and his wife had been offered
8 two week trip to tour the country and he thought they needed the change
and rest. There was some discussion, but Mr. Connor's request was granted.

September 19, 1948: Mr. B. S. Henley, Mr. W. V. DuVal and lMr.
Connor met with kr. Bryant of the Board of Missions and Education and
it was decided by Mr. Bryant that the Board would assist the Church for
one mare year or until the Church was able to take care of its own
finances,

At a call meeting on November 20, 1948, deed for the land
donated to the Church by Mr. and Mrs. Sloan was accepted and the Clerk
was instructed to write Mr. and Mrs. Sloan a letter of thanks for this
donation.

"January 17, 1949: Discussed survey of property which Mr. Sloan
gave to Church. Trustees asked to look over and establish lines."

"A representative of the Insurance Company reported that he had
inspected the Church for insurance and that the heating system was unsatis-

factory. He gave Mr. Connor some blanks to fill out after the pipes were
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Teplaced. Several ways of heating were discussed * # % several methods

of heating talked over. Some in favor of digging basement and installing
furnace, Mr. Staples suggested that some authority be obtained on heating
of the Church before anything was done,"

"The leak in the roof was called to the attention of the Chairman,
also the joist under the Church. Quite some discussion on condition of
floors and benches. Nothing definite decided about this,"

March 20, 1949: Church letter approved by Mr. Raymond Jenkins.
Hr. Sutton is preaching for lir. Connor who is absent on business.

April 3, 19L49: Mr. Ray Jenkins asked for a letter from the
Church in order that he might unite with Burkeville Methodist Church,
Burkeville, Virginia., Mr. Jenkins was to take charge of a field of churches
in the Methodist Conference at Alberene, Virginia. Lir. Connor asked that
the Dover congregation send him some financial help as Mr, Jenkins would
not receive any salary from his new job for a month. This was approved,
and Miss Elizabeth DuVal was asked to receive money for ir. Jenkins.,

April 18, 1949: The Church voted to have a speaker on Temperance
at the Church on September L, 1949. '

June 19, 1949: Mr, Connor being absent, dMr, R. Bain Harris
from the University of Richmond conducted services on this date.

Following are extracts from minutes of meeting held on June 21,
15L9:

"Pastor to speak at First Baptist Church (colored) Sunday morning,
June 26, 1949,

"Religious Emphasis Week to begin July 17, Mr. Lusby will preach.

"Heating of the Church discussed. Church opposed to excavating

under Church.

"Some suggested four rooms on back of Church., Mr, Staples to make
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plans and estimate cost of same."

Note: There seems to be no limit to the chores assigned ©0
Bro. Staples. And apparently there was no limit to his patience, far
after spending countless hours drawing plans and making estimates, DO
one carried them out! Mr. T. S. Staples should be commended for bis
faithfulness in doing all within his power to help the Church.

"July 17, 19L49: Mr. Lusby conducted Religious Emphasis W:;l;-
No additions to Church., Collected $86.60. Paid lMr. Lusby $50.00
Mr, Connor $36.00,"

Note: No record of what happened to the 60¢.

"September 18, 15L9: Rev, and lrs. Connor left for Chicago, he
to attend school and work in hospital with Mrs. Connor.

"Mr, Connor gave notice to Church in September, several days
before he left. Letter received by Mr. B. S, Henley from ir. Connor
thanking Church for purse given him to the amount of $85.00.%

"October 2, 1949: Pulpit Committee of Salem and Dover met for
the purpose of discussing the matter of securing a pastor for the twc?
churches. Mr. Randolph Hall was being considered. No minutes of this
meeting given to Church Clerk,"

A meeting on October 12, 1949, involved many matters.

The Pulpit Committee reparted that Salem had decided to call
Mr. Randolph Hall as Pastor. A motion was made and carried that Dover
do likewise, It was agreed that Dover would offer lir. Hall $1200.00 a
year,

It was reported that some of the sills of the Church were in
need of repair and the Trustees were instructed to take care of this,

There was some discussion concerning the proposed heating system, but

nothing decided.

December 18, 1949: The Pulpit Committee reported that a call
had been extended to Mr., Randolph Hall but that he had declined "because
he could not do the work for the Church while he was working at another job

which paid him more than the Churches could.® The Pulpit Cormittee reported
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that after receiving lir. Hall's declination they called on Mr. Bryant
of the Board of Missions and Education and asked if the Board would help
®ach Church in its financial needs if the Churches could not meet their
Obligations. Mr, Bryant said: "If we tried and failed to pay Mr. Hall
what he charged, that at the end of three or six months they would help.
But that there were other ministers we could get for $2400.00 a year.”

Out of this chaos and confusion came a question heavily weighted
with wisdom: "Are we able to pay so much to a pastor when we need so many
other things done around the Church?"

Note: To this question might have been added the one word "Amenl™

At this meeting there was a motion, seconded and carried by vote
that the Church pay $35.00 to visiting minister and $50.00 to regular
pastor. To a regular pastor for two services each month this would
add up to $1200 per year., Nevertheless, the following note appears im-
mediately after the December 18th meeting:

"January, 1950, Mr. Hall called by Committee as Pastor of
Dover and Salem at $3200 a year. No minutes of this transaction.®

March 5, 1950: Church Letter to the Association was read and
approved, Messengers to the Association to be held at Four Mile Creek
on April 25, 1950: Mrs. B. S. Henley, Mrs. W. V. DuVal, lirs., E. H. Daves,
Mr. L. A. Wood, lir, Gearge Keeton, alternate Mrs. L. A, Wood.

April, 1950: Lenten Services held the week of April 2nd, with
Rev. Hall preaching a series of sermons on the Resurrection. |

Some highlights from the meeting held on April 17, 1950:

'Pa.stor Hall reported that he had called on 34 families, 51 members,
18 sick calls, 21 evangelical calls, officiated at one wedding, held 6 regular

services and Lenten Services.
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The Treasurer reported a checking account of 8658,89 and
Building Fund in the amount of $333.35,

Plans are still in the making foar a survey and blueprint of
all graves in the cemetary. Some arrangement for perpetual care. Ques-
tion as to plots in cemetary being sold. No plots have ever been sold,
members of Church can reserve space for family. No one can give permission
to bury outsiders - this left to the Trustees.

The Pastor inquired as to how Dover received people from other
churches: by christian experience, making immersion optional? Did not
this Church receive a member from another Ghurch that had not been immersed
without requiring them to be immersed again? There was no answer forth-
coming to these questions. Mr. Hall then stated that the Church requires
baptism by immersion of any one who comes into this Church regardless of
christian experience!

Class-rooms aéain discussed,

Reported that the sills. of the Church were in bad condition and

repairs had not been made.

May 7, 1950: kr, Hall preached today and afterwards was taken
to the hospital.

Third Sunday in lay: Mr. Abner Knibb preached today.

June L4, 1950: No services at Dover since kr. Hall is still in
the hospital.

June 11, 1950: There was discussion as to what should be done
about having services at the Church while Mr, Hall was ill, Someone sug-

gested prayer service, and someone else said: "If we do not have some

service, we lose collections and we cannot afford that." It was finally
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decided to get a supply pastor to fill the pulpit until kr. Hall was
able to return. It was understood that Mr. Hall's salary would be paid
while he was in the hospital, and it was agreed that a supply pastor

wWould be paid £10.00 per service,

June 18, 1950: Mr. Elliot was supply pastor for this date.
He was paid $12.00.‘

On this date kir. Hall was permitted to leave the hospital far a
few hours so he attended a called meeting of the Church, He said the choir
wanted to sponsor an argan for the Church, that the choir (15 members) had
already pledged $230.00, Mr. Hall asked that every member of the Church
Support this project. This was agreed. The organ to cost approximately
$1300.00,

Note: Daily Vacation Bible School will be held week of July 5th,
s Nr. Hall expects to be out of the hospital by then and will take charge.

July 2L, 1950: Lr. Hall reported that he had not seen Lr. Charles
Johnson aboup surveying cemetary. Committee reported that they will begin
putting new sills under the Church in two weeks., Finance Committee appointed
to clear up budget for 1951.

It was decided to have Revival Services, but due to lack of interest
and enthusiasm Home-Coming Day was ruled out.

The following item of business at the above meeting is of interest:

"Mr, Hall asked ir., Staples to take the chair as he wanted to make
a8 motion that the Church go on recard as favoring a parsonage. This motion
was seconded, voted on and carried. kr. Hall said if building material was
avai;able, the Church could use the payment of his rent to aid in building
a4 parsonage. Some comments on the subject:

"Plenty of room, but no good location.”
"Yes, we do need a pargonage, but we cammot get any more

land on the east side of the Church. But what we have
is large enough and people are willing to help build,™®
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"What about Salem, we are in a field together 7"

Mr. Eall answered the last question by saying trat Salem

was not interested because they were trying to build class-roomse

More pertinent questions:

"What about finances?"

"o is the Committee amd when did the Church neme them?
"No Committee appointed, but Trustees will attend to it."
"No plans. Something small and liveable."

"Tould there be a down payment?"

Finally a motion was made to table the whole proposition until
something definite could be ascertained as to available land, finances,
plans, materials, etc. lr. Staples, kr. Will DuVal and lir. L. A. Wood o
report in four weeks.,

The Committee met again in July and decided to confer with Salem
in the event Dover decided to build the parsonage. It was suggested that
~ stakes be set up to locate the proposed building site. mces discussed
end house plans viewed.

On August 29th there was a joint meeting of Dover-Salem to dis-
cuss the parsonage. It was agreed that a suitable house plan be selected

and presented to the Joint Committee at a later date.

At 2 meeting on October 16, 1950, & motion was made and carried
that the Church drop any plans for building a parsonage at this time be-
cause the Church is not financially able to carry out the plan,

Also at this meeting one member was still interested in knowing
what the other members were going to do about the sills under the Church

that were badly in need of repair.
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Januery 22, 1951: Question of increasing insurance on Church
to +12,000, Mr. Hall said he would write 2 letter to the Insurance Agent
and inquire about policies.

A motion was made by Lrs. L. C. Clarke that the old Church Book
be given to Dr. Garnett Ryland for safe-keeping. This ﬁotion was carried.

And - the Committee reported that the sills under the Church
had been repaired!

Note: April 10, 1951: O0ld Church Book sent to Dr. Garnett
Ryland at Westhampton to be preserved for the Church,

On April 16, 1951, the matter of insurance again came up.
It would seem thet the Church was already insured for $9,000 and it
Was the desire of the members to add an additional $3,000, making a total
of #12,000. The Insurance hgent suggested that the old policy be allowed
to expire and then re-write the insurance for $12,000, r. Will DuVal
made a motion that the Church be insured for $12,000 (he did not stipulate
whether it was to take effect immediately) and kr. Earl Henley seconded
the motion. It was carried by vote.

On July 28, 1951, lightening struck Dover Church, damaging the
roof and two rooms upstairs. The Church carried insurance against fire
and lightening and the Insurance Agent was notified.

August 19, 1951: Pastoar on vacation and lir. Harris from West-—
hampton preached at the morning service,

August 20, 1951, The Insurance Company approved the claim for

damage caused by lightening on July 28th. This claim in the amount of

#150.00 was paid by check and received by the Church on September 19th.
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October 22, 1951: There was a report on Revival Services al-
though no reference is made to it in the frevious minutes. lLkir. Panky
conducted the Revival Services. bir. Panky was paid $75.00 for his ser-
vices and ir. Kall was paid $26.00, which he (iir. Hall) gave back to the
Church., Dates of the Revival are not stated.

From what took place at this meeting it would seem that Rev.

Fall was not giving the Church the attention it deserved and was right-
fully entitled to receive; that he wes engaged in some gainful employment
other than the Church, and the members were somewhat indignant at his lack
of interest in and neglect of the Church, Following are some extracts from

the minutes of this meeting:

"A Committee of Deacons called on Lr. Hall and asked him if @e
felt that he had kept his contract with the Church, He had not kept his
contract with the Church, that he rad continued to work as he needed money
for his hospital expenses. He needed $300,00 and that would pay him up.

He is to send in his resignation October 29, 1951, at the regular Church
meeting.®

Repairs to the Church were again discussed at this meeting. 4
motion was made that the Trustees attend to the work "which must be-done
in thirty days." The financial question reared its head and snarled a

bit, but a Committee was duly appointed to annihilate this troublesome
factor.

Question was asked as to what kir, Charles Johnson had done about
surveying the Church property., There was some tie-up about the line so he

was going back to establish lines later. He had to look over blueprint of
property.

The Deacons were instructed to remind kr. Hall of the Baptismal
Services and have them perfarmed at oncel

October 28, 1951: There was a call meeting of the solicitors
for the building fund, to make plans for collecting funds. This fund
was intended to take care of necessary repairs to the Church.

EE R
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The next recordation in the life of Dover Baptist Church was

in the form of a grim headline in the newspapers reading:

"DOVER BAPTIST CHURCH RAZED
BY FIRE, WITH $46,000 LOSS

) "MANAKIN, VA., October 30 (1951) Historic old Dover Baptist Church,
which gave its name to the Dover Baptist Association, was completely des-
troyed by fire early this morning.

"The Rev. Randolph B. Hall, pastor of the church, located just
north of this Goochland County community, said the one-story frame build=-
ing was valued at $35,000, Its furnishings were worth approximately
$10,000, he said, and the organ cost $1,285. The building was insured
for $12,000 and the organ for $1,000, he said.

"Edward Willis, acting chief of the Pembroke Farm fire department,
said a defective flue or over-heated stove might have caused the blaze. He
said the fire was discovered at about 6 A.M. by Gilbert lioore, a milk truck
driver, The Pembroke Farm and Henrico County fire departments responded
to the alarm, but only the south wall of the church was standing when they
arrived, The fire spread to a near-by wooded area, Willis said, but was
quickly brought under control.

"Second Structure

"The building which burned this morning was the second Dover
Baptist Church. The church was first constituted in 1773, according to
the Rev. Mr. Hall, and its first home - a log structure - was erected in
1776, across the road from the scene of the fire. It was replaced in

about 1855.

"Colonial Williamsburg was interested in buying the flooring and
pews of the second Dover Baptist Church, Willis said, but the church members
refused to sell, The 8 to 12 inch pine floor boards and the handmade pews
were desired for restoration work at the Colonial capital, '

"The Dover Baptist Association was organized in 1783 in Essex
County., It was named in honor of the then pastar of Dover Baptist Church,
the Rev. Dr. William Webber, who was chosen as the first moderator of the
association. The association now consists of L2 churches in Goochland,
Hanover, Henrico, Charles City and New Kent Counties, with a membership
of 11,500. Until last year, it also included Baptist Churches in the City
of Richmond. At that time, the Richmond churches = 22 in number, with

" a membership of 25,000 - withdrew to form the Richmond Baptist Association.”

¥ ¥ # K
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There are some discrepancies in the preceding article, but the
shattering fact remsined - it was very stark, very real. Dover Baptist
Qureh constructed through the efforts of men and women working har mond ous Ly
together and exercising great self-denial in order to leave a monument ©0
their love for and faith in Almighty God, now lay a charred and blackened
mass of nothingness. The lovely Church, dedicated on October 18, 1655,
having known ninety-six years of joys and sorrows and having emerged vie-
torious and triumphant through all of them, was no more. The smoldering
rulns of a residence, building or forest cause even the casual onlooker
to experience a sense of sadness. But when one looks upon the devastation
left in the wake of a ravaging fire that has swept a House of Worskip - @
building dedicated to God - the feeling of sadness becomes a leaden SOTTOW,
a loneliness of loss not easily described with words. It is then that
'the eyes of the heart' may not see clearly, or become entirely blind
for a while.

The readjustment period for those who loved Dover Church was
destined to be tedious and fraught with discontent, discord and dissent.
Indeed, it may be said that before the gray skies cleared the Church would
have to endure times as "cold" if not "colder" than those referred to in
the Dover Association Letter, Meeting October 11-13, 1800,

No attempt will be made to record the many meetings that were
held by members of the Church after the fire. It would be pointless to so
do, Meeting after meeting ended with the words "nothing definite decided"
and the same old problems, with many new ones added, were rehashed each
time. Suffice it to say that tempers wore thin and nerves became frayed,
that indecision and confusion played their "be-deviling" parts, and that
the records are, to say the least, somewhat perplexing. However, an effart

will be made to record all matters pertaining directly to the 1life of the
Church. '
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Immediately following the fire, local Churches, among them being
Salem, Goochland, Grace Episcopal and lst Baptist at Manakin, offered their
Churches as a place of worship to Dover members. However, it was decided
to hold services tempararily in Clarke's Store at the intersection of Routes
#6 and 621,

At this point appears an undated sheet of paper listing officers
and teachers for Dove-r Sunday School for the year 1952, T. S, Staples is
listed as Superintendent and Earl Henley as Assistant Superintendent.,

At a meeting on November l, 1951, the Pastor asked if the Church
members wished to disband and go where they wanted to go, or to rebuild the
Church. It was unanimously agreed that Dover Church would be rebuilt as
Soon as possible and a building fund for that purpose was immediately set up.

November 12, 1951: Mr., Hall's letter .of resignation, dated Octo-
ber 29, 1951, to take effect December 31, 1951, was read to the members
assembled in Church meeting., Mr. Hall's resignation was accepted.

At this meeting everyone present had something to say on practi-
cally every subject in the book. Out of the turmoil came one profound ob-
servation: "Much discussion, but everyone seems not to know what to do!™

In addition to this observation, one decision was made and that
to let iir, Hall, the Pastor, know that his resignation had been accepted.
Some felt that Salem had "taken" Lir. Hall, so a Committee was appointed to
call on Salem in this regard,

Also consideration was given to holding Church services in a
vacant school building just north of the Dover Church property. Although
the building was greatly in need of repair and was on the "for sale" list,

Mr., A, W. Kay, Superintendent of Schools, kindly offered to remove iu't. from

the sale list and make it available to Dover members for an indefinite time.

Mr, Kay's offer was accepted and plans were made to rehabilitate the building,
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At a meeting on January 2, 1952, it was reported PY the prop
oint
Committee that Dover was no longer in a field with Salem, thal such J
lem."
activity had been dissolved, and that Mr. Hall "is now Pastor of 52

d and
It was reported that the school building had been repaire

was now ready for use in holding Church services.
Mr.
The need for a sexton was discussed and it was noted that
3 fore
Kelvin Powers had saved the Church $10.00 & month for eleven months(be

ended
the fire) by serving in this capacity. A rising vote of thanks Wwas ext

r. Powers. iir, Powers again agreed to act as sexton for the year 1952 at
$10,00 per month if the Church and Sunday School would turn that amount over
to the Building Fund. His offer was gratefully accepted.

On April 10, 1952, it was decided to secure the services of a
student pastor for Dover. The record does not indicate who served aS- pastor
prior to this time, or after iir. Hall left Dover.

On June 22, 1952, Mr. E. Hugh Ragland appeared on the scene as
Pastor. His appearance apparently served to act as a "shot in the arm"
for he suggested fixing up the school building and making it more attrac-
tive. He also recommended a Revival to be held in August and, from all
indications, went about the business of tryinz to pull together the many
loose ends then existing. Mr. Ragland was to preach at Dover two Sundays
each month,

A note of interest under date of August 16, 1952: "Charles R.
Johnson, W. V., DuVal, T. S. Staples and B.S, Henley met at the Church to
begin surveying property. Some more land had been donated by kr. Harman,"

Ground Breaking Exercises were held at Dover Church on August
17, 1952, with dinner served on the grounds.. Many visitors were present.,
The message for the day was: "The First Gift," by Rev, Parker S. Hooper 5

Pastor of Woodlawn Baptist Church, Colonial Heights, Virginia. Prayer by
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Rev. C. J. Washingtan, Pastor of First Baptist Church (colored) Manakin,
Virginia. Mr. T. Dix Sutton was also present and took part in the services.

Mr, E, Hugh Ragland, Pastar of Dover, was in charge of the services faor the

day,

The ground-breaking took place at 2:30 P.M. Those taking part

in this exercise were:

Sandra Austin, youngest member.
Mr., and Mrs. J. T. Jones, oldest in membership.

Mrs, J, L. Clarke, oldest in age.
Mr. W. V. DuVal, Treasurer

Mr, B. S. Henley, Deacon
Mr, T. S. Staples, Superintendent of Sunday School

Mr. L. A, Wood, representing the Choir
Mrs. L. C, Clarke, Church Clerk.

# 3 * F 3

August 25, 1952: lr. Ragland stated that he wanted to come and

serve Dover as a full-time pastor, that he could see much work that needed
to be done by the Church and Sunday School such as visiting members and

people in the community and working with the Building Committee. Beginning

September 1st he would preach every Sunday. He stated that he was anxious to

help the Church financially and spiritually. Mr. Ragland volunteered to

pay his own rent until the Church was in better shape financially. He ask-

ed for several days vacation after Revival and before his school starts in

September.

September 2, 1952: "Mr, Ragland was asked to explain to the Church
that additional land had been given by Mr, Harman, which gives us more land
for drainage. Also marker can be moved. lirs. B. S. Henley made motion that
we accept property given by Mr. Harman with this condition that we do not
extend cemetary. Llrs. Daves seconded the motion. It was recommended that
after the deed is cleared that we start digging basement * % * % x ",
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the cornerstone

would be

Also discussed at this meeting was the laying of
of the new Church., It was decided that brief records and a Bible
placed in the cornerstone.

The minutes of a call meeting on September 22, 1952, state that
the Revival was held September 7th to 12th. The minutes do nob state Who
conducted the services.

A notation following the above meeting reads:

» d a
"Dr. Cousins wished to be notified whether or not we wishe
preacher,”

This leads us to wonder what happened to Mr. Ragland who, less
than a month before had been fired with zeal to help.

There is another entry to the effect that at the meeting on
September 2nd the members agreed to have services twice monthly and to use
a supply pastor. leanwhile, five candidates for baptism were still waiting
for such service, It was decided that Mr. Ragland would be asked to per=

i i ction
form this service. There is no record as to what occurred in this conne o

#* 3¢ 3 ¥ H*
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Following is a copy of the deed covering the property which

Jo W, Harman gave to Dover Church:

"THIS DEED, made this 23rd ciay of September, 1952, by and
Petween J. W. HARMAN and GENEVIEVE S. HARMAN, his wife, of the City of
Richmond, State of Virginia, parties of the first part, and BERNARD S.
HENLEY, MELVIN B. POWERS, THOWAS S. STAPLES, BENJAMIN S. DUVAL and W. V.
DUVAL, Trustees of Dover Baptist Church, parties of the second part:
"TIINESSETH
"That for and in consideration of the sum of Ten (£10.00)

Dollars and other good and valuable considerations, the receipt of which

is hereby acknowledged, at and before the execution and delivery of this

-deed, the parties of the first part do bargain, sell and convey unto the

parties of the second part with General Warranty of Title, all of the
following described real estate with improvements thereon and appurtenances
thereunto belonging, to-wit:-

"411 that certain piece or parcel of land lying and being
situated in the Dover liagisterial District of Goochland County, Virginia,
in the village of wanakin, and containing 0.42 of an acre, more or less.
The courses and distances of the boundaries of which are as follows:
Commencing at an iron rod on the line of J. W, harman where it intersects
the old line of the Dover Baptist Church property, thence along the old
line of Dover Baptist Church property S.78 degrees LS' W. 76' to a rock,
thence along old line of Dover Baptist Church property N. 2 degrees L5S!
W. 250' to a stake, thence N, 87 dezrees 15 E. 75.2!' to an iron rod,
thence S. 2 degrees 45' E. 238,8' to the point of beginning,

"It being bounded on the North and East by other land of J. W.
Harman, and on the South and West by other land of Dover Baptist Church
property.

"It being a portion of the same property as that comveyed to
J. W, Harman from Harman liotor Company, Incorporated, et als, by deed
bearing date February lst, 1952, and recorded lay 19th, 1952, in the
Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Goochland County.
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"For a more particular description of said land reference ¥
here made to a plat of survey made by Charles R, Johnson, Certified 3
Surveyor, on August 16th, 1952, which plat is made a part of this dee
and recorded herewith,

"The Grantees on behalf of Dover Baptist Church covenant with
the Grantors that the above described lot will not be used by the said
Church as a cemetary and the Grantees manifest the obligation of the
Church on this covenant by their signatures to this deed.

"The aforesaid Grantors covenant that they have the rignt ©O
convey the said land to the aforesaid Grantees; that they, the Grantors,
have done no act to encumber the said land, except as mentioned above,
that the said Grantees shall have quiet possession of the said land, free
from all encumbrances except as mentioned above and that the said Grantors
will execute such -urther assurances of the said land as may be requisite.

"WITNESS the following signatures and seals:

"J. W. HARLAN (SEAL)
GENEVIEVE S. HaRLAN (S=4L)
BERNARD S. HENLEY (SEAL)
LELVIN B. POWERS ) (SEAL)
TLOMAS S. STAPLES (SEal)
. V. LUVAL (S£aL)
BENJAMIN S. DUVAL (SEAL

"STATE OF VIRGINIA
CITY OF RICHEO.D, to-wit:

"I, (no sismature appears, a Notary Public for the City aforeszid,
in the State of Virginia, do hereby cervify that J. W. hiRiuaN and GmIEVIEVE
S. HARWAN, his wife, whose names are signed to the foregoing instrument,
bearing date September 23rd, 1952, have each this day acknowledzed the same
before me in my City aforesaid.

"Given under my hand this 9 day of Oct. 1952. _
"iy commission expires on the 18 day of Feb. 1956,

G, E. Vhite
Hotary Public.

n3TuTE OF VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF GOOCHLAND, to-wit:

"1, Margaret V. henley, a Notary Public for the County aforesaid,
in the State of Virginia, do hereby certify that BIRNARD S. HENLEY,
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AELVIN B, POVERS, THOLAS S. STAPLLS, BENJAIIN S. DUVAL AND Vi. V. LUVAL,
Tm.lStees of Dover Baptist Church, whose names are signed to the fore-
89lng instrument, bearing date September 23rd, 1952, bave each this day
aclknowledged the same before me in my County aforesaid.

"Given under my hand this 15th day of Octeber, 1952.

"ly commission expires on the 3rd day of Aug. 1$55.

"Margaret V. Henley
Notary Public,
"Virginia, Goochland County, to-wit:

"In the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court for the County
of Goochland the 15 day of April, 1953: This Leed was presented and with
the certificate annexed and plat attached, admitted to recard at 3:30
o'clock P,L,

"Teste: Margaret K. killer, Clerk."

. The above deed is recarded in Deed Eook 82, Page 37, Goochland
bircuit Court Clerk's Office, J

3% 3 ¥ % ¥
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At a meeting on January 19, 1953, the Pulpit Committee read

names of several possible ministers to serve Dover Church. LT- Fleet Powell
vas asked to preach on February 1, 1953,

April 1, 1953: It was reported that ir. Ernest Clark was well
recammended to serve Lover. "he will preach for us while here at Kbingdon.”
kr. Parker will preach on Sunday the Lth and 19th,

On April 15, 1953, there vas discussion as to surveying the Church
property.

Ernest L. Clark accepted the pastorate of Dover in a letter dated
June 13, 1953, stating that his first Sunday at Dover would berJune 21ste.

The Church was to pay ir. Clark $1500 and the Board to pay him £500 per

annum,.

¥* o K <0 S

Laying of the cornerstone of the new Church took place on Sunday,
June 29, 1953, at 3 o'clock P,., Pastor: Rev. Ernest Clark. The order of
bf the service was in part as follows: |

The Invocation by B. S. Henley

Statement of Purpose by Rev. Randolph Hall.

Reading of the Scripture by Rev. C. C. Anderson

Prayer by Rev. C. C. Anderson -

Placing of liementoes in copper box in Cornerstone:

By: trs. L. C, Clarxe, Clerk.of the Church

kr, T. S, Staples, Chairman of the Building Committee
Miss Elizabeth DuVal, Chairman of Church History.
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Placed in the copper box in Cornerstone were:

Copies of Bulletins

Church kistory and List of Former Pastors
List of Church Members

List of Church Officers

Copy of this Program

Copy of Richmond News Leader, June 27, 1953.
Bible

Laying of Cornerstone

By: Er. Dix Sutton, kr. K. R. Henley

Charge to the congregation: "Take heed, therefore, that the
cornerstone of your faith shall ever be Jesus Christ, the Son
of God, our Lord and our Savior,"

Address by: Dr, Ralph LcDanel of the University of Richmond.
The Benediction: By the Pastor, Ernest Clark.

Cornerstone Frogram Committee:

Mrs. T. S. Staples

lidss Mery Lucy Clarke
Mrs. Earl H., Henley

¥* o3 A 5 H#
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July 20, 1953: The survey of the Church property has not yet
been made, but is promised shortly! Revival Services planned to be held
in November,

Septerber 6, 1953: Recommended by Pastor Ernest Clark that
Revival Services be held at Dover from lovember 2 to November 6, with Dr.
Ernest L. Honts of Tabernacle Baptist Church (Richmond) as the preachef.

Note under date of September 2, 1953: New organ put in school.
To be paid for by Choir (adult).

The list of officers and teachers for Sunday School for 1954
include: Earl Henley as Superintendent and William Sheppard as Assistant
Superintendent.

During all of tiis time work was being done on the new Church
Building. It was intended to complete the basement first so that this
portion of the building could be used for Church services and Sunday School.
lany contributions were made to Dover Church by members and non-members
of the Church in the form of money, labor, building materials and other
items., Since the names of all these contributors are not known, a few
will not be given here.

Note under date of October 19, 1953: lir. Charles Johnson is to
survey the Church property as soon as he is able.

October 19, 1953: The services of a janitgf were required to build
fires and care for the school building, A Committee was appointed to secure
the services of such a person.,

On April 15, 195L, ir. W. V. DuVal resigned as Church Trustee

and Elam Daves was elected to take his place. This was confirmed at

Goochland Courthouse,
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Note: July L, 1954: Dover Baptist Church held its first
Service in the basement of the new Church. Sunday School at 10 o'clock,
Preaching by Rev. Ernest Clark at 11 o'clock.

On May 30, 195L, a recommendation was made to call Lr. Ernest
Clark as Pastor for another year, his present term expiring in June of
1954, The salery named was 3 4000 per annum plus $50,00 per month for
Tent. The recommendation was approved and lir. Clark accepted the call.
There was a definite stipulation in connection with this cezll which reads:

"Let it be clearly understood that this leaves us free to form

a field with Salem or to make any other change at any time

which we are led to make."

Tt should be noted here that on July 19th, 195L, it was reported
that Salem was no longer to be considered as a field,

On July 19, 195L, ur. W. V. DuVal asked to be relieved of having
the Church property surveyed m% Mr, Charles Johnson. Plans were made for
Revival Services to be held last week in August. No record follows to
indicate that the plans were carried out.

"On July 19, 195k, it was agreed to borrow $7,000 from the Bank
of Goochland to complete the work on the new Church. # % % !

In order to secure this loan a deed of trust was drawn against
the Church property. It is not clear how this transaction was accamplished
since the holdings of the Church were extremely small, being: 3/L of an
acre, more ar less, given to the Church by E, J. DuVal and Rhoda T. DuVal
in Narch of 1886, to be used exclusively for a burying ground; 200 feet by
200 feet acquired in April, 1948, from James A. and Virginia D. Sloan, and
forty-twe hundredths of an acre given by J. W. Harman and Genevieve S.
Harman in September, 1952. Nevertheless, the loan was granted by the Bank

of Goochland and work on the new Church continued.
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Sertewber 26, 195L: Rev. Ernest D. Clark resigned as Pastor

of Dover, to take effect on October 15, 195L. His resignation Was accepted.

October 18, 195L: Mir. W. V. DuVal asked permission to turn oVer
to the Clerk the deeds in his possession. This request was grantede.

Rev, Baine Harris preached at Dover on November 7, 195k

January 6, 1955: The Pulpit Committee was asked to look into
the metter of calling ir. Walter L. Eradley, Assistant Pastor at Barton
Heights Baptist Church, to serve at Dover.

January 17, 1955: A rising vote of thanks was extended to Lr'.
“e V. DuVal for his long service as Treasurer of the Church.

On February 6, 1955, it was discovered that additional money Was
needed to complete the Church and it was decided that this money woulc be
obtained through a loan from the Bank of Goochland, such loan to be se-
cured by signatures of certain members of the Churéh.

Although kir. Vialter L. Bradley had not (as indicated by the
records) begun his pastorate at Dover, he was present at this meeting
and asked the members for a seven weeks leave of absence beginning June

1st to attend the Baptist World Alliance in London, he to furnish a supply

pastor during that period., Permission was granted for tiis leave of absence.

March 1, 1955: wr, Walter L. Bradley came as Pastor to Dover

Church at a salary of $200.00 per month,

¥* ¥ F o ¥
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GROUND BREAKING AUGUST 17, 1952
LAYING OF CORNERSTONE JUNE 29, 1953
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The new Dover Baptist Church was dedicated on April 3, 1955.
The order of service was, in part, as follows:

Invocation, by Rev. Charles H. Bradley

The pastor's Greeting: Announcements, by Rev. Walter L. Bradley
The Salutations:

The Rev. Cecil C. Anderson, lioderator, Dover Baptist Association

The Rev. Cherles S, Trammell, lioderator, iiddle District Baptist
Association

The Rev, Paul Crandall, Executive Secretary, Richmond Baptist
Association

Address: "Dover and The Baptistsof Virginia
By Rev, Kemmeth &E. Burke, Treasurer, Baptist General
Association of Virginia.
The Scripture Lesson by Eev. Joseph Rotella,
"The Act of Dedication"
The Prayer of Dedication by The Rev. Randolph Hall

Address by Rev, W, E, Cullers, Executive Secretary, Dover
Baptist Association

Prayer of Consecration by Rev. 2. C. Anderson

Benediction by The Rev. Joseph Rotella.
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A foot-note on the bulletin giving the program for the ke

cation service on April 3rd indicates that Evangelistic Services began
at 8:00 P.ils on April Lth, with Dr. Clyde V. Hickerson of the Barton
Heignts Baptist Church, Richmond, Virginia, as the guest Evangelist.

Although there is no available record to substantiate the
fact, it is known that this service did take place.

April 2L, 1955: Delegates appointed to attend Dover association
meeting were: B, S, Henley, kiss Roberta Gordon, irs. B. 5. Henley, iLrs.
W. V. DuVal and lrs. Arthur Henley,

r. and lirs. Jones and Rev., Clark made a map of the cemebary.
(It is not clear why Rev. Clark should enter the picture again at this
late date).

It was noted at this meeting that lirs. Leita Ellis Briesmaster
desired to give collection plates to the Church as a memorial to her
grand-father, Rev. Archar B, Smith,

Note: These collection plates were given by lirs. Briesmaster.

August 15, 1955: The Cemetary Committee reported that they had
decided to level the graves and put some type of marker at each grave.
Cleaning has commenced and leveling should be done soon.

lr. Bradley announced that Sunday night services will begin with
the showing of pictures he took on his travels through Europe.

There was discussion of a Fall Revival, to meet in October with
the Pastor conducting the services,

August 15, 1955: Miss Hallie Roller of Richmond has offered her
family Bible for the sanctuary. Siﬁce the Church already had a Bible, it

was decided to accept lidss Roller's offer and use her Bible in the Sunday

SChOOlo
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September 17, 1955: Lr, Bradley's brother will assist with

the Nevival at no cost to the Church, and kr. Crone, kinister of liusic
at Barton Heights Baptist Church, will conduct the singing. Since kr.

Crone has no means of transportation it was agreed that the Church would

Pay him $40,00 for his services.

On Hovember 13, 1955, a special meeting weas called for the pur-

Pose of considering forming a field with Salem Baptist Church. The motion

made for forming such a field was defeated and the Clerk was instructed to
inform the Salem Pulpit Committee of Dover's refusal.

January 16, 1956: kr. C. S. Luck, Jr., gave the Church a kitchen

sink and a Committee was instructed to install this in the Church kitchen.

The Trustees were instructed to insure the Church for &L0,000,
under extended coverage for five yeﬁrs.

January 29, 1956, was set to take a special offering for ir.
Selfe who was injured in a fall while working on the Church.

April 16, 1956: The insurance policy on the Church was turned
over to lr,., B. S. Henley, Chairman of the Board of Trustees,

Mrs. W. V, DuVal, krs. A. C. Henley, kir. T. S. Staples and ir.
8. S. henley were named as Delegates to attend the Dover Association meeting
at Cool Springs Baptist Church in April.

It was announced that the Women of the Home Demonstration Clubs
would have Mothers' Day services at Dover on kay 13.

July 1, 1956: Homecoming Day was held at Dover. Horning and
and afternoon services witk lunch on the grounds,

Note: A letter of thanks was sent iirs. Virginia Weeks for the

coffee pot she gave to the Church.
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July 16, 1956: Delegates named to attend the Dover Associd

meeting which will be held at Poplar Springs Church in the fall were:
Mr. John Smith, Mr. Henry Powers, Mrs. Lois Powers, krs, Harry Henley.

October 22, 1y56: Thanksgiving Service will be held at the
Church at 10:30 o'clock A.K. on Thanksgiving Day.

Permission was granted the Huguenot Cauera Club to hold meetings
in the Church,

A permanent Home Coming Day was set for the second Sunday in
October of each Yyear,

January 22, 1957: "Family Night" was set up for the first
Wiednesday in each month; this to include a pot-luck supper with everyone
bringing a "covered dish" (or the equivalent) to be served at 6:30 Pl
and to include all members, their families and friends. ‘

"February 17, 1957: lir. Bradley reported that Lr. Leonard henley's
will left half of his estate to Dover Church and half to Hebron Church.
This property has been surveyed. The property was owned jointly by Hr.
Leonard Henley and his brother, kr. rank Henley. The Church has been _
asked to praovide two persons to share in the settlement of this estate when
it is settled. iiotion was made and seconded that two Trustees be entrusted
With this business - ir. Bradley to name the two Trustees to take care of
this matter,"

karch 31, 1957: kr. C. S. Luck, having been most generous to
Dover Church in the past, has again come farward and offered a fine dona-
tion, Wr. Luck has offered to build a picnic shed for the Church - this
shed to be rustic in style and located on the south side of the Church on
property lines - dimensions 20 feet by LO feet. His offer was gratefully
accepted.

April 7 through 12: Revival Services at Dover led by Rev. John
Houghton of Dinwiddie County.

April 15, 1957: BMr. T. S, Staples is listed as Superintendent of

the Sunday School at this time.
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"The following Delegates were elected to represent Dover at
the meeting of the Association on April 23, 1957: irs. E. k. Daves, kr.
Arden Henley, Mr. John Smith, Mr. T. S. Staples.

_ "There will be an afternoon session at 3 o'clock P.u. and an
€vening session after supper."

Mr. Bradley thanked the ladies of the Kitchen Committee and the
Church for their hospitality and the luncheon served to the ministers during
their conference at Dover on karch 25, 1957. This was a meeting of the
ministers of the forty-five Churches of the Dover Association.

Mr, T. S. Staples and Lr. B,S, Henley (Trustees of the Church)
Were named to meet with ir. Stuart Gathright, executor of lir. Leonard
Henley's wili, on April 20, 1957.

The Dover Association met with Dover Baptist Church at kanalkdin
on April 23, 1957. Only the Delegates from forty-four churches were en-
tertained, visitors not invited as in previous years. The attendance,
therefore,was small, only 230 being present., The meeting convened at
2 o'clock P,M, Supper was served at 6:30 P.M. Closing at 9 o'clock P.i.

At this meeting it was agreed that a lay reader was needed in
each Church, ILrs. Phyllis Clarke was elected as lay representative 1or
Dover with Mr, T. S. Staples as alternate,

tir. Frank Adams was speaker at Dover on the evening of April
28, 1957. This was in connection with the Youth Emphasis Service spon-
sored by the University of Richmond. |

May 19, 1957: It was agreed that there would be no evening
service at Dover on kay 2, 1957, as the Pastor would be away at the
Southern Baptist Conference.

July 15, 1957: The regular quarterly meeting of the Church was

held a week earlier due to the fact that kir. Bradley is leaving on vacation
on July 22, 1957. He will be away six weeks during which time he will make

a world tour.
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July 17, 1957: Home Coming Day set for the second Sunday in
October,

It was unanimously agreed at this meeting that the pPastar of
the Church would be granted a months vacation each year with pay, this
period of time to be taken at the Pastor's discretion.

August 18, 1957: It was noted that the picnic shed which was
duilt and given to the Church by Lr. C. S. Luck, Jr., wes comple ted.
Lrs. L. C. Clarke, Clerk of the Church, was asked to thank Lr. Luck 1or
Wiis generous gift and to extend an invitation to Lr. and lrs. Luck 1o
attend Jamily Night Supper on iiednesdsy night, September Lth.

Note: The above is the last item appearing in 1957. The next

Church meeting was held on January 20, 1956, with irs. Phyllis Clarke
as Church Clerk,

January 20, 1958: l.otion made and carried that Lover Church
adopt the uni‘ied budget system beginninz with the second quarter in 1y58.
The Church budget already adopted for the year 1958 was $7315.00.

It was noted at this meeting that krs. W. V, DuVal had given a

much needed 9 x 12 rug for the nursery. Appreciation was expressed to

Lrs, Dulal,
lir. Bradley stated that the Church was also the recipient of a
bronze lighted bulletin board, presented to the Church by srs. Vi. A. Gordon.
Spring Revival planned ror iarch 31 through April 6.
Cottage Prayer meetings planned to precede the Revival Services.
larch %, 1556: It was stated that the budget for 1955 was
$8115.00,
march 31 through April L, 1956: Revival Services held at Dover‘

and led by lr. Charlie Bradley of Antioch Baptist Church,
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April 1lL, 1958: Appreciation was expressed to wrs. E. H.

Daves for her feitk fulness and persistence in endeavoring to get the
building debt closed.

The matter of the Trustees of the Church being recorded at
Goochland Courthouse has not yet been completed.

Lr. Bradley presented the Annual Church Letter to the Lover
Association. This letter wis approved.

The annual meeting of thie Lover hssociction will be held April
22nd at Lortt Run Church, The followinz messengers from Uover were namec:
«Ts. Eva henley, Lr., T. S. Staples, irs. T. S. Staples, irs. Phyllis Clarke.
ilternates: urs. Lois Phillips, wrs. . wx. Chenault, wr. Billy LuVel and
krs. W, V, Duval,

It was reported that .rs. Bertha Liservio, Church Reporter, had
Sent a write-up to the Religious Herald with reference to The Business
Woman's Circle being named for kiss Elizabeth DuVal. 4 picture of Luiss
LuVal was also sent.

Lrs. vW. V. DuVal, Principal of Vacation Bible School, stated
that a Bible School Clinic would be held at Cool Springs Baptist Church
on April 29,

With reference to the VW.u.S. urs. DuVal announced that the Society
had received an Advanced Certificate which was presented at the annuzl meeting
at New Zridge.

lr. Sradley announced that he plans to attend the Southern Baptist
Conference to be held in Houston, Texas, on Lay 20, Ee will leave after
worship service on iay 1l8. Motion made and carried that evening worship
services be dispensed with for the two Sunday nights ir, Bradley will be

away. ur. Bradley stated that he had arranged for someone to £ill the

pulpit on the one Sunday morning during his absence,
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There vas discussion of the Community Brotherhood recen J

gsenized, which is not exclusively Baptist, for the men of the communitye
The Erotherhood meets once a month at Dover for a supper meeting. TheY
are interested in recreation for the youth of the community. The Plan
under consideration is to clean up the remainder of the land on the Chures
troperty in order to have a playing field for the youth of the community;
&t the same time, give the Church additional parking facilities. hotion
lede and carried that the Srotherhood be authorized to clear the land 1n
question,

It was recommen. ed trat the fund accumulzted for the care of
the cemetary be used to do some “"constructive" work in the cemetery.

Christian Home Week has been designated as Lay L-11. The
Goochlend home Demonstration Clubs will have their annual oobservance
service at Dover Church on hay L.

July 21, 1958: Howard Henley elected to fill the office of
Recreation Chairman,

hessengers named to attend Fall meeting of the Lover Association:
Lrs. Bernard ELenley, irs. C., L. Chenault, irs. F. H. hgee, kr. F. H. Lgee,
krs. wollie DuVal, trs. Lois Phillips, wrs. Phyllis Clarke, irs. Harry
Lenley. The meeting is scheduled to be held on September %th, place not

vet determined,

trs. Lois Fhillips and krs. Pauline Staples named Co-Chairmen
of the Lhome Coming Committee,

Septenber 1L, 1950: Fred Browning was elected Superintendent
and karl Henley Assistant Superintendent of the Sunday School for the
year 1959,
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Septemoer 1lh, 1956: Baptismel Service held during evening

Worship with Rev. Walter L. Bradley officiating.
October 12, 1958: The annuzl Home Coming was held with a theme

of World iissions. Lr. Rogers &. Smith, Associzte Secretary of Promotion

for the Southern Baptist Foreign ikission Board, was speaker for the after-

noon service. Rev, Walter Bradley conducted the morning service. His

Sermon topic was: "Are Vie As Dew?" Dinner was served on the grounds at

12:30,

October 20, 1956: krs. Eva Henley, President of the Business
Woman's Circle, reportec that they have twenty members enrolled with an
average attendance of nine.

irs. Phyllis Clarke reported that the Youth Group becane re-
activated in September with the same type of general programs as befare,
with the exception of having ordered BTU guarterlies for program material.

The Youth Choir, under the direction of krs. Eva Henley, is
singing for the morning worship service each Sunday.

It was reported that the bronze bulletin board had been installed

under the supervision of sr. T. S, Staples, The Church Clerk was instructed

to write a letter of thanks to lirs. Gordon for this fine contribution.
4 new budget for the year 1959 in the amount of &8,78L was brought

before the Church body for consideration. It was recommended that the Church

attempt to acquire additional land in the amount of 2-1/2 acres for expan-

sion purposes. Considering this new acquisition, the budget was increased

to $9,78L. A motion made and carried to adopt the budget.
Lrs. F. H, Lgee was named to compile biographical meterial on
past and present Baptists of Dover who have contributed to the "Virgin:ia

Baptists". This work is being carried on under the title of "Uperation

Baptist Eiography."
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It was decided at this meeting that the Sunday evering

would be dispensed with entirely due to the swmall attendance at such ser-
vices. This to become effective immediately.

November 30, 1956: Mr. Richard W. Hamel, Jr., was elected
Superintendent of the Junior and Intermediate Sunday School Departments
for the year 1959, |

January 20, 1959: Lrs. W. V. DuVal, reporting for the W5,
stated that the Society received approved rating this year.

It was noted that the railings which had been installed on the
front of the Church were a donation from an anonymous friend of the Church.

kr. Earl Henley reparted that the Commonwealth's Attorney for
Goochland County had telephoned him on December 3, 1956, stating that the
names of the present Trustees of the Church had been officially recorded
in the Clerk's Office.

There has been in the past some discussion concerning tne need
for a week-day kindergarten. The matter was again discussed at this meeting,
but no decision was reached.,

March 3, 1959: A Youth led prayer service was held at the Church
on this date. The theme of the service was The Light of the World. The
various Sunday School classes participated in the program. This was a
candle-light service and following the lighting of the candles, the youth
formed a fellowship circle and sang Blest Be The Tie That Binds., Mr, Fred
Browning presided at the service and Mr. Billy DuVal summarized the program.

liarch 15-22, 1959: Rev. Paul Akers from Lawrenceville Baptist

Church led the Revival Services during this period., Eis theme for the week

was "New Life For You."
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April 21, 1959: Two communion chairs for the sanctuary had been

Ordered and upon arrival ir. and krs. William Sheppard kindly donated one

chair to the Church and the Ladies Bible Class the other. These fine dona-

tions are greatly appreciated,
lir. Earl Henley reported that the Brotherhood, at an executive

meeting on April 20, had decided to have a picnic at the Church on June

13th, or in the event of inclement weather, on June 27th. The men will

Play baseball with the older boys' team.

ars. ¥, H., Agee, who had volunteered to compile a history of

Dover Church, asked members for their cooperation in this connection.
She asked that they assist her with information not contained in the Church

minutes or other records, and to give her accounts of weddings, meetings or

Church activities worthy of mention in such an history.

wessengers nawed to attend the spring meeting of the Dover associa=-

tion at New Bethesda Church were: wrs. Loward henley, br. John Smith, Lrs,

C. L. Chenault, Mrs. W. V. DuVal, bkirs. Lois Phillips was nzmed as alternate.

Annual Letter presented and approved.
The matter of the old lamps which were taken from the Church when

it was wired for electricity was again discussed. No decision reached.

In the absence of the Sunday School Superintendent, kr. Fred
Browning, Lr. Bradley brought the recommendation that a committee be ap-

pointed to study the possibility of building an additional unit onto the

Church to meet the needs of the growth of the Sunday School. This was put

in the form of a motion which was carried. Mr., Bradley was to appoint the

committee,
Mr,. Bradley brought to the attention of the group the matter of

additionzl property for the Church. He stated that he had drawn a plot and

sent it with & request to kr. Fleetwood Garner. Lr. Garner and kr. Eugene
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. Lr. Bradleye
West came up and looked over the property but did not contact
erested

: .5 not int
»T. Garner instructed lLr, West to write ir. Bradley that he was

, - contact
in selling or giving land away. It was suggested that xr, BradleJ
sr. Garner again and try to deal with him personally.

n each
A motion was made amd carried that the Church bell be Tung

Sunday morning at 9:30 for Sunday School and 10:50 for Church. AT. Haswell
Proffit agreed to be responsible for the ringing of the bell.

Curtains or blinds for the sanctuary windows were discussed.

May 17, 1959: Committee appointed to study the matter of cur=
tains, blinds or stained glass for the sanctuary windows.

June 7, 1959: It was recommended that draw drapes, lined, beige
in coler, be used at a total cost of approximately $L00, or $36 per window.
The matter of financing the cost of the drapes was then discussed. 4
commi ttee was appointed to receive donations for this project.

July 20, 1959: bkrs, F. H. Agee urged members to cooperate with
her in the effort to compile the Church history. She stated that she had
been working on it, but information from the Church members had been either
slow in getting to her or not getting to her at all,

Referring again to the additional property which the Church de-
sired to obtain, iir. Bradley reported that he had attempted to contact ir.
Fleetwood Garner three times without success. he‘plans to try again in the
fall.

Report of the committee studying additional space far the Sunday
School was given by ir., Bradley. This committee found that the needs would
include an adult assembly room and three class-rooms; and rest rooms; Junior
and Intermediate group would need assembly room and three class-rooms -
Primary would need an assembly room and three class-rooms and rest room,

Plans should also be made for a nursery. ir. Bradley sketched on the black-
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board a general plan which the committee had agreed upon and moved that
this general plan be adopted. This motion was seconded by wmr. Hamel,
There followed much discussion. It was finally decided to send these plans
with appropriate information to kr.Harroll in Nashville, with a request that
he work out detailed specifications and recommendations.

The study in the Gospel of Mark is continuing and should be
completed in a matter of two weeks,

lrs. Lois Phillips named home Coming chairman for this year.

The matter of the old lamps from the Church again brought up.
After much discussion, this matter was referred to the Building and Grounds
Committee with the Suggestion that they bring ideas for the disposal of the
lamps to the next business meeting of the Church.

krs. W. V. DuVal asked that her name be dropped from the Sunday
School Building Committee as she is unable to attend night meetings.

The Clerk was instructed to write a letter of thanks to Lr. howard
L. Marshall for five tons of lime given for use on the churchyard,

Lr. Bradley stated that he would be at Hagle byrie the week of
June 25 and August 3-8,

September 13, 1959: r. R. W. Hamel, Jr., elected Superintendent
of Sunday School and Lir. Fred Browning elected Assistant Superintendent .

Septexber 27, 1959: Sunday School Promotion Lay carried out with
program in the sanctuary under leadership of lirs. Audrey Henley.

October 11, 1959: Home Coming Day observed at Dover. The theme
for the day was "Ecumenicity." Speaker for the afternoon was Rev, Ray R,
Jenkins, pastor of Christ hkiethodist Church in Richmond, Virgihia, -

October 19, 1959: It was reported that little had been done in

connection with additional Sunday School space. This matter will be tabled

for the present.
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ur. Bradley brought up the possibility of having ThanksZivins

i be
Services again this year., It was moved and carried that the service

held. There was another motion made and carried that a joint inter-

denominational Thanksgiving Service be held in 1960,

The Bible study of Timothy will be held on five consecutive

nights, January L4-8, 1960.
Budget set for 1960 in the amount of $11,112,00.

October 19, 1959: It was reported that kr. and irs. Deitric,

£
former members of Dover Church, had died recently, and that the heirs o<

: t
the Deitrick family had sent a check to the Church Treasurer in the amoun

of $125,00, but did not designate what it should be used foT. 4 motion was
zade by Lr. Barl Henley that it be applied to the cost of the proposed
draperies for the sanctuarye. The motion wes carried.

Jr. and brs. Howard Henley offered to gzive a used filing cabine®
to the Church. Their offer was accepted.

The matter of an honorarium for Ray Jenkins, speaker at the
Home Coming Day program was discussed. A policy was established to give
an honorarium of $25.00 to such speakers.

Prior to the business session on the above date, a family night
supper was served with krs. W. V. DuVal as honored guest. Mr. and Mrs.
TuVal have united with the Tuckahoe Baptist Chapel. In recognition of lrs.
DuVal's devotion and faithfulness to Dover Church, as well as that of Lr.
DuVal, and the fact that the DuVal family have been members of the Church for
five generations, a special program "This is Your Life, Miss Mollie" was
staged. Among the guests present were Rev. and wrs. McRae of the Tuckahoe

Baptist Chapel.
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December 21-22, 195y: The annual Christmas Pageant was staged
at the Church, Departinz from the usual indoor pageant, the program was
Carried on oyt of doors with the picnic shed being used as a stable. 4
Live donkey ang cow, loaned by Lr, Harrison Tilman, occupied the stall next
%o the nativity scene., The shepherd scene was removed from the stable
Scene to the right with a blazing fire, shepherds in robes and wearing
Peards, carrying staffs, tended three sheep loaned by kr. Seymour Breed.

To the left of the stable scene were three plywood camels with the wise

Men astride. Each scene was lighted with vari-colored lights. As the
Stery unfolded each scene was lighted then darkened., MNusic was provided
by carillon bells on tape with narration, also on tape, by Rev. Eradley.
An additional scene of the prophet Isaiah, in white flowing robe and long
white bearq, reading from a scroll, preceded the rest of the pageant.

The pageant was presented in two half hour performances each
evening with half hour between. Following the final performance refresk-
menvs were served and a period of fellowsrip was enjoyed.

% 9 3 a
It is fitting end proper that this writinz should close on such

a beautiful note, The Christmas Pageant was extremely well presented and

it brought pleasure to meny who came from far and near to view it,

s % ¥ %

At the close of 1959: .

Dover Baptist Church membership 203
Dover Baptist Church Sunday School enrollment 105

Rev, Walter L. Bradley, Pastor,

L L
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It is to be regretted that this so-called history 1is not the

comprehensive study it was intended to be. There can be no excuse for
the writer's blindness of heart aud frail ability; yet, it must be seid
that an active interest on the part of the Church would have gone far in
achieving a more satisfactory end result. However, grateful appreciation
is here expressed to those few persons who did cooperate whole-heartedly
in this sincere effort to perpetuate the memory of mamy fine people who
gave so freely of themselves in order that Dover Baptist Church might live.
God grant that, in the fulness of time, villiam Viebber may look
down from his place in heaven and say: "iell done, true and faithful
friends!" This may well be, but let us never forget that -
"Except the Lord build the house,
they labour in vain that build it:
except the Lord keep the city, the

watchman waketh but in vain."

Psalm 127:1

R KK k¥ X K




B st DR i

The pages mmediztely follewing will supply
a2 few knovn facts ebout some of the pecple who have

. s+ . . ~ T4t el
rendered outstanding service to DJover Zartist Church.
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¢ IETmLang zeel to serve the Lerd fzithfully and well,
. “illisn ebber was the son of Tilliem Vebber, Ir. Eis Lother's

nane 1 . . PR . .r ~
© %5 not known. The lact will and testamcnt of William “eiter, Cr.,
d;—‘-_t,:-'. e d ¢ 5 3 = 5 % % =
e sugust &, 1794, does net give the name of his wife, indicating
that she had nredeceased hi Wisue 2 2 S
< Predeceased hinm, ilowever, this will lists the fcllowing

S As A% . ) BN Tt Vo h ~ - v 1 . e %
“ildren:  Fhilip Vebber, Charles ‘etber, Archer “TeblLer, John lebber,

—anSems S tree . N ~ vers v -
=enjamin .ebber, William Tebber, Susana Tinn (“ebker) Folks, Polley

—

webber ) Johnson, and 2 name which appears to be 'hitural:' Briers febler

Llzn Tebber vho became Pastor of Dover teptist lrurch was beorn
in Goochland County, Virginia, hugust 25, 1747. Ee cisd February 25, 1807,
&n’ is buried at kis old home, two and three-quzrters miles nortl: of iznakin,
Virginie, Iis childhcod wes spert in tre vicinity of iznekir, Iducetionzl
background is unknown.

Tore

williar Vebber was baptized by Pev. John "zller when he was twenty

.

Jears ol age. Shortly therealter he was ordzined to preach. It was then

<
lJ

that he began his arduous and Zcerless proclamztion of the Gospel.

The maiden name of Villizm Webber's vife is not lrowm. In his

last will and testament, dated Janusry 19, 1808, he refers tc her as his
"beleved wife, iary”, and he alse names the follewing children: Jescph
T"ebbnr, John Vebber, William Zcwles Yebber, Latthew Woodscn Tebber, Sarah

(Wiebber) Tilkins, Zliza (Webber) Forde, Lugustine Tebber, Feggy Tebter,

Iancy ‘.ebber and Tolly Linsy Webber) Puryear,




;S - Tee - 1 2
vadlieam Secber - eent.

williom ‘VeblLer wesg:

woderstor of the Lower Disitrict a5 B0
(Lover Associzticon) 1723-1C

.clerator of Ceneral Zomnittee of

. . - -— . 75 =] QY
7irginia Beptists 176L-2757
Loderztor of the Ceneral ieeting ol R -
. 1NN RO
Cerraspendence - Dl

. \ e s . . el State
Z1lthough William “ebber organized churches throughout the -té

o 3 8 - T o nt Dovrer

5f Virzldia, he wes never, even noxinzlly, Pastor of any Church but Zover

church et lanekin, Virginia,

Pt W

Note: The names of William Yebber's children as they appear
on page 1 (immediately preceding) are exactly as they
appear on a photostatic copy of Villiam Webber's will.
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LREAR BENJILLIN SUITH

frcher Benjamin Smith was born in Charleston, South Carclina,

On .ay 16, 1807, He died Tecember £, 1£77 and is buried in i.ancver County,

Vip~ini o - - . o
~I'ginla. Ze was the son of Savage Smiil and Zlizabeth (Cuttino) Smith.

Ee wa
=€ Was twice married; Tirst ‘o llary Dewes and alfter her death to Susanna

Archzr Zenjamin Smith wes o graduzte of Colgete Tniversity
in Rochester, . ¥, and of Brown University in Rhode Island.

Although well advanced in the study of medicine, irchar Zenja-
120 Smith becene converted and wes called to preach. & Wiry mar of medium
Duild, he was blessed with vi cor, devotion and ar overpowerir; deternipation

“0 Serve the Lord. ke undertcok grect things for God aznd expected great

*hin~e of God Ty epociics not . v g . srtzliines or bics
-lanze of d. .&e wes not disaprointed in either his undertekings or his

Le served many churches, filling pulpits in Fetersburg, Lynchburg
and Richrond, In 1846 when Serea Church in Coochlend wes orgenized he was
a2lled to its pactorate, The services viere largely atterded and very soon
every one begen to love this simple-hearted godly mzn. IFrom *he very be-
inning the Church increzsed in membership, e?ficiency ard Jhrictian ze2l.
"file qis town pastorates were in nc measure failures, he wes preerinently

a country pastor.

"Cur beloved Pastor," his mzny parishoners called him and indeed

this faithful and diligent men was worthy of the love amd esteem accorded
him.

£n extrect from a newspaper clipping dated lLoverber Ty 3925,
reads: "Fev., A. B. Smith of Serea near Sichmond, Virginia, now deceased,

a noved devine of his day and generation - - -,"



hArcher Zenjamrin Smith - contd.

. . . ~ 1—
Rev, Archar Berjamin Smith was Pastor at Lover Zaptist Church

frem 1848 to 1873. During this time and until his ceath he also served

as pastor at Berea Baptist Church and Goochland Baptist Church. EHe was

the autior of "Lemcirs of EZlder P, P, Smith" and was a Chaplain during

th'&‘ Ci 4.1 ”‘arc

- 1 ve 4 s . . ) ~ =}
In addition to the zbove, Rev. Archar Benjamin Smith made th
following contributiors during his ministerizl service:

Preached the innual Sermon of the Lover Asscciation
in 1346 and 185,

Vrcte the Circular Lebter 1652 and 1665,

as ..oderatcr of Dover 4ssociation 1860 and 18669,
Served on the fcllowing committees: Temperance, .inisterl izl
Zducatlon, Lrrangements, Obituary Liotices.

Shairmen of Cozmmittee to report on 3abba
cheirpan of Cozmittee to report on Ccmest
Chairmen of Committee to report on Religi

Nete: It will be of special interest to present mem-oers of

Lenler

Tover Beptist Church, as wecll ss others, to learn that .rs. Loward

(the former Zve Lzrie Briesr :aster) is the zreat grand-daughter of Rev.

srchar Zenjerin Smith, This is reacily understandable when one reflects

“u

upen the outstandirg work that lrs. Lenley is now doing zt Dover.




WILLIAL ., CROUGH

“illiem ... Crcuch was born in Goochland Jounty in the year
13L1. The day ancd month are not knovm, Ee died or _ay 10, 192L, and
is buried in Dover Baptist Cemetary. No information is available as to
tiis parents or his early childhood, but it is krown tlzt he was a lilclong
residert of Gooctland Sounty. ke married, but tie nene of Lis wife is aot
C:¥M. There wes one chilc, yrtle, who married h. T. Pugh.

Llthough slizht of statue, and considered by some as freil,
“illiar 1. Crouch was a tower of strength in Coochland Jounty. ne was
&ncwn by all as "Uncle 2illy", was a deerly beleved neighborhcod churacter,
and has becone a legend in the county.

L omenber of Lover Baptist Churchk and a deveout christian, Uncle
Zi1ly erdeared himself to everyone and especially to children.

Lis talents were many, Laving served four vezrs in the Yar
Zetween The States under John E. Suy, he returned to civilien life with
the "Czuse™ firmly entrenched in his heart and nind, He was a Leacon at
Dover for meny years and on June 22, 1919, was nade ar Loncrary Leacon Sor
lJife. Le alse served as Zlerk at Lover Church for many years and took an
&ctive part in all activities of the lhurchk., It was not ai 221 unusuel lor
Uncle 2illy to e called upon to rray. Lls rrayers, while reverent and soul-
stirring, were alweys cither prefaced or ended by some reference to the
Cause". Eis life was a _eacon to encourage and prormote {true christianity,
Ee is remembered for hLis gentleness, his wise counsel, his devotion to his
Church and his remarkable sense of humor.

"Lile operating a country store at lanakin he aided wore and nore
adnirers to his already long list., He was a patient, tolerant, just and

kind-hearted man who did not 7ind it difficult to resch into the card Loy



ny

Villliam i.. Crouch - Zontd.

and extract sticks of peppervint cendy Tor little hands that could barely
reach thre counter in the store,

Urcle Zilly was Sheriff of Goochland County for mory yearse
tlis capacity he served well and faithfully., It is believed thet the €
ample he set in life deterred many from the wayward path.

Tt is Gifficult to associate this centle end sincere christl
men wWith the enforcement of the lew, Yet, the memory iz still serfectly
clear - 2 tire-worn bugzy with an unpredictable top, & weary horse, end
dearly beloved Uncle Billy helding the reins, . twinkle was seldom, 3L

ver absent from his eyss - and if there was a weapen to enforce the law:

-wonls he izfluencec

° k

it was never in evidence, Certeinly thre nuxber of

to becoue christiens far out-nuarhered those he “ound

arorehend under the law,




IS o - 1= . H Q
osa Belle Clarke Cones was born at lianakin oz Lay 28, 1871.

chter of Zeorge Sanford Clarke and Lucy Teiple (hiarris)

he Zey
Clarke, ang wss & life-long resident of ianakin., She married Jenkin
Theras cones of lardiff. Males end they wade their home at L.anakin,
There were tie children of this merriace - faul Clarke Jones znd Lervin
iage = I

“red lones, Lrs. Jones died on fugust 19, 1¢55, and is buried in —over
Church cemetary.

TS, Jones will ever be remembered for her many contributicns
Lo the Church ani the cormmnity. 3kre.joined Dover Zaptist Churct in early
childhood end worked with and for the Clurch faithfully and diligently,
Terhaps one of her nost oustandinz contricntions was the fact that she wes
orgzenist Zor her beloved Churct an? Sunday Schiool for nearly sisxty. years.
There Bre poumbless nmhers of Gocasdsns during a sixty yesr period wien
the ser-ices of a Church Orzenist may be required, and this fine laiy whe
save of herself ani her %telents so unstintinily is reuembered with love,
grétitude and hizhest esteem, To those who had the privilege of snowing

Fer, she was 2 symbel of all that is good znd worthwhile, Ler life was

an unwavering lizkt on the pattway thot leads to christianity.

gs
s
g
g
o
.
.
~



~wLLiIZL, SURTON LUVLAL

~.91llie Burton Zu7al was born on Decerber 21, 1899, at "Jezsandine
3ovier! Towell's Tavern, Goock:land County, Virgintia, She has 'spent her en-
'ire life-time in the vicinity of vanakin, She was warried to Willian
Veraon Tu¥al on October 7, 1923, From childhood she attended Zover Zaptist
-:ureh and was baptized in Septeuber of 1912.

«01llie Burton LuTu.l stepped forward and took har place A e
church at tlre a2ze of three, Tre circurstances surrounding tl.is first step
Were not unususl, Her older brother was scl.eduled to recite a poex at the
“hildrens' Lay Lxercises at iover Church, e hed fellowed him arourd as
ke rezd tre poem over and over Lo memorize it. Listeninz to him read it
eLand ste, tco, .emorized it. 4t the last minute, her brotler DLecane "stz e~
struck" and i:ollie volunteered to substitute for him. Since iollie wes 2
tiny little zirl, a box had to be hwriedly covered with s sheet and eleve-
tad fo; ther to stand on so tle zudience might see her, Tre poem "Do 4

o -

Yindness" was heauti fully recited by iLollie end aftar tret she hed 2

()
}-4
[A}]
O
m

¢f hee g b FLTD,

“hen iiellie Tu7zl was nine the Dover fssociation wmet at Lover
wwurel, liny of the Lelegrtes made thre LuVal home their hezlquarters and
l.ollie proudly drove the surr; which tock them to and from Dover lhurch,

The years that followed Lave been full to thé brim for irs, TuVal,
Without reservation she has given of her time und herself to labor in the
Lord's vineyard, and her elforts have been richly rewarded.

irs. Zulel has been a Teaconess at Lover for sixteen years. Craile

Foll Superintendent ‘and Beginners' Teacher for sixteen jyezrs. She was Secre-

tary of the T.U., and Principal of Vacation 5idble 3chool seven years; Frimary



kollie Surton ftuVal - contd.

-~

cacher two years, G.b. and R. L. Cournselor, Fresident ‘e..de
and Vice-Tresident two years. In the 1923's she was

Dover

g

.I.7.U. Associztion, In later years she has served as

Yo . Poar i iztion
of Zover issociation W.i.U., Group Young People's Leader Dover sSSoct

“e.wUs and Group Y.™.&. Tirector, Lover issociation W.X.U.

m, ,.Jf hne
o g - Mackahoe
Cn Octover 18, 155¢, .rs. LuVal moved her nmembership to =
= - o L“w‘r
Saptist Thurch. 3She is continuing her good work trere ani is cwrr2ivy
— - “eriier
sresicent of the W,i,8., Chairman the xecutive Committee anc ..8-=

>L the ouildingz Jomrittee,
. - \ -~ v - ~ -1 1 'l'-'lr
..ollie Zurson TuVzl is respected, esteened ard loved by al: Waod
:now her. There is 1o doubt tha% her work now is zc enthusiastic &3

st huve been that long age day when, at the age of three, she

steprea forward and recited: "Jo A Findness,"




ELIZLZZTH £, LDUVAL

Elizabeth I, DuVal was born on kay 22, 189L, at "Jessamine
Bowern © . - &
er” Powell's Tavern, Goochland County, Virginia. Irom childhood

She attended Dover Sartist Church and was baptized in September of
1506,

~1ss ZuVal is 1l that could be desired as a conversationalist,

Yot 1t would require tte ingenuity of a shrewd detective to lesrn about

Y o Vede s . 9 P # "
Vi€ ind, selfless acts she has performed eni is still perforring lor
~Over Za;tist Church and ivs reople.

W.ile .diss LuVel, who is better xmown as iiss Zlizabeth, goes
ahoul

her work with tranquility and serenity, it is not even remotcly sug-
gestel thut she hides her lizht under 2 bushel., To the contrary, she
travels roads tret others would rot think nor trouble to travel and she
brings joy to wany thet would otherwise be passed by in our crowdsd world
voday,

Ko tzsk involving the work of the Church has seemed too grest for
wiss Zligabetr. Seginning as a little girl che weat alengz in z bugly ?::ith
Yer zrandmother to make Churst and szick calls and she always accompanied
tier grandmothcr when she attended the Church Zircle meetings, s the yeers
passed she tcok on more end more responsibility in the Church, For six
yeers she taught the Senior Class at Dover Sunday School, then piled on
thirty-one years as Tea-her of the Ladies' Zible Class. In addition, she
was Croup Leader for four years end President of the W.i.U. for 29 years

and Vice-President for two years. She has zlso served a number of years

as Leaconess.,



T 15060 .

~0 1780 wen the Cusiness "oman'!s Circ

it was named "The Elizabeth Z. DuVal circle of

iiss Zlizebeth has lived in Tichrond ¢

v alttends Lover Churel.
#ould irvolve twenty miles roundtrin Lowevar,
tlect~d Yo drive an additionsl twentir niles eazch
leges in order to

;5 them to Sundesy School and

ivag bhzclk over “trhe sanie rcoute

Less 1t s exmbtreaely douhtful thet these ourg
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1.

AINTE FORLOLVE CLAREE

irs. Lnnie Forloine Clerke, widow of Luther Calvin Clarke, Wwas
vorn at lanakin on October 7, 1877, and hes been a life-time resident of
the lanakin area, She is the daughter of Janes Eenry Torloine and Rosa
Cordelia (Cosby) Forloine and a direct descendant of the Fuguenot Forloines

Who cettled in Lanakin in 1700. Annie Forloine and Luther Calvin Clarke

Ter ok G R : N v118 =
were married in Vashington, D. C. on Octover 21, 1907. There was oneé ctil

-ary Lucy Clarke, now residirg at ianakin,

irs. Clorke has been a member of Dover Eaptist Church for seveniy-
tWwo years. She served es Church Clerk for thirteen years and Wa; a teac%er
in Lover Sundey Schocl Zor [ifty years. She was ?res;dent of the Voman's

s
Aa

ssionary Union and President of the Za.tist Young Feoples' Union.

irs, Clarke did not stop with her Church. Insteacd, she carried
ter shining light and christian life out into the community &.a leflt a
rortion of herself with many civic groups suck as the local F.T.A., hioing
Semonstraticn Jlub, Red lross, T3 Vorzers Group and Welfzre Organizations.

A christizn wife and mother, a completely selfless person, lrs.

> has been a tireless worker in her effortis tb advance the true mean-
ing of christianity. ELer life stands as a monument to her faith in God
and her love for all hwnankind and the lives she Lzs toucked Lzve bee
made richer by tre touching.
wrs. Clerke's devotion to her Churci and the yezrs ste hes given

to its work should serve as an example to all that nc limit can be placed

on what we should, can and must do to live zodl righteous ani sober
3 =) 3 (=]

lives - lives that nzy be acceptable in the eyes of the Laster!




The pages immedfately following will
list some of the weddings that have

taken place at Dover Baptist Church.
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June 21, 1893:

OCt' 12, 1903:

Oct. 10, 1906:

1.
WEDDINGS

Lizzie Sheppard DuVal to Benjamin Bunbury DuVal _
Prof. Edmond Harrison of Richmond College officiating.

Mary Holland to Robert Beattie.,
Elizabeth Estelle Ellis to Joseph C., Dill

"The marriage of Miss Elizabeth Estelle Ellis, daughter of
Mr, and Mrs. LeRoy D. Ellis of Goochland County to Mir.
Joseph C. Dill of Buchanan, Va., took place Tiednesday
morning, Oct. 10th, 1906, at 11 o'clock in Dover Baptist
Church, kanakin, Va.

"The Rev. Mr., F. L, Hardy, pastor of the church officiated.
"The church was prettily decorated with goldenrod and greens.

"liss Frances Houston of Keysville, Va., who attended the
bride as maid of honor was gowned in pale yellow silk mull
and carried white sweetpeas.

"Other attendants were the best mar, Dr. E, L. Grubbs of
Springwood, Va., and the ushers, kr. Carroll Gathright of
Goochland County; lar. Jemes Snyder and kir. walter Ellis,
brother of the bride, of Manakin and kr. Ernest Kay of
Richmond, Va.

"Iwo little flower girls, lisses Nannie Sue and Leita Ellis,
of Richmond, nieces of the bride, wore dainty frocks of
white mull and carried armfuls of goldenrod.

"The bride was stylishly gowned in a going away gown of brown
taffeta with hat and gloves to correspond and carried Erides
roses,

"The bride's parents entertained the wedding party with a
luncheon after which lir. and Mrs. Dill left far a northern
tour and will be at home to their friends after Nov. 1lst at
Buchanan, Va,

"Among th e Richmond people who attended the wedding were iir,
and Mrs, B, D. Kay, ir. and krs. Dabney Ellis, kr. and irs.
W. E. Ellis, kiss Linda Toler, Miss Annie Perkins, Mrs.
Gordon, and others,"

(Note: kir, and Nrs. LeRoy D. Ellis were members of Dover
Church and were active in the wark of the Church.
lr. Ellis was Superintendent of the Sunday School
for a number of years and also held other offices).



Weddings - contd.

Sept. 27, 1930:

Oct. 7, 1933:

Cct. 8, 1638:

April 3, 1948:

June 25, 1949:

April 16, 1949:

Nov. 24, 19L9:

Aug. 8, 1950:

Nov. L, 1950:

liar, 3, 1951:

May 7, 1955:

xar, 2, 1956:
Yar, 2, 1956:
Aug., 11, 1956:

Feb. 16, 1957:

June 1}, 1958:

Sept. 12, 1959:

2e

Marie Beatrice Cary to Elmo Henley
Rev, Joseph Rotella officiating.

Mollie Burton DuVal to William Vernom DuVal 1
Ceremony performed in the home of Rev. Joseph Rotella.

Frances Elizabeth Wood to Charles Wesley Chloe.

Phyllis Rae Long to Austin Braxton Clarke
Rev. W. B. Comnor officiating.

Mary Katherine Henley to William Nelson Sheppard
Rev, William B, Connor officiating.

Peggy Virginia Mitchell to Edward Wellford Wood.

Helen Henley to Blaine G, Ingram
Rev, Stuart B. West officiating

larion Virginia Staples to Charles Willis Waldron
Rev. Randolph Hall officiating

Hilda Jane Henley to Lonnie A, Wood, Jr.,
Rev. Randolph B, Hall officiating

Kildred Anne Heusmann to Russell Clyde Bransfard, Jr.

Margaret Gaines Apperson to J. C. Ryan.
(This was the first wedding in the new Church).

Virginia Smith to William Haden (at 7:30 P.z.)
Juanita Dawn Austin to James H, Dolan (at 8:30 P.lM,)

Betty Jean Webb to Franklin David Hoffman
Rev. Walter L. Bradley officiating

Gloria Blania Cave to Harry W, Reed, Jr.
Rev, Walter L. Bradley officiating

Betty Taylor to Basil Gordon

Barbara Austin to Fred Claywell
Rev. Walter L., Bradley officiating



The pages immediately following will
list some of the candidates for baptism

from Dover Baptist Church.

Je % 4 3%



1873
15888
1897

1506

1509

1509
1912

1915

1922

1526
193k
1934
193k
193L
193k
1934
1936
1936
1536
1936
1936
1936
1936

CANDIDATES ¥ CR EAPTISK

DuVal, Lizzie Sheppard
Forloine, Annie

Gordon, liary, by Rev. R. B. Collier
in James River at Boscobel

DuVal, Elizabeth E., by Rev. Frank Hardy
in "Little River" at Boscobel

DuVal, Benjamin Sheppard, by Rev. James A, Clark
in "Little River" at Boscobel

Clarke, Robert Byron

DuVal, lkollie Burton, by Rev. Bass
in pond on kr. William Crouch's home-place.

Clarke, Luther Calvin, by Dr. Houghton
at Grove Ave., Baptist Church, Richmond, Va.

Clarke, kary L., by Rev. J. Hillis Miller
in Tuckahoe Creek

Clarke, Elma Frances
Staples, Tom S.
Lipscomb, Barding
Proffitt, Rufus
Proffit, Ralph

Keeton, krs. Daniel
Lipscomb, Gladys
Powers, Charles Archer
Lipscomb, Robert Wason
#iade, Alton

Staples, kiarion

Wade, Frances .
Henley, liargaret Gordon

Brovnirg, Hazel

1.



Candicates for baptism - contd.

1539
1939
1539
1938
1939
1939
1539
1540

1510
1940
1940
19L2
1942
5L
194
15kl
194l
1944
194k
154
1oL
194
194l
1945

1545
1945

July 29

n

"

2.

3 ] nd Va-
Gordon, Ann, in pool at Calvary Baptist Church, Richmond,

Gordon, Eloise ditto
Moore, Nildred ditto
Keeton, Purcell ditto
Henley, Howard ditto
Powers, Henry ditto
Gordon, Louis, Jr. ditto

Proffitt, Laura, by Pastor Dan Fowler, at Ridge
Baptist Church

Proffitt, Alice, ditto

Dunlavy, Elizabeth, ditto

Dunlavy, label, by Pastor Dan Fowler in Salem pool.
Proffift, John Paul, at Westhampton Baptist Church
loses, C. E., by Mr. Brown at Wiesthampton Baptist Church

Henley, Frank Holman, by lir. Bradshaw, Ridge Baptist Church

Osborne, Earl‘Ralph ditto
Henley, Mary ﬁatherine ditto
Henley, Edith Staples ditto
Henley, Hilda ditto
Powers, Rennie ditto
Penny, Jeannette ditto
Gilley, Altie ditto
Penny, Louise ditto
Worrell, Lrs. Ocie ditto

Moses, Clyde, by Rev, W.W.Ferguson, Venable Street
Baptist Church, Richmond, Va,

Pinney, Aubrey ditto

Gilley, Wilmer ditto




Candidatesg for baptism - contd, 3
1945 July 29 Henley, Alfred, Jr., by Rev. W. W. Ferguson, Venable
Street Baptist Church, Richmond, Va.

1945w DuVal, William ditto

L5 Henley, Beatrice Dare ditto

L5 w Gilley, Hallie ditto

WLs  w Powers, lirs., Melvin ditto

1546 oct, 20 Cave, Gloria, at Westhampton Baptist Church

L6 w Long, Virginia ditto

19L6  n Long, Ray ditto

L6 n Osborne, Harry ditto

1946 = Gilley, Cherlie ditto

1946w Burton, Kenneth ditto

L6 » Browning, Burell F, ditto

1947 Sept. 21 Heusmann, Mildred Ann, at Westhampton Baptist Church

L7 w Daves, Andrew Elam ditto

L7 w Branch, Charlie ditto

U7 Wash, Conrad ditto

947 o Clarke, Urs, Mildred ditto

1948 Moses, Frances

1955 May 29 Ryan, Margaret Apperson, by Rev. Walter tradley at
Dover Baptist Church. (first baptism in new church)

1956 Henley, Audrey Harris

1956 Amos, Julia, Mae

1956 Amos, David

1957 Henley, Eva Briesmaster

1857 Grow, Gloria

1957 Grow, Charlotte

1957 DiServio, Bertha Henley



Lis
Candidates for baptism - contd.

1957 Marks, Earl

1957 Preddy,. Donnie

1957 - Preddy, Peyton

1557 Powers, Mamie

1957 July 21 Cooper, Wilbert

1981 * Cooper, Mrs, Wilbert

1958 Sept. 1k Agee, lrs. F. H, by Rev. Walter Bradley, Dover Baptist Chwrch l
1558 = Amos, Peggy ditto
1958. DiServio, Tony ditto
1958 " Tyler, Jerry ditto
1959 Mar, 22 Burton, Charles

1959 " Dorsheimer, Dan

1952 " Dorshiemer, Lynn

1959 * Wade, Patsy

1959 Breed, Carole

¥
|
|
|
]
|
|
U
L

|
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The pages immediately following will
1list some of the funerals that have
been held at Dover Baptist Church,

with burials in the Church cemetary.

L




Nov. 21, 1478:

May 26: 1880:
Jan. 23, 1887;
June 21, 1889:

Jan' 25 ’ 1890:
Feb

22, 1893:

Oct, 21,1893:
Aug, 1, 1896:
Sept. 27, 1901
Jan. 14, 1909

April 13, 1909:

April 6, 1909:
Aug. 9) 19103

June 30, 191k:
July 10, 1917:
March 26, 192k:
Hay 10, 1924:

Oct. 27, 192L:

March 16, 1926;

April 1, 1928:

1.

BURIALS IN DOVER CHURCh CEuETARY

Deitrick, Alphonso P, the first husband of Eliza
J. DuVal, (This was the first burial in Dover Cemetary).

DuVal, Emma C,, first wife of Charles Eugene Woodson.
Johnson, William S.

DuVal, Samuel S. Services conducted by Prof. Edmund
Harrison.

Walton, Jesse W,

Clarke, George S. He was a Confederate soldier, serving
his country throughout the entire war.

DuVal, lrs., Rhoda Thomas.

DuVal, Edwin Joseph

St. Clair, Sallie E.

Clarke, Sgt. Robert B, A Confederate Veteran.

Clarke, lirs. Lucy T. For forty years a devout member
of Dover Baptist Church.

Crouch, irs, Willie H, wife of William Crouch.
St. Clair, William T.

DuVal, Julia Erasmus, daughter of E. J. and R. T.
DuVal. (She was the wife of Alexander Anglea).

DuVal, Benjamin B, Services conducted by Rev. Kemper
(Christian), BMr., DuVal was a Confederate Veteran.

DuVal, kirs. Emma W, wife of Samuel S, DuVal.
Services conducted by Rev. Hillis Miller.

Crouch, William M. (Uncle Billy). Services conducted
by Rev, Hillis Miller.

Henley, Frank Malvin, A veteran of World War I

DuVal, Mrs. Elizabeth S. wife of Benjamin B. DuVal.
Services conducted by Rev. Hillis Miller and Rev,
Joseph Rotella. ,

Johnson, lirs, siollie Walton (Miss Blue) wife of
William S, Johnson. Services conducted by Rev,
Joseph Rotella,



Burials - contd.
July 1928;

--- 1929:
- - 1933:
April 6, 1933:

Jan, 7’.1935=
Mar. 29, 1940:
Apr. 14, 19)2:
Nov, 19, 19k2:
liar, 3, 1945:
Sept. 2, 1945:

Apr, 26, 1947:

Sept. 28, 19L7:
Nov., 24, 1948:
Aug, 22, 1955:

Aug, 26, 1957:

Clarke, Mrs, Georgiana Powers.
Services conducted by Rev, Joseph Rotella.

DuVal, Eliza J., second wife of Charles Eugene Woodson.
Woodson, Charles Eugene,

Henley, Archer C. husband of lirs. Cora Clarke Henley.
Services conducted by Rev. Joseph Rotella.

DuVal, Xiss Sallie Frances.
Services conducted by Rev., Joseph Rotella.

Burgess, Alfred Lindsay, husband of Vera Woodson
Burgess. ,

Powell, Irene DuVal, wife of John McK. Powell
Services conducted by Rev, Arthur Brown.

Clark, John Lindsey, husband of krs., Alice Charles
Clark. Services conducted by Rev. Arthur Brown.

Hewitt, William W. A veteran of World War II and
died in the service of his country.

Clarke, Luther Calvin, husband of lirs. Annie Forloine
Clarke. Services conducted by Rev, W. W. Ferguson.

Dunlavy, George H, A veteran of World War I.

Henley, lrs, Cora Clarke.
Services conducted by Rev. W. B. Connor,

Henley, Percy W.
Services conducted by Rev. W. B. Connor.,

Jones, lMrs. Rosa Clarke, wife of Jenkin Thomas Jones.

Cave, William Spencer.
(Note: Funeral services held at Dover with interment
in Greermwood Memorial Gardens).
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